
1 

 

 CITY OF HOPEWELL 
Hopewell, Virginia 23860 

 

CITY COUNCIL 
Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor, Ward #7 

Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor, Ward #4 
Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Councilor, Ward #1 

Arlene Holloway, Councilor, Ward #2 
Anthony J. Zevgolis, Councilor, Ward #3 

Janice Denton, Councilor, Ward #5 
Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor, Ward #6 

 
Mark A. Haley, City Manager 

Stefan M. Calos, City Attorney 
Ronnieye Arrington, Interim City Clerk 

 

AGENDA 
 

PHONE: 541-2408 
FAX: 541-2248 

 

e-mail: info@hopewellva.gov 
www.hopewellva.gov 

 Date: April 25, 2017 MUNICIPAL BUILDING TIME: Closed Meeting    6:30 p.m. 

 Regular Meeting  7:30 p.m. 

OPEN MEETING 

 

6:30 p.m. Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 

 

MOTION: To amend/adopt agenda 

 

MOTION: To go into closed meeting for (1) discussion of the appointment of  specific appointees 

of city council (city clerk), and (2) consultation with legal counsel employed or retained by city council 

related thereto and regarding specific legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice by such 

counsel, in accordance with Virginia Code sections 2.2-3711 (A) (1) and (7), respectively. 

 

Roll Call  

CLOSED MEETING 

RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO VIRGINIA CODE § 2.2-3712 (D): WERE ONLY PUBLIC 

BUSINESS MATTERS (I) LAWFULLY EXEMPTED FROM OPEN-MEETING REQUIREMENTS AND 

(II) IDENTIFIED IN THE CLOSED-MEETING MOTION DISCUSSED IN CLOSED MEETING? 

 

Roll Call 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

7:30 p.m.   Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 

 

Prayer by Rev. Jefferson Butler pastor of John Randolph Medical Center Pastoral Care followed 

by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America. 
  

mailto:info@hopewellva.gov
http://www.hopewellva.gov/


2 

 

 

  

Consent Agenda 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by Council and will be 

approved or received by one motion in the form listed. Items may be removed from the Consent 

Agenda for discussion under the regular agenda at the request of any Councilor. (Rule 304) 

 

C-1 Minutes:  January 3, 2017; January 10, 2017; January 24, 2017 

C-2 Pending List:   

C-3 Routine Approval of Work Sessions:  

C-4 Personnel Change Report & Financial Report: Included 

C-5 Ordinances on Second & Final Reading: None 

C-6 Routine Grant Approval: None 

C-7 Public Hearing Announcement: May 2, 2017 - City Budget, and School Division 

Budget 

C-8 Information for Council Review:  Hopewell Water Renewal minutes for January 

30, 2017; April 2017 Board Report for Library; School Board minutes for March 9, 

2017 and March 16, 2017 

C-9 Resolutions/Proclamations/Presentations:  Freedom Support Center presentation; 

Suzanne Beauvoir Jackson CEO of John Randolph Hospital; Pinwheels for 

Prevention; Building Safety Month proclamation; Proclamation for Administrative 

Professionals Week; Presentation from the Hope House; NLC Presentation  

C-10 Additional Announcements:  Joint Ward Meeting for Wards 2 and 6 on Thursday, 

April 27, 2017 at 6:30 p.m. at Sunlight Elks Lodge, including discussion of 

abatement of blighted properties: (1) 1811 Dinwiddie Avenue, (2) 1710 Danville 

Street, (3) 2313 Dellrose Avenue, (4) 2330 Dellrose Avenue, (5) 3925 Courthouse 

Road, and (6) 1304 Arlington Avenue 

 

Public Hearings 
Addressing Council – Each person addressing the Council shall step to the microphone, give name and 

address and limit comments to five (5) minutes or less. No person shall be permitted to address Council a 

second time until all others have been heard once and no one shall speak more than twice on any subject 

in any one meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to Council as a body and not to any member thereof. 

No person other than the Council and the person having the floor shall enter into any discussion either 

directly or through a member of the Council without permission of the Mayor. No question shall be asked 

a Council member (including Administration) except through the presiding officer. (Rule 405) 

 

Public Hearings - For the purpose of receiving comments regarding the following requests by the 

City of Hopewell to amend and reenact the Hopewell Zoning Ordinance in accordance with section 

15. 2-2285 of the Code of Virginia: 

 

PH-1 Amend Article XI, Highway Commercial District (B-3), section A to allow accessory 

structures, by issuance of a Conditional Use Permit, to include metal carports that are not 

visible from primary streets, and other conditions City Council may deem necessary. 



3 

 

MOTION:  To amend Article XI (A) of the zoning ordinance, to allow accessory 

structures, by issuance of a Conditional Use Permit, to include metal carports that 

are not visible from primary streets. 

 Roll Call 

PH-2 Amend Article XIV-B, Tourist/Historic District (TH-1), section J. Architectural Review 

Board; section M. Issuance of Certificate of Appropriateness; section P. Violations; section 

U. Exclusion; and section X. Protective Maintenance. 

MOTION:  To amend and reenact Article XIV-B of the zoning ordinance, regarding 

certificates of appropriateness, violations, exclusions, and protective maintenance.  

 Roll Call 

PH-3 Article IX, Downtown Central Business District (B-1), section H. Architectural Treatment 

– Rehabilitation; section M. Downtown Design Review Committee; section O. Criteria for 

granting a Certificate of Appropriateness; section T. Exclusion; and section U. Protective 

Maintenance.    

 

MOTION:  To amend and reenact Article IX of the zoning ordinance, regarding 

rehabilitation, the Downtown Design Review Committee, certificates of 

appropriateness, exclusions, and protective maintenance. 

 

Roll Call 

 

Communications from Citizens 

A Communications from Citizens period, limited in total time to 30 minutes, shall be part of the 

Order of Business at each regular Council meeting. Each speaker will be limited to three (3) 

minutes. No citizen will be permitted to speak on any item scheduled for consideration on the 

regular agenda of the meeting. (Rule 405)    

 

REGULAR BUSINESS 

Reports of City Manager: 

 

R-1 Approval of Fiscal Year 2017 General Fund/finance budget appropriation for City 

Council travel costs. 

 

ISSUE:  Council’s budget has been depleted for the current fiscal year. 

 

 RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends approval 

  

 MOTION:  To appropriate an additional $7,500 to supplement the Fiscal Year 2017 

budget for Council travel. 

  

 Roll Call 

 

 



4 

 

R-2 Approval of Fiscal Year 2017 General Fund/finance budget appropriation for City 

Council costs for miscellaneous expenses. 

 

ISSUE:  Council’s budget has been depleted for the current fiscal year. 

 

 RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval 

  

 MOTION:  To appropriate an additional $15,000 to supplement the Fiscal Year 

2017 budget for Council miscellaneous expenses. 

  

 Roll Call 

 

R-3 Presentation by CodeRVA Regional regarding the Resolution requested by the 

School Boards of the counties of Chesterfield, Cumberland, Dinwiddie, Goochland, 

Hanover, Henrico, New Kent, Powhatan, Prince George and Sussex, and the Cities 

of Colonial Heights, Hopewell, Petersburg and Richmond appointing a fiscal agent 

for CodeRVA.     

 

MOTION:  To approve the designation of the Director of the Department of Finance 

for Henrico County to serve as the fiscal agent for CodeRVA and to sign a resolution 

so stating. 

 

Roll Call 

 

R-4 Capital Improvement Plan  

 

ISSUE: Review Requested Capital Projects and City Manager’s Recommendation for  

CIP 
 

 RECOMMENDATION: Approval of City Manager’s Recommendation of Capital  

 Project Funding for CIP 

 

 MOTION: To approve the City Manager’s Recommendation of Capital Project  

 Funding for CIP 

  

Roll Call  

 

R-5 FY2018 Balance Budget Options  

 

R-6 Approval of Tax Rate for 2018  

 

ISSUE:  A tax rate needs to be established before tax bills can be sent and before the  

school’s budget can be approved. 

 

 RECOMMENDATION: Approval of tax rate of $1.17 on first reading. 

 



5 

 

 MOTION: To approve a tax rate of $__________ on first and only reading. 

 

 Roll Call 

  

 

Reports of the City Attorney: 

 

Reports of the City Clerk: 

 

Accepting Talent Bank Resumes (TBR) for ALL Boards and Commissions  

 

Reports of City Council: 

 

 Committees  
 

 Individual Councilors:   

 

 

Citizen/Councilor Requests 

 

Other Council Communications 

 

Adjournment 

 

  



 
MINUTES 



January 3, 2017 

Reorganizational Meeting 

MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL REORGANIZATIONAL MEETING  

HELD JANUARY 3, 2017 
 

REORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 

 

A Reorganizational Meeting of the City Council of the City of Hopewell, Virginia, was held 

Tuesday, January 3, 2017, at 6:30 p.m. in the City Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 North Main 

Street, Hopewell, Virginia. 

 

  PRESENT:  Vice Mayor Luman-Bailey, Ward #1 

     Councilor Holloway, Ward #2 

     Councilor Zevgolis, Ward #3 

     Councilor Gore, Ward #4 

     Councilor Denton, Ward #5 

     Councilor Pelham, Ward #6 

     Councilor Shornak, Ward #7 

 

 

REORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 
 

 Mayor Pelham, called the meeting to order.  

 

 The opening prayer was offered by Pastor Ken Hendricks of Woodlawn Baptist Church, followed 

by the Pledge of Allegiance, to the Flag of the United States of America. 

 

OATHS OF OFFICE 
 

 Circuit Court Clerk Tamara Ward performed the Oath of Office for Councilor Jasmine E. 

Gore, Ward #4; Councilor Janice B. Denton, Ward #5 and Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6, 

and such Councilors were duly sworn. 
 

 Upon the roll call, attendance was taken as follows: 

 

   Vice Mayor Luman-Bailey - present 

   Councilor Holloway  - present 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - present 

   Councilor Gore   - present 

   Councilor Denton  - present 

   Mayor Pelham   - present 

   Councilor Shornak  - present 

 

 The Mayor stated the purpose of the reorganizational meeting to choose a Mayor and Vice Mayor, 

each of whom shall serve a period of two years from the date of appointment, and until their successor or 

successors have been elected and qualified, in accordance with Chapter IV, Section 4 (a), of the City 

Charter. Mayor Pelham requested legal clarification as to how they would accept nominations. The City 

Attorney rendered his opinion and Council agreed to accept a nomination and then vote. 

 

 Mayor Pelham declared nominations open for the office of Mayor. 

 



January 3, 2017 

Reorganizational Meeting 

 A Motion was made by Councilor Denton, and seconded by Councilor Gore, on the nomination of 

Councilor Shornak as Mayor. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - no 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - no 

   Councilor Gore   - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - no 

   Councilor Shornak  - yes 

 

Vote Result: 4 yes/3 no. The motion passed. 

 

 Councilor Shornak was declared Mayor of the City of Hopewell, for a term extending through 

December 31, 2019. 

 

 The gavel was passed to Mayor-Elect Shornak and opened the floor for nominations for Vice 

Mayor. 

 

 Motion was made by Councilor Denton, and seconded by Mayor-Elect Shornak, to nominate 

Councilor Luman-Bailey for Vice Mayor. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - no 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - no 

   Councilor Gore   - no 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - no 

   Councilor Shornak  - yes 

 

Vote Result: Motion Failed 4 no/3 yes. 

 

 A motion was made by Councilor Holloway, and seconded by Councilor Pelham, to elect 

Councilor Gore as Vice Mayor. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - no 

   Councilor Holloway  - yes 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - no 

   Councilor Gore   - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Councilor Shornak  - yes 

 

Vote Result: The motion passed 5 yes/2 no. 
 

* A motion had been made by Councilor Luman-Bailey to nominate Councilor Zevgolis for Vice Mayor 

after the motion by Councilor Holloway to nominate Councilor Gore for Vice Mayor and seconded by 

Councilor Pelham. Earlier, Mayor Pelham had requested legal clarification as to how they would accept 

nominations. The City Attorney rendered his opinion and Council agreed to accept a nomination and then 

vote. Therefore, the motion made by Councilor Luman-Bailey was not accepted at that time.* 

 



January 3, 2017 

Reorganizational Meeting 

 Councilor Gore was declared Vice Mayor, of the City of Hopewell for a term extending through 

December 31, 2019. 

 

 Mayor-Elect Shornak and Vice Mayor Elect Gore were duly sworn in by Tamara Ward, 

Hopewell Circuit Court Clerk. 

 

 

 

 

SPECIAL MEETING BUSINESS 
 

SB-1 – Special Business - Establish City Council regular meeting dates for 2017, in accordance with 

Virginia Code § 15.2-1416. 

 

 A motion was made by Councilor Pelham, and seconded by Councilor Luman-Bailey, to Establish 

City Council regular meeting dates for 2017, in accordance with Virginia Code § 15.2-1416 and 

to approve the 2017 Hopewell City Council regular meeting dates as the second and fourth 

Tuesday on the following months, January, February, March, April, May, June, September and 

October and for the months of July, August and December Council shall meet on the second 

Tuesday and for the month of November Council shall meet on the third Tuesday. Also,  city council 

fixed the following Tuesday as the day to which a regular meeting shall be continued if the mayor, or vice-

mayor if the mayor is unable to act, finds and declares that weather or other conditions are such that it is 

hazardous for members to attend the regular meeting. Upon the roll call the, the vote resulted: 

 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - yes 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak    - yes 

 

Vote Result: 7-0 - 2017 Calendar Adopted 

 

CLOSED MEETING 

 

 A motion was made by Councilor Pelham, and seconded by Councilor Denton, to go into closed 

meeting for (I) discussion of performance of specific appointees of City Council (City Manager), 

and (II) consultation related thereto and other specific legal matters requiring the provision of legal 

advice by counsel retained by City Council, in accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1) 

and (7), respectively. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted:  

 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - yes 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak  - yes 



January 3, 2017 

Reorganizational Meeting 

 

Vote Result: 7-0 Yes 

 
OPEN MEEETING 

 Council convened into open session. councilors responded to the question: “were the only matters 

discussed in the closed meeting public business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting 

requirements; and public business matters identified in the motion to convene into closed session?” Upon 

the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - yes 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak  - yes 

 

Vote Result: 7-0 Yes 
 

ADJOURN 
 

 At 9:09 a motion was made by Councilor Zevgolis, and seconded by Councilor Denton to adjourn 

the Reorganizational Meeting. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - yes 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - yes 

 

Vote Result: 7-0 Meeting Adjourned    
 

 

 

January 24, 2017     /s/Jackie M. Shornak 
DATE           Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
 

 

Ross A. Kearney, III 
Ross A. Kearney III, Clerk 



January 10, 2017 

Regular Meeting 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL HELD JANUARY 10, 2017 
 

A Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Hopewell, Virginia, was held Tuesday, 

January 10, 2017, at 6:30 p.m. in the City Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 North Main Street, 

Hopewell, Virginia. 

 

  PRESENT:  Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 

     Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor      

     Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Councilor 

     Arlene Holloway, Councilor 

     Anthony J. Zevgolis, Councilor 

     Janice M. Denton, Councilor 

     Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor 

 

     Mark A. Haley, City Manager 

     Stefan M. Calos, City Attorney 

     Ross A. Kearney III, City Clerk 

 

ROLL CALL 
 

 Mayor Shornak opened the meeting at 6:30 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 

 

   Mayor Shornak   - present 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - present 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 

   Councilor Holloway  - present 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - present 

   Councilor Denton  - present 

   Councilor Pelham  - present 

 

MOTION:  To Amend/Adopt Agenda 
 

 A motion was made by Councilor Zevgolis, and seconded by Vice Mayor Gore, to amend the 

agenda by removing C-7 under the consent agenda and then adopting the amended agenda. Minutes-none; 

Pending & Action List; Information for Council Review-none; Personnel Change Report; Public Hearing 

Announcements January 24, 2017; Routine Approval of Work Sessions – none  Ordinances on second 

and final reading-none; Routine Grant Approval-none; and, Proclamations/Resolutions/Presentations-

Resolution – none. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

 

 

   Councilor Holloway  - yes 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

 

Vote Result: 7-0 Yes Agenda Amended and Adopted 

 



January 10, 2017 

Regular Meeting 

 

 

 

 

WORK SESSION 

 

WS – 1 Work Session - Rezoning of Property - Presentation from Shane Doran of the Humanities 

Foundation of South Carolina, to provide an overview of two requests for rezoning and answer 

initial questions of City Council. 

 

 Mrs. Tevya Griffin, Director of Neighborhood Assistance and Planning addressed Council 

regarding the presentation they were about to receive from Shane Doran of the Humanities Foundation of 

South Carolina. Mrs. Griffin explained that the purpose of the work session is to provide an overview of 

two requests for rezoning and to answer initial questions from City Council. Mr. Doran explained to 

Council that the Humanities Foundation of South Carolina was requesting from H. F. Quail LLC on 

behalf of Papi Naidu LLC to rezone 8.041 acres for Sub-parcels 245-0040 & 245-0045, also known as 

Crossings North Section 3, Block C - Lot 8 (4.979 acres) and Lot 9 (3.062 acres). His request is to rezone 

the property from B-3, Highway Commercial District to B-3/PUD, Planned Unit Development in order to 

build Multi-family housing set aside for families and to rezone 5.57 acres for Sub-parcels 245-0090 & 

245-0095, also known as Crossings North Section 3, Block C - Lot 19 (2.49 acres) and Lot 20 (3.08 

acres). The requests is to rezone the property from B-3, Highway Commercial District to B-3/PUD, 

Planned Unit Development in order to build apartments set aside for senior citizen living. Mrs. Griffin 

informed Council that the applicant met with members of City Council, Staff, members of the 

Planning Commission, and the City Manager to discuss a proposal to construct senior and family 

multifamily units in Ward 7 in December 2016.   A rezoning from B-3 to PUD is required to 

allow residential units on the properties in question.  The Planning Commission held a public 

hearing on December 1, 2016 to consider citizen comments regarding the matter and the vote 

was 2-2 therefore the request to approve was denied. Planning Commission Member Elliott 

Eliades explained that the Commission even though the vote was tied which denied the approval, 

expressed that the Comp Plan did support this proposal. 

 

 Assistant City Manager Charles Dane requested from Council to hold a Public Hearing 

on January 24th, 2017 at 7:30 p.m. to receive citizen input on the proposed development, A 

motion was made by Councilor Denton, and seconded by Councilor Pelham to waive the rules of 

council and to hold a public hearing on January 24, 2017 at 7:30 p.m. Upon the roll call, the vote 

resulted: 

 
   Councilor Holloway  - yes 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - no 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

 

Vote Result: 6-1 Yes Public Hearing Approved 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 



January 10, 2017 

Regular Meeting 

 Mayor Shornak opened the Regular Meeting at 7:35 p.m. and Roll Call was taken as follows: 

 

Mayor Shornak   - present 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - present 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 

   Councilor Holloway  - present 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - present 

   Councilor Denton  - present 

   Councilor Pelham  - present 

 

Prayer was offered by Pastor David Kim, Full Gospel Korean Church of Hopewell, followed by 

the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

UB-1 Request from Department of Neighborhood Assistance and Planning for a motion to renew 

a motion to approve a request for rezoning parcel #023-0230, Lots 5, 6, 7, & 8, Block 3, Buren 

Homestead Addition, from Residential High Density (R-3) to Limited Commercial District (B-2) 

 

 Mrs. Tevya Griffin, Director of Neighborhood Assistance and Planning addressed Council and 

explained that at Councils regular meeting on November 9, 2016, City Council denied the request, 

with a 3-3 vote, the rezoning request, the motion for which included a condition that 

development could not start on the property prior to January 2018.  

 

 A motion was made by Councilor Denton, and seconded by Councilor Zevgolis, to 

rezone parcel #023-0230 from R-3 to B-2, with the condition(s) that development could not 

begin until January 1, 2018. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 
 

   Councilor Holloway  - no 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

 

Vote Result: 6-1 Yes - Parcel #023-0230 Rezoned from R-3 to B-2, with the condition that 

development may not begin until January 1, 2018 

 

REGULAR BUSINESS 

 

R-1 Regular Business - FY 2014-15 CAFR Update Presentation and introduction of Lance Wolff as 

Interim Finance Director 
 

 City Manager Mark Haley introduced the interim Finance Director Lance Wolff. Mr. Wolff then 

provided Council with an update on the CAFR and stated that the auditors had a few questions and he was 

in the process of providing the requested information. Vice Mayor Gore and Councilor Pelham requested 

through the City Manager for him to provide what the auditors needed and for the City Manager to 

distribute the said information to all of Council. 



January 10, 2017 

Regular Meeting 

 

 

 

R-2 Regular Business - Introduction of the new City of Hopewell Office on Youth Coordinator, 

Shanelle Ebanks. 
 

 Assistant City Manager Charles Dane introduced Ms. Shanelle Ebanks as the new City of 

Hopewell Office on Youth Coordinator. Ms. Ebanks addressed Council and stated that she was excited 

about position and looked forward to overseeing its growth.  

 

R-3 Regular Business - Appropriate Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT)  

revenue-sharing program reimbursements to City Capital Improvements Program (CIP)  

projects for street, sidewalk, and drainage improvements 
 

 Mr. Austin Anderson, Hopewell Capital Projects Construction Manager explained to Council that 

this appropriation is for the current fiscal year, the City will receive reimbursement payments from 

the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) for completing work under a programmatic 

agreement. 

 

 A motion was made by Councilor Pelham, and seconded by Councilor Luman-Bailey, to 

Appropriate VDOT revenue-sharing program reimbursements to CIP projects. Upon the roll call, 

the vote resulted: 

 
   Councilor Holloway  - yes 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

 

Vote Result: 7-0 Appropriation Approved 

 
R-4 Regular Business - Pursuit by Real Estate Assessor of Certificate of Excellence in Assessment 

Administration from the International Association of Assessing Officers 
 

 Ms. Patrizia Waggoner, Hopewell City Assessor addressed Council regarding a future request by 

her department require resources to pursue prestigious Certificate of Excellence in Assessment 

Administration from the International Association of Assessing Officers. Council thanked her for her 

presentation and stated they would address this request during the upcoming budget sessions. 

 

CLOSED MEETING 
 

A motion was made by Councilor Pelham, and seconded by Vice Mayor Gore, to go into closed 

meeting for (I) discussion of specific appointees of City Council (City Manager, Economic Development 

Authority, Recreation Commission, Keep Hopewell Beautiful,  and Virginia Gateway Region), (II) 

discussion concerning a prospective business where no previous announcement has been made of the 

business' interest in locating in the community, and (III) consultation related thereto and other specific 

legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice by counsel retained by City Council, in accordance 

with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1) (5) and (7), respectively. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 



January 10, 2017 

Regular Meeting 

 

    

   Councilor Holloway  - yes 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

 

Vote Result: 7-0 Yes   
 

OPEN MEEETING 
 

 Council convened into Open Session. Councilors responded to the question: “Were the only matters 

discussed in the Closed Meeting public business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting 

requirements; and public business matters identified in the motion to convene into Closed Session?” Upon 

the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

Councilor Holloway  - yes 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

 

Vote Result: 7-0 Yes 
 

MOTION TO EXTEND MEETING 
 

 A motion was made by Councilor Pelham, and seconded by Councilor Zevgolis, to extend the 

meeting pass 10:30 p.m. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

Councilor Holloway  - yes 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

 

Vote Result: 7-0 Yes Meeting Extended 

 

REPORT OF THE CITY CLERK 
 

 The City Clerk reported he was still accepting Talent Bank Resumes (TBR) for ALL Boards and 

Commissions—applications can be found at www.hopewellva.gov. 

 

http://www.hopewellva.gov/


January 10, 2017 

Regular Meeting 

 A motion was made by Councilor Denton, and seconded by Councilor Zevgolis, to reappoint Elliott 

Eliades and Lynda K. Frank to the Economic Development Authority for a term of four (4) years. Upon the 

roll call, the vote  

 

Councilor Holloway  - yes 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

 

Vote Result: 7-0 Yes 

 

 Council requested that the Clerk setup interviews with two applicants for the January 24th,  2017 

City Council meeting. 

 

 A motion was made by Councilor Pelham, and seconded by Councilor Zevgolis, to appoint Rogers 

L. Henry, Terence Doctor and Anthony Sylvester to the Recreation Commission for a term of four (4) years. 

Upon the roll call, the vote  

 

Councilor Holloway  - yes 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

 

Vote Result: 7-0 Yes 
 

  . A motion was made by Councilor Pelham, and seconded by Councilor Zevgolis, to appoint Jean 

Lawson to the Keep Hopewell Beautiful Committee for a term of four (4) years. Upon the roll call, the vote 

resulted: 

 

Councilor Holloway  - yes 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

 

Vote Result: 7-0 Yes 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



January 10, 2017 

Regular Meeting 

A motion was made by Councilor Pelham, and seconded by Councilor Zevgolis, to appoint Fred 

Henry and Councilor Christina Luman-Bailey to the Virginia Gateway region for a term of one (1) year. 

Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

 

 

Councilor Holloway  - yes 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

 

Vote Result: 7-0 Yes 
 

ADJOURN 
 

 Motion was made by Councilor Holloway, and seconded by Councilor Pelham, and unanimously 

passed to adjourn the meeting. 

 

 

January 24, 2017     /s/Jackie M. Shornak 
DATE           Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 

 

 

Ross A. Kearney III 
Ross A. Kearney III, City Clerk  

       



January 24, 2017 

Regular Meeting 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL .HELD JANUARY 24, 2017 
 

A Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Hopewell, Virginia, was held Tuesday, 

January 24, 2017, at 6:30 p.m. in the City Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 North Main Street, 

Hopewell, Virginia. 

 

  PRESENT:  Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 

     Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor 

     Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Councilor 

     Arlene Holloway, Councilor 

     Anthony J. Zevgolis, Councilor 

     Janice B. Denton, Councilor 

     Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor 

 

     Mark A. Haley, City Manager 

     Stefan M. Calos, City Attorney 

     Ross A. Kearney III, City Clerk 

 

 

ROLL CALL 
 

 Mayor Shornak opened the meeting at 6:30 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 

 

   Mayor Shornak   - present 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - present 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 

   Councilor Holloway  - present 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - present 

   Councilor Denton  - present 

   *Councilor Pelham  - absent (Arrived @ 6:40 p.m.) 

 

*(Councilor Brenda S. Pelham arrived at 6:40 PM) 

   

MOTION TO AMEND AGENDA 
 

 A motion was made by Councilor Zevgolis, and seconded by Councilor Denton to amend the 

agenda to the following: Consent Agenda C-1 – Minutes, Councilor Denton will not vote on the approval 

of the 2016 minutes, C-7 – Public Hearing Announcements be removed, C-9 – Presentations – 

Hopewell/Prince George Chamber of Commerce presentation is moved to February 28, 2017, and was 

unanimously passed 6-0 on an Aye vote. 

 

Vote Result: 6-0 Agenda Amended and Adopted 

 

CLOSED MEETING 
 

 At 6:35 p.m. a motion was made by Vice Mayor Gore, and seconded by Councilor Luman-Bailey, 

to resolve to convene into closed meeting for (I) discussion of performance or appointment of specific 

appointees of City Council (City Manager, City Clerk, Economic Development Authority, Board of Zoning 

Appeals, Hopewell Redevelopment & Housing Authority, Recreation Commission - Student Appointee, 

John Tyler Community College Board); (II) discussion concerning a prospective business where no 



January 24, 2017 

Regular Meeting 

 

previous announcement has been made of the business' interest in locating its facilities in the community; 

(III) consultation with legal counsel and briefings by staff members or consultants pertaining to actual 

litigation (Beacon v. JRF), where such consultation or briefing in open meeting would adversely affect the 

negotiating or litigating posture of City Council; and (IV) consultation related thereto and other specific 

legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice by counsel retained by City Council, in accordance 

with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1), (5),  and (7) (two items), respectively. Upon the roll call, the vote 

resulted: 

 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - absent 

   Mayor Shornak   - yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - yes 

 

Vote Result: 6-0 Yes 

 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

 Mayor Shornak opened the regular meeting at 7:30 p.m. Roll call was take as follows: 

 

   Mayor Shornak   - present 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - present 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 

   Councilor Holloway  - present 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - present 

   Councilor Denton  - present 

   Councilor Pelham  - present 

 

PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF 

AMERICA 
 

 Prayer by Pastor Joyce Harville of First Christian Church of Hopewell, followed by the Pledge of 

Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America. 

 

AMEND AGENDA 
 

 A motion was made by Councilor Zevgolis to add under Regular Business, R-3 – Set Joint meeting 

with the Hopewell School Board; R-4 –Virginia Municipal League City Council Vote on Filling two Board 

Vacancies and from the Consent Agenda remove C-5 – Ordinances on Second and Final Reading and move 

it to Regular Business R-5, and seconded by Councilor Pelham. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 



January 24, 2017 

Regular Meeting 

 

   Councilor Holloway  - yes 

 

Vote Result: 7-0 Yes – Agenda Amended and Adopted 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

 

 A motion was made by Councilor Pelham, and seconded by Councilor Luman-Bailey to adopt the 

amended consent agenda: Minutes:  November 22, 2016 through January 10, 2017; Pending List:  None 

Routine Approval of Work Sessions: Neighborhood Assistance and Planning Work Session regarding 

Certified Local Government; Personnel Change Report & Financial Report:  Financial Report; Routine 

Grant Approval: None; Public Hearing Announcement: February 14, 2017 – Disposition of real property  

Information for Council Review: None; Resolutions/Proclamations/Presentations: None. Upon the roll call, 

the vote resulted: 

Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - yes 

 

Vote Result: 7-0 Amended Consent Agenda Adopted 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
  

PH-1 - Request by HF Quail, LLC on behalf of Papi Naidu L.L.C. to amend Zoning Ordinance map 

to permit Planned Unit Development and to permit a Planned Unit Development on Lots 8, 9, 19, and 

20 in Crossing North Subdivision, Section 3, Block C. 
 

  

 

 This was the night advertised for a public hearing to consider to amend Zoning Ordinance map to 

permit Planned Unit Development and to permit a Planned Unit Development on Lots 8, 9, 19, and 20 in 

Crossing North Subdivision, Section 3, Block C..  

 

Tevya Griffin, Director of Planning addressed Council. The Planning Commission recommended 

that the Zoning Ordinance map to permit Planned Unit Development and to permit a Planned Unit 

Development on Lots 8, 9, 19, and 20 in Crossing North Subdivision, Section 3, Block C be denied. 

 

The public hearing was opened at 7:40 p.m. and the following speakers signed up to speak: 

 

Johnny Partin: Was not in favor of this project and requested Council to deny. 

Debbie Randolph:  Was not in favor of this project and requested Council to deny. 

John Royster of Ft. Lee: Ft. Lee was not in favor of this project and requested Council to deny. 

Jim Lupori: Was not in favor of this project and requested Council to deny. 

Eric Jones: Was not in favor of this project and requested Council to deny. 

 



January 24, 2017 

Regular Meeting 

 

Mayor Shornak closed the public hearing at 8:14 p.m. and entertained motions to permit a planned 

unit development on Lots 8,9,19 and 20 in Crossing in North Subdivision. And there being no motions the 

said request died. 

  

A motion was made by Councilor Denton, and seconded by Councilor Holloway to permit a 

planned unit development on Lots 8 and 9 in the Crossing North Subdivision, Section 3, Block C. Upon the 

roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

Councilor Zevgolis  - no 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - no 

   Councilor Denton  - no 

   Councilor Pelham  - no 

   Mayor Shornak   - no 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - no 

   Councilor Holloway  - no 

 

Vote Result: 7-0 No/Denied 

 

A motion was made by Councilor Gore, and seconded by Councilor Denton to permit a planned 

unit development on Lots 19 and 20 in the Crossing North Subdivision, Section 3, Block C. Upon the roll 

call, the vote resulted 

 

Councilor Zevgolis  - no 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - no 

   Councilor Denton  - no 

   Councilor Pelham  - no 

   Mayor Shornak   - no 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - no 

   Councilor Holloway  - no 

 

Vote Result: 7-0 No/Denied 

 

 

 

REGULAR BUSINESS 
 

R-1. Regular Business – FY 2014-15 CAFR Update by Lance Wolff, Interim Finance Director 
 

 Mr. Lance Wolff, Interim Finance Director addressed Council and informed them that all items 

relating to the 2015 CAFR will be addressed this week with the Auditing Firm, the cash on hand is in very 

good shape, payroll is also in good shape, revenues due to the City are in good shape, the long term debt is 

in good shape, the accounts payable are in good shape and the Inter Funds and Transfers are in good shape. 

The Fund Balance has numerous transactions that have no accountability or documentation therefore, he is 

working with the Clerk and other City Departments to rectify. The Pension Accounts are on hold for now 

and he and the City Manager hope to have the 2015 CAFR ready to present toCouncil on February 28, 

2017. 

 

 Councilor Pelham asked if the supporting documents falls on the City Directors? Mr. Wolff said 

no. 

 



January 24, 2017 

Regular Meeting 

 

 Councilor Zevgolis asked what you are doing to find any missing records. Mr. Wolff said he is 

locating them through the City Clerk and the City Departments. 

 

 Vice Mayor Gore asked on who made the reports on the MUNIS Financial System? Mr. Wolff said 

the previous Finance Director. Vice Mayor Gore asked if the cash on hand for 2016 is completed and Mr. 

Wolff said yes and said that City Staff is undergoing more MUNIS Training. 

 

 Councilor Luman-Bailey asked if he or anyone else in the City Administration felt that a Forensic 

Audit was needed. Mr. Wolff said no. 

 

 Mayor Shornak asked if the reconciliation is completed for each month, Mr. Wolff said no. The 

Mayor and the City Manager then requested that all members of staff and the City Council to please not 

disturb the Finance Department until they have competed the 2015 CAFR. Also, the Mayor and Council 

stated that there would be no Budget Meetings until the CAFR is complete. 

 

R-2. – Regular Business - City Council Retreat Dates 

 

 City Manager Mark Haley presented to Council that he had setup the dates for the 

Council Retreat and that it wold be held at the Beacon. The dates of the retreat are March 17th 

and 18th and Ms. Tyler Sinclair would be here on March 8th to interview each Councilor before 

the retreat. Council agreed to the date and to the location 

 

R-3. – Regular Business – Joint Meeting with the School Board 
 

 The Mayor instructed Council to provide the City Manager and City Clerk with available 

dates of when they could meet with the School Board and for the City Manager and City Clerk to 

provide the said dates to the School Board so they could schedule a joint meeting that 

accommodated everyone’s schedule. 

 

 
 

R-4. – Regular Business - Virginia Municipal League City Council Vote on Filling two Board 

Vacancies 
 

 Motion was made by Councilor  Pelham, and seconded by Councilor Zevgolis, to approve and vote 

for Pat Woodbury, Councilmember, Newport News as VML President and Anita James Price, Vice Mayor, 

Roanoke as Vice President. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - yes 

 

Vote Result: 7-0 Approved 
 



January 24, 2017 

Regular Meeting 

 

R-5. – Regular Business – Ordinance on Second and Final Reading – Adopt Rezoning Parcel 023-

0230 from R-2 to B-3: 

 

 A motion was made by Councilor Zevgolis, and seconded by Councilor Pelham to adopt rezoning 

parcel 023-0230 from R-2to B-3. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - yes 

 

Vote Result: 7-0 Ordinance Adopted 

 

CLOSED MEETING 

 

 Council returned Closed Meeting for (I) discussion of performance or appointment of specific 

appointees of City Council (City Manager, City Clerk, Economic Development Authority, Board of 

Zoning Appeals, Hopewell Redevelopment & Housing Authority, Recreation Commission - Student 

Appointee, John Tyler Community College Board); (II) discussion concerning a prospective business 

where no previous announcement has been made of the business' interest in locating its facilities in the 

community; (III) consultation with legal counsel and briefings by staff members or consultants pertaining 

to actual litigation (Beacon v. JRF), where such consultation or briefing in open meeting would adversely 

affect the negotiating or litigating posture of City Council; and (IV) consultation related thereto and other 

specific legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice by counsel retained by City Council, in 

accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1), (5),  and (7) (two items), respectively 

 

  

OPEN SESSION 
 

RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO VIRGINIA CODE § 2.2-3712 (D): WERE ONLY PUBLIC BUSINESS 

MATTERS (I) LAWFULLY EXEMPTED FROM OPEN-MEETING REQUIREMENTS AND (II) IDENTIFIED 

IN THE CLOSED-MEETING MOTION DISCUSSED IN CLOSED MEETING? 

 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - yes 

 

Vote Result: 7-0 YES 
 

 



January 24, 2017 

Regular Meeting 

 

REPORTS OF THE CITY CLERK – BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
 

 A motion was made by Councilor Pelham, and seconded by Councilor Zevgolis, to accept the 

resignation of Emily DeCarlo from the John Tyler Community College Board and Edward P. Henry from 

the Hopewell Redevelopment and Housing Authority. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - yes 

 

Vote Result: 7-0 Resignations Accepted 
 

 A motion was made by Councilor Denton, and seconded by Councilor Zevgolis, to appoint 

Stephen L. Pettler to the Economic Development Authority. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - yes 

 

 A motion was made by Councilor Pelham, and seconded by Councilor Luman-Bailey, to appoint 

Gregory M. Cuffey, Jr., to the Recreation Committee as the Junior Hopewell High School representative 

and to appoint Ann Y. Williams to the John Tyler Community College Board. Upon the roll call, the vote 

resulted: 

 

Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - yes 

 

Vote Result: 7-0 Mr. Cuffey, Jr.  and Ms. Williams Appointed  
 

MOTION TO EXTEND MEETING PASSED 10:30 PM 
 

 A motion was made by Councilor Pelham, and seconded by Vice Mayor Gore, to extend the 

meeting past 10:30 PM. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 



January 24, 2017 

Regular Meeting 

 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - yes 

 

Vote Result: 7-0 Yes Meeting Extended 
 

MAYOR BOARDS & COMMISSIONS APPOINTMENTS 
 

 A motion was made by Councilor Pelham, and seconded by Councilor Luman-Bailey to appoint 

the following to the Mayors Boards and Commissions for a term of two years: 

 

Community Development Block Grant – Councilor Pelham, Councilor Luman-Bailey, Councilor 

Holloway and Mayor Shornak. 

Chamber of Commerce Liaison – Councilor Denton 

Crater Planning District Commission – Councilor Luman-Bailey, Councilor Zevgolis and City Manager 

Mark Haley. 

Finance Committee – Councilor Holloway, Vice Mayor Gore and Finance Director Lance Wolff. 

Investment Policy Committee – Councilor Pelham, Treasurer Terri Batton, Mark Haley, Lance Wolff and 

Commissioner of Revenue Debra Reason. 

MPO – Councilor Pelham and Johnnie Butler 

Legislative Committee: Mayor Shornak, Councilor Zevgolis, Mark Haley  

Riverside Community Corrections Board – Mark Haley, Chief Keohane, Mary K. Martin, Esq. and Nat 

Troth. 

Virginia First Cities Coalition – Councilor Zevgolis and Mark Haley 

Ethics Committee – Councilor Denton and Councilor Zevgolis. 

City/School Board Liaisons – Mayor Shornak and Vice Mayor Gore. 

 

  

 

Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - yes 

 

Vote Result: 7-0 All Member appointed to a two year term. 
 

ADJOURN 
 

 At 11:42 p.m., motion was made by Councilor Zevgolis, and seconded by Councilor Pelham. Upon 

the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

   Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 

   Vice Mayor Gore  - --- (left meeting at 11:05 PM) 

   Councilor Denton  - yes 



January 24, 2017 

Regular Meeting 

 

   Councilor Pelham  - yes 

   Mayor Shornak   - yes 

   Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 

   Councilor Holloway  - yes 

 

Vote Result: 6-0 Meeting Adjourned 
 

             

      Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 

 

 

      

Ross A. Kearney III, City Clerk  

       



 

FINANCIAL 
REPORT 

 













 

PERSONNEL 
CHANGE 
REPORT 



DATE:  April 21, 2017 

TO:  The Honorable City Council 

FROM:  Michelle Ingram / HR Supervisor  

SUBJECT: Personnel Change Report – March 2017    

 

ADDITIONS (Regular FT and PT positions only) 

NAME DEPARTMENT POSITION DATE 
ALLEN JR., TIMOTHY R PUBLIC WORKS GRD MAINT SPEC II 03/01/2017 

AYSCUE, JOSHUA D FIRE FIREFIGHTER 03/16/2017 
BENTON, TAYANA P SOCIAL SERVICES FAM SERV SPEC I 03/01/2017 
BOWEN, KAREN E RECREATION ATHLETIC SITE ASST 03/01/2017 

CRUTCHFIELD, RONNIE C WATER RENEWAL WWT OPERATOR 
TRAINEE 03/15/2017 

EDWARDS, DEANNA R SOCIAL SERVICES FAM SERV SPEC I 03/01/2017 
EVANS, DUSTIN W FIRE FIREFIGHTER 03/01/2017 

GRAY, DEMETRIOUS W RECREATION ATHLETIC SITE ASST 03/01/2017 
HOLLIDAY, STEFAN K PUBLIC WORKS SW MAIN SPEC II 03/01/2017 

WHEELER-PULLIN, CATHY R SOCIAL SERVICES FAM SERV SPEC IV 03/01/2017 
 

 PROMOTIONS            

NAME DEPARTMENT POSITION DATE 
WOODLIEF, KEVIN P PUBLIC WORKS ST MAINT SPEC II 03/15/2017 

 

SEPARATIONS           

NAME DEPARTMENT POSITION DATE 
BARCHANOWICZ, JAMES M POLICE POLICE OFFICER 03/28/2017 

BOYKINS, ANAYEISY DEVELOPMENT PERMIT TECH/ADMIN 
ASST 03/20/2017 

BROWN, REBEKAH C SOCIAL SERVICES FAM SERV SPEC II 03/17/2017 
CLAY, AARON D RECREATION REC PROGRAM SUPV 03/17/2017 

KEARNEY III, ROSS A CITY CLERK CITY CLERK 03/27/2017 
LEWIS, BIKELL  POLICE POLICE OFFICER 03/29/2017 

PARHAM, JORDAN R SOCIAL SERVICES FAM SERV SPEC II 03/07/2017 
PHELPS, HUNTER PUBLIC WORKS L & T SUPERVISOR 03/01/2017 

SOLOMON, MARK V IT NETWORK ENGINEER 03/01/2017 
 
 
CC: Mark Haley, City Manager   Jay Rezin, IT 
 Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager  Dave Harless, Risk/Safety Coordinator 
 Renia Coles, Human Resources Director Carol Scarbrough, Parks & Recreation 
 Debbie Pershing, Senior Executive Assistant  Terry Burd, IT Manager 
 Lance Wolff, Interim Finance Director  
 Dipo Muritala, Accounting Manager 

Kim Hunter, Payroll 



 
PUBLIC HEARING 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 



 

PH-AD 12-13-11 School BudgetResolutionAmendment $1912452 

CITY OF HOPEWELL 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 
The City Council of the City of Hopewell will hold a public hearing on May 2, 2017 at 7:30 p.m. in the Council 

Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 N. Main Street, Hopewell, Virginia, to receive public comments regarding 

the fiscal year 2018 Hopewell school division budget, and the fiscal year 2018 Hopewell city budget. 

 

 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION EMPLOYER 

 



  

INFORMATION 
FOR COUNCIL 

REVIEW 
 











































































  
MINUTES OF THE MEETING 

SCHOOL BOARD OF THE CITY OF HOPEWELL 
March 9, 2017 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
Mr. Christopher Reber called the meeting to order at 5:34 p.m. and Dr. Kim Evans 
delivered the opening prayer. 
 
PRESENT 
Mr. Christopher Reber, Chairman; Ms. Linda E. Hyslop, Vice-Chairman; Mrs. Shirl A. 
Jefferson, member; Dr. Deborah E. Marks, member; and Mr. N. Gregory Cuffey, member, 
were present. 
 
ALSO PRESENT 
Dr. Melody D. Hackney, Superintendent of Schools; Dr. Kim Evans, Assistant 
Superintendent for Instruction;  Mrs. Monique G. Barnes, Director of Finance; Mr. Patrick 
Barnes, Director of Operations; Mrs. Janice Butterworth, Supervisor of Secondary 
Instruction; Mrs. Janel English, Coordinator of Finance; Mr. Thomas Pond, Principal; Ms. 
Peggy Fulton, Assistant Principal; Dr. Pamela Aerni, Teacher; Malik Wheat, Data Manager, 
Hopewell High School;   Mrs. Cindy Harville, Executive Assistant for Finance;  Ms. Caitlyn 
Davis, Public Relations Specialist; Dr. Janet Crawley, VASS Representative; Dr. Bonny 
Wilson, VASS Representative, and one member of the press.  
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
Upon a motion by Dr. Deborah Marks, and seconded by Ms. Linda Hyslop, the School 
Board adopted the early meeting agenda as presented, with all members voting aye. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
A.  Classification & Compensation Study Presentation – VASS 
      Dr. Janet Crawley and Mrs. Bonnie Wilson, VASS representatives, shared with the  
     Board an executive summary of the results of the Classification and Compensation  
     Study and a proposed “Phase In” implementation.  
 
     The following are the top five observed recommendation areas: 
      1.)  Amend School Board Personnel Policy GA to include an overall compensation  
             philosophy statement or specific goals and guidelines related to retaining highly  
            qualified employees. 
      2.)  Analysis current teacher and graded salaries, as compared to the “market  
              competition” and identify areas where employees fall below market minimum. 
      3.)   Improve Classified and Professional salaries by crediting years of experience. 
      4.)  Provide a consistent salary administration policy for adjusting salaries to  
             accommodate promotion, demotion, reclassification and regarding.   
      5.)   Provide well-written and updated job descriptions.  job descriptions.   
 



School Board Minutes 
March 9, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 
      Suggested Phases of Implementation: 
       Phase 1.  Deepen the philosophy and goals in Policy GA, improve salaries beginning  
                    with custodial/cafeteria salaries and approve salary administration  
                    guidelines. 
       Phase  2.  Adjust salary scales. 
       Phase  3.  Continue reconciling years of experience for all employees. 
 
     Dr. Hackney commented that this year’s intent was to present to the Board the costs  
    associated with implementation and should funding become available, or the 
    Board want to restructure the implementation “Phase In”  they would be well  
    informed.  
 
B. Presentation of the 2017-2018 School Board Budget – Mrs. Monique  
      Barnes 
      Mrs. Barnes shared that the General Assembly provided for a 2% raise for SOQ 
     positions and mandated the expected VRS rate increases.  She noted that  
     the additional contribution from the City, excluding the reduction for debt service of 
     $132,750, is still $515,179.  With offset of debt service, the net additional request 
     of the City is $382,429 
 
     She explained that that 56.46% of our funding comes from the state; 27.53% from  
     the City almost 9% from the Federal Government, a little over 1% from other  
     sources, such as tuition from other localities & almost 6% from transfers from other  
     funds to cover debt service. 
 
     Mrs. Barnes noted several changes to expenditure categories such as VRS, healthcare  
     costs and the 2% raise. 
 
     Mrs. Barnes shared that there is a decrease in Pupil Transportation because we are  
     returning that part of the budget with its applicable appropriation to the City. There 
     is also a decrease in Operations & Maintenance because our copier contract has fallen  
     under the O&M category in the past, when it is actually an expense that should fall  
     under technology, and we are adding funds for the technology upgrades. 
 
     Dr. Hackney reminded the Board that the vast majority of our needs are being funded  
     through existing funds and that we are only asking for additional funds to cover the  
     cost on those things we could not have anticipated. 
 
     Mrs. Jefferson asked for an elaboration on the changes in curriculum and the  
     reorganization of the Transportation Department.  Dr. Hackney shared that the  
     changes in curriculum involved purchasing new benchmarks, identifying observation  
     the tools and paying our employees to help with curriculum development.  She also 



School Board Minutes 
March 9, 2017 
Page 3 
 
 
      explained that we wanted to add five new bus driver positions.  
 
      Dr. Marks asked about summer school.  Dr. Hackney said that it was a five week  
      period during the summer that would be for remediation, enrichment and open to all.  
         
C.   Hopewell High School 1st Semester SOL Performance – Dr. Kim Evans 
      Dr. Evans presented two handouts. One handout identified the High School Fall SOL  
      pass rate by subject expanding across four years. The other handout presented the  
      High School SOL Spring Projections specifically identifying the number of students  
      needed to meet the benchmark for each particular subject.   
 
      Mr. Reber asked Mr. Pond to elaborate on the Algebra 1 and Geometry pass rates. 
      
      Mr. Pond explained that there were staff changes and long-term substitute teachers. 
 
      Dr. Marks expressed her excitement over the High School’s expedited retake scores. 
 
      Dr. Aerni, High School Math Coordinator/Coach, shared with the Board a handout  
      on High School Math Projections. She noted that 50% of the children are on or above  
      pace. Discussion ensued. 
 
       Dr. Hackney expressed her confidence in the Math program and team’s plan of 
       improvement. 
 
CLOSED MEETING 
Upon a motion by Mrs. Shirl Jefferson, and seconded by Mr. Greg Cuffey, the School 
Board adopted the following resolution to enter a Closed Meeting at 6:35 p.m., with all 
members voting aye. 
 
Pursuant to §2.2-3711(A) of the Code of Virginia, I move that the Board convene in a 
closed meeting for the purpose of discussing the following specific matters: 
  
 

A. The discussion or consideration of the employment, assignment, appointment, 
promotion, performance, demotion, salaries, or resignation of employees at 
Hopewell High School, Carter G. Woodson Middle School, Dupont Elementary 
School, Harry E. James Elementary School, Patrick Copeland Elementary 
School, Woodlawn Learning Center, Food Service Department, Transportation 
Department and the Central Office, which is authorized by §2.2-3711(A)(1) of 
the Code of Virginia. 

 
At 7:30 p.m. Mr. Reber recessed to the Open Meeting.  



School Board Minutes 
March 9, 2017 
Page 4 
 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Chairman Reber called the Public Hearing to order at 7:33 p.m.  The prayer was delivered 
by Mrs. Shirl Jefferson, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
PRESENT 
Mr. Chris Reber, Chairman; Ms. Linda Hyslop, Vice-Chairman; Mrs. Shirl A. Jefferson, 
member; Dr. Deborah E. Marks; and Mr. Greg Cuffey, member, were present. 
 
ALSO PRESENT 
Dr. Melody D. Hackney, Superintendent; Dr. Kim Evans, Assistant Superintendent for 
Instruction; Mrs. Monique Barnes, Director of Finance/Board Clerk; Mrs. Cindy Harville, 
Executive Assistant for Finance/Deputy Clerk; Dr. Shelia Bailey, Director of Student 
Services; Ms. Cheryl Webb, Director of School Improvement and Data Analysis; Mr. T. 
Patrick Barnes, Director of Operations;  Mr. Burlin Gregory, Director of Organizational 
Innovation, Training and Efficiency;    Dr. Tina M. Barringer, Supervisor of Elementary 
Instruction, Mrs. Betty Ware, Supervisor of Career and Technical Education;  Mrs. Janice 
Butterworth, Supervisor of Secondary Instruction; Mrs. Paula Brumfield, Supervisor of 
Literacy and Federal Programming; Ms. Brookie Fowler, Coordinator of Disability Services, 
Mrs. Janel English, Coordinator of Finance;  Mrs. Tracy Wilson, Coordinator of Educational 
Evaluation and Program Improvement;  Mr. Tommy Pond, Principal, Mr. Shannon 
Royster, Principal;  Ms. Judy Barnes, Principal;  Mr. Byron Davis, Principal;  Mr. Keith 
Crews, Alternative Education Program Coordinator; Ms. Peggy Fulton, Head Start 
Coordinator; Honorees with their families; Ms. Caitlyn Davis, Public Relations Specialist; 
and one representatives from the press.  
 
CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED MEETING 
Upon a motion by Dr. Deborah Marks, and seconded by Mr. Greg Cuffey, the Board 
adopted the attached Certification of Closed Meeting, with all members voting aye.  
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
Upon a motion by Dr. Deborah Marks, and seconded by Ms. Linda Hyslop, the School 
Board adopted the March 9, 2017, Regular Meeting Agenda as presented, with all 
members voting aye.  
 
SPECIAL RECOGINITION 
A.    Keep Hopewell Beautiful Poster Contest Winner – Dr. Tina Barringer and  
       Mrs. Jan Butterworth 
       Dr. Barringer introduced Mr. Silver, the Keep Hopewell Beautiful committee  
       representative, to present gift cards to the winners.  First place received a $50 gift  
       card, 2nd place received at $25 gift and 3rd place received a $10 gift card.  The  



School Board Minutes 
March 9, 2017 
Page 5 
 
 
       following children who placed 1st -3rd in Elementary and Middle School and 1st in  
       High School in the Keep Hopewell Beautiful Poster Contest received gift cards: 
 
      Elementary: 
      1st Place Winner – (Patrick Copeland Elementary-Grade 5) Gabriel James 
      2nd Place Winner – (Patrick Copeland Elementary-Grade 3) Micaiah Myrks 
      3rd Place Winner – (Dupont Elementary-Grade 1)    Emmajen Vargo 
 
      Middle School 
      1st Place Winner (Grade 7) Yamka Mountjoy 
      2nd Place Winner (Grade 7) Cory ‘Ante Jones 
      3rd Place Winner (Grade 7) Teia Bennett 
 
      High School 
      1st Place Winner (Grade 11) Kadair Givens 
  
B.    Presentation of School Highest Monthly Student Attendance Trophy – Dr.  
        Hackney 
        Dr. Hackney recognized the school with the highest student attendance for  
       February of 2017; Dupont Elementary School won the award with a 93.79%  
       attendance rate.  Dr. Kim Evans accepted the award in absence of Ms. Carla  
       Fizer, Principal, on behalf of her students. 
 
C.  Presentation of School Highest Monthly Staff Attendance Trophy – Dr.  
        Melody Hackney 
        Dr. Hackney recognized the school with the highest licensed staff attendance for  
        February of 2017. Woodlawn Learning Center won the award with  
        a 95.647% staff attendance rate.  Ms. Peggy Fulton, Head Start Coordinator, 
        accepted the award on behalf of her staff. 
 
A.    Instructional Spotlight – New Hope Academy 
        Mr. Keith Crews presented a PowerPoint presentation and video clip highlighting 
        the current instructional format at New Hope Academy.  
 

   Mr. Crews shared a brief overview on the status of the programs offered at New  
   Hope Academy to include PBIS, Career and Workforce Services and community  
   connection. Several students and staff shared what New Hope Academy means to  
   them.  

  
B.    Literacy Update – Preliminary Elementary CIP Benchmark Improvement - 
       Mrs. Paula Brumfield and Ms. Cheryl Webb 



School Board Minutes 
March 9, 2017 
Page 6 
 
 

  Mrs. Brumfield shared a PowerPoint presentation updating the Board on the Literacy  
  Lab. She shared that the Literacy Lab‘s mission is to provide children with individual 
  reading instruction in order to close the literacy gap.  

She explained that the percentage of students on/above grade level rose from the 
fall to the mid-year screening in each grade level as indicated by the Mid-year STAR 
Reading Assessments, Grades 2-5. 
  
Ms. Cheryl Webb discussed the preliminary elementary CIP benchmark 
improvements.  She noted that the positive scores project success on the Spring 
2017 SOL tests. 

 
C.    Monthly Instructional Improvement Update:  21st Century Grant– Dr. Kim  
       Evans 
       Dr. Kim Evans updated the Board on the 21st Century Grant.  She noted that the  
      grant was in the amount of $326,632 split between Patrick Copeland Elementary  
      and Carter G. Woodson Middle School.  She reminded the Board that this was a  
      three year continuation grant contingent upon the availability of funds and  
      compliance to the guidelines set forth by the U.S. Department of Education.    
 

Dr. Evans shared that as a part of the program each school provides staff for 
tutoring, instruction, homework assistance, remediation and enrichment and parent 
engagement opportunities.  There are co-coordinators who oversee the program 
and collect the necessary data for DOE reporting.  
 
Ms. Marcy Cook, Coordinator at Patrick Copeland Elementary School, and Mr. Kevin 
Clear, Coordinator at Carter G. Woodson Middle Schools, shared what was 
happening at their school with the 21st Century Leaning Grant. 

  
D.   Math Ruler Project at Carter G. Woodson Middle School – Ms Emily Wood,  
        Ms. Ashley Clear and Students 

   Ms. Emily Ward, Ms. Ashley Clear and students from Carter G. Woodson Middle  
   School presented to the Board their Math Ruler Project.  

 
E.   CTE Five-Year Plan Development and Draft – Ms. Betty Ware 
          Ms. Betty Ware presented a Google slides presentation and booklet updating the  
       Board on the development of the CTE Five-Year Plan.    
 
       Ms. Ware shared that the new profile for Virginia Graduates includes workplace  
       readiness skills with work-base learning components; all components working  
       together to prepare the student to be a successful member of the workforce.  
 



School Board Minutes 
March 9, 2017 
Page 7 
 
 
      Mrs. Jefferson asked if the Child Care program was the only course we have under  
      Human Services at this time.  Ms. Ware explained that there were other Family  
      Computer Science courses offered.  
 
      Mr. Pond reminded the Board that the CTE program was now a part of graduation  
      requirements. 
 
       Dr. Hackney explained that the chart Betty presented was the bare minimum course 
       expansion based on one program and one new FTE per year.  
 
       Dr. Marks and Mr. Cuffey commended Ms. Ware and Mr. Pond on the progress being 
       made in the CTE program.  
  
F.   Hopewell High School Program of Studies – Mrs. Jan Butterworth and Mr.  
       Tommy Pond 
       Mrs. Butterworth and Mr. Pond highlighted the changes to the High School Programs  
       of Studies.  
 
       Mr. Pond and Mrs. Butterworth shared a few of the changes: 
 
      Deleted the outdated registration guidelines for new and transfer students. 
      The NCAA academic requirement for enrollment in standard or advance courses  
          was included in the VHSL eligibility policy. 
      Students will not be able to change courses after the first Friday of school unless  
          there is a course conflict or an error on the schools part.  
       Officially moved to a 10 point grade scale. 
       Opportunity for duel enrollment coursework. 
      Incorporated CTE graduation credential requirement 
      Updated list of diploma seals. 
      Increased Math course sequence options. 

  
 

G.   Finance, Maintenance and Clerk’s Report – Mrs. Monique Barnes 
      Mrs. Monique Barnes, Director of Finance, presented the expenditure portion of the  
      Finance Report and polled the Board for any questions they might have.  
 
      Finance Report 

Mrs. Barnes noted that there are two accounts payable listing for February in your 
board packet.  They are for February 15 and February 28, 2017.  She explained that 
the expenditure reports include payments for: instructional supplies, staff 
development, library books, purchased services, software, software maintenance 
agreements, memberships, maintenance supplies, custodial supplies, medical 
supplies, speech therapy, fuel, legal fees, and utilities.  The final payment was made 



School Board Minutes 
March 9, 2017 
Page 8 
 
 

to Trane for Harry E. James’ HVAC for the cafeteria with funds from the Building/Bus 
Replacement Fund. 

 
As a point of comparison, the operating fund had 46.75% of the FY2017 expenditure 
budget remaining at the end of February 2017 and there was 48.54% of the FY2016 
expenditure budget remaining at the same time last year.  The revenue receipts were 
34.62% of the budgeted receipts for FY2017 at the end of February 2017, and the 
revenue receipts were 32.49% of the FY2016 budgeted receipts at the same time last 
year. 

 
Mrs. Barnes stated that the state supported Average Daily Membership for February 
was 4,018.  The Enrollment by School by Grade report indicates that our actual 
membership on February 28th was 3,994.   The Average Daily Attendance for February 
was 92.63%. 

 
Maintenance Report 
Mrs. Barnes informed the Board that a summary of the maintenance and technology 
support requests from February is included in the Board Packet.  She noted that 308 
support requests were closed during February.  The month ended with 148 
maintenance and technology support requests open. 

Clerk’s Report 
Mrs. Barnes noted that we have recently received policy updates from the VSBA and 
will begin presenting them to Board Members as soon as all are reviewed and 
approved. 

      
PUBLIC COMMENTS  
Zita Whitehead 
2012 Sunnyside Ave 
Hopewell, Virginia  23860 

and 

Daryl Johnson 
13572 Green Spire Ct. 
Chester, Virginia  23836 
 

Ms. Zita Whitehead and Mr. Daryl Johnson, parents of a student at Hopewell High School, 
expressed concern about their inability to resolve issues pertaining to their son who 
attends  Hopewell High School. Ms. Whitehead explained that she had followed the chain 
of command but have been unable to ascertain clear answers. 
 



School Board Minutes 
March 9, 2017 
Page 9 
 
 
Mr. Reber asked Dr. Hackney to circulate among the Board members the letters and 
correspondence pertaining to Ms. Whitehead and Mr. Johnson grievance.   
 
Mr. Reber thanked Ms. Whitehead and Mr. Johnson for coming and sharing.  

CONSENT AGENDA 

Upon a motion by Ms. Linda Hyslop, and seconded by Dr. Deborah Marks, the Board 
adopted the attached Consent Agenda; with the exception of Classified Resolution, 17-
03-C17, which has been rescinded by staff, with all members voting aye.  

 

Minutes 
The minutes of the meetings of February 9, and February 23, 2017 were approved as 
submitted. 
 

Licensed Personnel Resolutions 

17-03-L1   WHEREAS, LTC James McKayhan has announced 
Retirement  his retirement as of July 1, 2017 
James McKayhan 
JROTC Commander  WHEREAS, during his years of faithful and dedicated 
Hopewell  service, he has earned the admiration and respect of her 
High School  friends and colleagues; and 
 
    WHEREAS, he has demonstrated his ability to meet 
   new challenges with enthusiasm; therefore, be it 
 
    RESOLVED, that the School Board of the City of 
   Hopewell expresses its appreciation to James McKayhan 
   for his many years of dedicated service, and contributions 
   to his profession; and be it further 
 
    RESOLVED, that the School Board of the City 
   of Hopewell extends to James McKayhan its best wishes 
   for many years of happiness during his retirement. 
 
17-03-L2   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that LTC Jason Pape, being 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 
LTC Jason Pape appointment as a JROTC Commander, effective July 1, 2017  
   Vice: LTC James McKayhan  
   Assignment:  Hopewell High School 
   Salary:  $69,917.30 



School Board Minutes 
March 9, 2017 
Page 10 
 
 
 
17-03-L3   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval  Superintendent of Schools, that a supplement in the 
of Instructional amount of $50.57 per day be paid to Alexis Maunes for teaching an 
Supplement  additional class at New Hope Academy.  This instruction will be held  
   three days a week. 
 
17-03-L4   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval  Superintendent of Schools, that a supplement in the 
of Instructional amount of $49.61 per day be paid to Eleisha Davis for teaching an 
Supplement  additional class at Hopewell High School. 
 
17-03-L5   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
Approval  Schools, that Rebekah Perkinson be approved as a substitute  
Of Substitute for the 21st Century Learning Grant program at Patrick Copeland  
 Elementary School. 
 
 
17-03-L6            RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval of  Superintendent of Schools, that supplements for the following  
Supplements athletic coaching positions at Hopewell High School be and are 

hereby approved for the 2016-2017 Winter Sports Season. 
 

Position Name Supplement 
Girls Basketball   
Head Coach Jaqueline Edmonds $3300.00 
Indoor Track   
Head Coach Frank Cancino $3300.00 
Assistant Coach Mary Sims $1000.00 
Assistant Coach Johnathan Lewis $1000.00 
Boys Basketball    
Head Coach Elvin Edmonds $4300.00 
Assistant Coach Jared Jenkins $2400.00 
Assistant Coach Dion Robinson $2400.00 
Winter Cheer   
Head Coach Quiana Turner $2200.00 
Assistant Coach Sara Miller $1400.00 
Wrestling   
Head Coach Richard Halas $2200.00 

 
17-03-L7   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval of  Superintendent of Schools, that effective June 19-August 3,2017, 



School Board Minutes 
March 9, 2017 
Page 11 
 
 
Positions for  the following positions be approved for K Kamp funded through  
K Kamp   local K Kamp funds.  
    

Position Maximum 
Number 

Amount per 
Hour 

Maximum No. 
of hours 

Additional 
Kindergarten 

Teachers for K 
Kamp 

9 $40.00 24 

 
17-03-L8   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval   Superintendent of Schools, that effective June 19-August 3,2017, 
Positions for  the following positions be approved for the Stem Summer Camp   
Stem Summer Program. (Funded through a donation from the Evonik Corporation)  
Camp    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
17-03-L9   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval   Superintendent of Schools, that effective June 19-August 3,2017, 
Positions for  the following positions be approved for the Standards of Learning  
Summer   Summer School Program funded through SOL Summer School  
School   stipend funds. 
    

Position Maximum 
Number 

Amount per 
Hour 

Maximum No. of 
hours 

Elementary/ 
Preschool 

Teachers (Math, 
Reading, SPED, 

STEM, 
Instructional 

Coaches) 

36 $40.00 110 

Nurse 1 $30.00 96 
Middle School 6 $40.00 110 

Position Maximum 
Number 

Amount per 
Hour 

Maximum No. of 
hours 

Science, 
Technology, 
Engineering, 

Math 
Teachers 

3 $25.00 55 



School Board Minutes 
March 9, 2017 
Page 12 
 
 

Teacher (Math 
and Reading) 

 

High School 
Teacher (EOC SOL 
areas and 9th and 
10th Reading and 

Math) 

8 $40.00 110 

ESL Teachers 3 $40.00 55 
 
17-03-L10   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval   Superintendent of Schools, that effective June 19-August 3,2017, 
Positions for  the following positions be approved for Regular Academic Summer    
Summer School School Programs. 
 

Position Maximum 
Number 

Amount per 
Hour 

Maximum No. of 
hours 

Middle School 
Teacher 

2 $40.00 110 
 

Secondary 
School 

Teacher 

2 $40.00 110 

 
17-03-L11   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval   Superintendent of Schools, that effective June 19-August 3,2017, 
Positions for  the following positions be approved for theESL Summer School  
ESL Summer  Program funded through local funds. 
School Program . 
 

Position Maximum 
Number 

Amount per 
Hour 

Maximum No. 
of hours 

ESL Teacher 
(K-12) 

3 $40.00 55 

 
17-03-L12   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval  Superintendent of Schools, that the following supplements be paid 
of Instructional to teachers for providing an extra block of instruction at Carter G 
Supplements  Woodson Middle School. 
    

Teacher Amount Frequency 
Kimberly Harrison $53.18 per day 

Meredith Boyd $42.64 per day 
Amy Jarvis $48.28 per day 



School Board Minutes 
March 9, 2017 
Page 13 
 
 
 
17-03-L13   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Amendment to Superintendent of Schools, Resolution 17-02-L1 be and is  
Resolution  hererby amended and that Courtney Harrison be appointed full time 
17-02-L1   nurse at Carter G. Woodson. 
   Salary:  $43,007 
 
17-03-L14            RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval of  Superintendent of Schools, that supplements for the following  
Supplements athletic coaching positions at Carter G. Woodson be and are hereby 

approved for the 2016-2017 Winter Sports Season. 
 

Position Name Supplement 
Boys Basketball   
Head Coach Jake Green $3600.00 
Winter Cheer   
Head Coach Tara Noel $1300.00 
Assistant Coach Sabrina Davis $800.00 

 
17-03-L15            RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval of  Superintendent of Schools, that supplements for the following  
Supplements positions at Hopewell High School be and are hereby approved for 

the 2016-2017 school year. 
 
Activity Name 

 
February Total 

Art Club  Lara Stables $100.00  $200.00  
Band Director Andres Pierce  $  1,250.00  $2,500.00  
Beta Club  Brenda Lee  $    175.00  $350.00  
Book Club Patricia Scanlan  $      50.00  $100.00  
Chess Club  Michael Hayes  $    100.00  $200.00  
Choir Director Alana Marsh  $    400.00  $800.00  
D.E.C.A.  Phyllis Slachter  $    200.00  $400.00  
Drama Coach Derome Smith  $    400.00  $800.00  
F.B.L.A.  Shana Griffin  $      62.50  $150.00  
F.B.L.A.  Cynthia Young  $      62.50  $150.00  
F.C.C.L.A. – Catering  Peggy Henderson  $    100.00  $200.00  
F.C.C.L.A. – Childcare 
Sponsor 

Crystal Barnett  $    100.00  $200.00  

F.C.C.L.A. – Fashion 
Design  

Violet Taylor  $    100.00  $200.00  

French Honor Society Henrie Eya  $      75.00  $150.00  
Freshman Class  Samantha Aultman  $      75.00  $150.00  
Freshman Class  Karen Sheppard  $      75.00  $150.00  



School Board Minutes 
March 9, 2017 
Page 14 
 
 

Jazz Band Director Andres Pierce  $    500.00  $1,000.00  
JROTC  Evelyn Cabrera  $    300.00  $600.00  
JROTC  James  McKayhan  $    300.00  $600.00  
Junior Class  Julie Arntson  $    300.00  $600.00  
Key Club Patricia Scanlan  $    200.00  $400.00  
Leo Club Rachel Tew  $    100.00  $200.00  
Literary Magazine Venessa Bond  $    100.00  $200.00  
National Honor Society Vicki Foster  $    175.00  $350.00  
S.C.A.  Christopher Claassen  $    300.00  $600.00  
SAT Tutoring Michael Hayes  $    600.00  $1,200.00  
Senior Class  Qiana Turner $300.00  $600.00  
Senior Class  Sunny Haden  $    300.00  $600.00  
Skills USA Angela Moseley  $    100.00  $200.00  
Sophmore  Rosa Rodriguez  $    150.00  $300.00  
Spanish Honor Society Rosa Rodriguez  $      75.00  $150.00  
Student 2 Student Club Kelly Kirksey  $      50.00  $100.00  
Student 2 Student Club Hope Hill  $      50.00  $100.00  
T.E.S.A. Sponsor Elton Bennett  $    100.00  $200.00  
V.I.C.A.  Auto Body 
Sponsor 

Chuck Burton  $    100.00  $200.00  

V.I.C.A. Principles of 
Tech.  Sponsor 

Dawn Hurt  $    100.00  $200.00  

Yearbook Sponsor Patricia Scanlan  $    650.00  $1,300.00  

 

Classified Personnel Resolutions 

17-03-C1   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Retirement  Superintendent of Schools, that the retirement of Mary Jamison 
Of   be and is hereby approved, effective March 1, 2017. 
Mary Jamison Assignment:  Transportation  
 
17-03-C2   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Retirement  Superintendent of Schools, that the retirement of Deb Best 
Of   be and is hereby approved, effective May 1, 2017. 
Deb Best  Assignment:  Payroll Clerk 
 
17-03-C3   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Retirement  Superintendent of Schools, that the retirement of Linda Traina 
Of   be and is hereby approved, effective May 1, 2017. 
Linda Traina  Assignment:  School Finance Officer, Hopewell High School 
 
17-03-C4   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 



School Board Minutes 
March 9, 2017 
Page 15 
 
 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Gay Brown be and is  
Full-Time   hereby appointed as Full-Time Bus Driver for the  
Bus Driver  2016-2017 school year, effective February 1, 2017. 
Gay Brown  Vice: Dorothy Johnson 

Salary: $11,007 per year 
 

17-03-C5   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Rebecca Carpenter be and is  
Part-Time   hereby appointed as a Part-Time Bus Aide for the  
Bus Aide  2016-2017 school year, effective February 1, 2017. 
Rebecca  Vice:  Change from Sub 
Carpenter  Salary: $9.47 per hr 

 
17-03-C6   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Paula Bowen be and is  
Part-Time  hereby appointed as a Part-Time Food Service worker for the  
Food Service  2016-2017 school year, effective February 16, 2017. 
Paula Bowen  Vice:  New Position (Lunch Monitor) 

Salary: $8.58 per hr 
 

17-03-C7   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment   Superintendent of Schools, that Vera Archie be and is 
SOL   hereby appointed as SOL Tutor for the 2016-2017 school  
Tutor   year at a reate of $25 per hour not to exceed 25 hours 
    
17-03-C8   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Manuel Jimenez be and is  
Part-Time  hereby appointed as a Part-Time Food Service worker for the  
Food Service  2016-2017 school year, effective February 21, 2017. 
Manuel Jimenez Vice: New Position (Lunch Monitor) 

Salary: $8.58 per hr  
 

17-03-C9    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Mary Walker be and is  
Asst. Manager hereby appointed as an Asst. Manager-Food Service worker for the  
Food Service  2016-2017 school year, effective February 16, 2017. 
Mary Walker  Vice: New Position (PC Dinner Program) 

Salary: $14,341 annually 
 

17-03-C10    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Christina Matthews be and is  
Asst. Manager hereby appointed as an Asst. Manager-Food Service worker for the  



School Board Minutes 
March 9, 2017 
Page 16 
 
 
Food Service  2016-2017 school year, effective February 16, 2017. 
Christina  Vice: New Position (CGW Dinner Program) 
Matthews  Salary: $14,341 annually 

 
17-03-C11    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Crystal Bartlett be and is  
Part-Time  hereby appointed as a Part-Time Food Service worker for the  
Food Service  2016-2017 school year, effective February 15, 2017. 
Crystal Bartlett Vice:  New Position (Lunch Monitor) 

Salary: $8.58 per hr 
 

17-03-C12    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Barbara Winchester be and is  
Part-Time  hereby appointed as a Part-Time Food Service worker for the  
Food Service  2016-2017 school year, effective February 22, 2017. 
Barbara  Vice:  New Position (Lunch Monitor) 
Winchester  Salary: $8.58 per hr 

 
17-03-C13    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Larrnettia Tyler be and is  
Sub   hereby appointed as a Sub Food Service worker for the  
Food Service  2016-2017 school year, effective February 27, 2017. 
Larrnettia Tyler Vice:  Sub 

Salary: $7.85 per hr 
 
17-03-C14    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Jatarra Ruffin be and is  
Part-Time  hereby appointed as a Part-Time Food Service worker for the  
Food Service  2016-2017 school year, effective February 28, 2017. 
Jatarra Ruffin  Vice:  New Position (Lunch Monitor) 

Salary: $8.58 per hr 
 
17-03-C15   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the     
Appointment    Superintendent of Schools that the following be and are hereby  
of   approved as Tutors for the 2016-2017 school year, effective       
Title I Tutors  January 9, 2017. (Funded by Title I, Part A application) 
 

School Tutor Amount per 
Hour 

Maximum No.  
of Hours 

Patrick 
Copeland 

Carnell Myrick $25.00 108 

Patrick Kathy Bond $25.00 108 



School Board Minutes 
March 9, 2017 
Page 17 
 
 

Copeland 
 
17-03-C16           RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval of  Superintendent of Schools, that supplements for the  
Supplements following athletic coaching positions be and are hereby approved for 

the 2016-2017 school year: 
 

Position Name Supplement 
Girls Basketball   
Assistant Coach Sherry Lewis $2400.00 
Assistant Coach Angela Tomlinson $2400.00 
Wrestling   
Assistant Coach Tony Cochran $1400.00 

 
17-03-C17                      REMOVED FROM RESOLUTION 
 
17-03-C18   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that the appointment of Emily  
Teacher Assistant Taylor as a Teacher Assistant be and is hereby approved for the  
Emily Taylor  2016-2017 school year, effective March 6, 2017. 

Vice:  New Position 
   Assignment:  Harry E. James Elementary School 
   Salary:  $15,220 (Step 0, SPED TAI) 
 
17-03-C19           RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval of  Superintendent of Schools, that a supplement in the amount of  
Supplement $1,600.00 paid to Ricardo Lipscomb be and is hereby approved for 

the 2016-2017 Winter Sports Season at Carter G. Woodson Middle 
School. 

 Assignment:  Assistant Boys Basketball Coach 
 
17-03-C20   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
 Approval   Superintendent Schools, that Thelma Brown be approved as a  
Of Substitute substitute for the 21st Century Learning Grant program at Patrick 

Copeland Elementary School. 
 
General Resolutions 

Warrants 
17-03-G1 
Review of Bills 
FY2017 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that bills in the amount of   
$361,864.19 (Operating Fund), $137,536.71 (Cafeteria Fund), and 



School Board Minutes 
March 9, 2017 
Page 18 
 
 

$8,469.08 (Building/Bus Fund) for the February 2017 billing period, 
have been presented and reviewed by the Hopewell City School 
Board.     
 

Miscellaneous   
17-03-G2 
Approval of 
Donations 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the Hopewell School Board accepts, with thanks, 
the following donations:  
• $250.00 from the Optimist Club of Hopewell for the HHS 

baseball team for supplies and equipment 
• $200.00 from Adolph Hofmann of Richmond to the Athletic 

Department at HHS 
• Sixty team meals on two occasions (valued at $780.00) and 

twenty team meals (valued at $130.00) from Subway of 
Hopewell for the HHS boys basketball team 

• $25.00 from the Hopewell Federated Woman’s Club to Carter G. 
Woodson for the Title I Bowl for Books Event 

• $800.00 from Ed Barlow, Sr./Unity Family Services in Petersburg 
to Carter G. Woodson for the football team 

• $25.00 from Rosa Goode of Richmond  to Carter G. Woodson 
for the Title I Bowl for Books Event 

• $50.00 from Delegate Riley Ingram to Carter G. Woodson for 
the Title I Bowl for Books Event 

• $700.00 from JaQuan Winston of North Dinwiddie Co. to Carter 
G. Woodson for the football team 

• $100.00 from the Optimist Club of Hopewell to Carter G. 
Woodson for the Title I Bowl for Books Event 

• Feminine hygiene products, valued at $75.00, from the Phi 
Gamma Zeta Chapter in Hopewell to the clinic at Carter G. 
Woodson 

• $1,000 from the American Legion Post 146 in Hopewell to 
Carter G. Woodson for computers 

• $100.00 from Mark Davis/Grand Slam Residential in North 
Dinwiddie Co. to Carter G. Woodson for the football team 

• $100.00 from Friendship Baptist Church in Hopewell to Carter G. 
Woodson for the Title I Bowl for Books Event  

• $50.00 from Ora & Goldie Bailey of Hopewell to Carter G. 
Woodson for the Title I Bowl for Books Event 

• $200.00 from Edward S. Jones/Quarrels Family Trust to Carter 
G. Woodson for the Title I Bowl for Books Event 

• $5.00 from Angeline Brown of Virginia Beach to Carter G. 
Woodson for the Title I Bowl for Books Event 



School Board Minutes 
March 9, 2017 
Page 19 
 
 

• $500.00 from Spring Clary Atkins of Prince George Co. to the 
HHS Varsity Football Team in memory of David Atkins 

17-03-G3 
Approval of  
Retirement 
Incentive Plan 
FY2018 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the proposed Hopewell Retirement Incentive Plan 
for employees of Hopewell City Public Schools, who are eligible for 
full VRS retirement, be and is hereby approved for an additional 
year with an effective date of July 1, 2017.    

17-03-G4 
Approval of 
Contract 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools that the contract for benefit consulting services be and is 
hereby awarded to OneDigital Health and Benefits for the 2017-
2018 school year. 

17-03-G5 
Approval of 
Surplus Items 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools that the following items be and are hereby declared surplus: 
 
24 dining room tables from Patrick Copeland Elementary School 
  

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
A.    Fine Arts Festival and Family Resource Gala 
       Dr. Hackney informed the Board and public of the Fine Arts Festival and Family  
       Resource Gala scheduled for Saturday, March 25, 2017, 8:30 a.m. to 12:30 p.m., at  
       Hopewell High School. 
        
B.    Elementary School Science Fair 
       Dr. Hackney informed the Board and public that March is Science Fair month for the  
       elementary schools. Dr. Hackney provided the dates and times for the fairs at each  
       elementary school location. 
 

            Dr. Hackney invited the Board to attend the annual choir performance and cabaret 
taking place on Saturday, March 18, 2017, 6:00 p.m., in the Hopewell High School 
cafeteria.  

 
        Dr. Hackney reminded the Board of the Budget Approval Meeting scheduled for 

Thursday, March 16, 2017, at 5:30 p.m. 
        
C.    Business Community Forum Follow-up        
       Dr. Hackney invited the Board to a breakfast on Wednesday, April 5, 2017, at 9:00  
       a.m. at Hopewell High School as a follow-up to the last business forum.  She  
       informed the Board that TCI Solutions will be the special guest.  
 



School Board Minutes 
March 9, 2017 
Page 20 
 
 

TCI Solutions is a company that works with big businesses who pay them to ensure 
and guarantee a skilled group of graduates for entry level positions.  TCI will come 
in to schools to either work with the staff or they will run the programs in the 
evenings or Saturdays. They provide this service free-of-charge to the schools. 

     
INFORMATION ITEMS - None 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION- None 
 

Board Member Comments 
Mrs. Shirl Jefferson said that it was good to be back and she felt like everybody was 
moving in a positive direction.  She commented that both kids and adults are engaged.  
She thanked everyone for their work and wished all a great evening. 
 
Ms. Linda Hyslop shared how she enjoyed seeing several of our students “shadowing” 
business and community leaders at her last Rotary Club meeting.  She commented how 
exciting it is that the school division is working hard to make sure all students are 
successful. 
 
Dr. Deborah Marks commented that it was an enlightening evening. She shared her 
thanks and congratulations to the administrators for all they are doing for the students. 
She also commended Dr. Hackney for all she does for the schools.  
 
Mr. Greg Cuffey shared his amazement at the performance of the students.  He also said 
he was proud of all the hard work and that it does not go unseen.   
 
Mr. Christopher Reber thanked everyone for their report presentations; he expressed his 
gratefulness for the progress.  He shared that the joint meeting with City Council was 
positive and thanked everyone for their kind tokens of appreciation to the Board on 
Board Members Appreciation Month.  
 
Chairman Reber adjourned the meeting at 9:39 p.m. 
 
In witness whereof I set my signature this 6th day of April, 2017. 
 
 
                                          Chairman:  ________________________________ 
             School Board of the City of Hopewell 
 
 
Attest: _________________________ Clerk 



MINUTES OF THE MEETING 
SCHOOL BOARD OF THE CITY OF HOPEWELL 

March 16, 2017 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Reber called the meeting to order at 5:45 p.m. and the opening prayer was 
delivered by Mr. Reber. 
 

PRESENT 
Mr. Christopher G. Reber, Chairman; Ms. Linda E. Hyslop, Vice-Chairman; Mrs. Shirl A 
Jefferson, member, were present. Mr. N. Greg Cuffey, member; and Dr. Deborah E. 
Marks, member, were absent. 
 
ALSO PRESENT 
Dr. Melody D. Hackney, Superintendent of Schools; Mrs. Monique G. Barnes, Director of 
Finance; and Ms. Caitlyn Davis, Public Relations Specialist.  
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
Upon a motion by Mrs. Shirl Jefferson, and seconded by Ms. Linda Hyslop, the School 
Board adopted the early meeting agenda as presented, with all members present voting 
aye. 
 
APPROVAL OF FY2018 SCHOOL BOARD BUDGET- Discussion 
Dr. Hackney and Mrs. Barnes provided copies of the proposed FY2018 Budget.  Mrs. 
Barnes mentioned that since salaries drive much of the budget’s expenditures, the pay 
scales were also presented as an integral part of the budget.  The scales represent a 2% 
raise for all employees and incorporate the scale adjustments for custodial staff and food 
service employees, as recommended in Phase I from the Classification and 
Compensation Study. Ms. Hyslop asked if anything had changed since the last meeting, 
especially with concerns for possible changes in the Federal budget.  Dr. Hackney and 
Mrs. Barnes replied that the budget had not changed since the last meeting.  Mrs. 
Barnes also advised that there was a contingency plan should there be a revenue deficit 
from the state or federal funding, as was the case in FY2017. 
 
TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT INTERN PROPOSAL 
Dr. Hackney shared with the Board a program that she had experienced success in 
Charlotte County, where students were providing services to the Technology Department 
as interns.  She mentioned that HCPS is currently supplying 2 students.  Dr. Hackney 
requested the Board’s permission to allow the participating students access to the School 
Board owned vehicles as transportation between schools.  She advised that our 
insurance carrier had been consulted and had approved, providing the children have 
clean driving records.  Ms. Hyslop also mentioned that it would be a good idea to have 
the students undergo the same background checks as would school employees.  Dr. 
Hackney agreed and the Board gave its consensus to the program. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
General Resolutions - Action Item 
 
 

16-03-G13 
Approval of  
FY2018 School 
Budget 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the FY2018 School Budget, be and is hereby  
approved as follows:    
 

                                     Bus/Building Replacement          $     2,377,447 
                                     School Operating Fund               $   51,997,255 
                                     Textbook Fund                          $       650,000 
                                     Food Service Fund                     $     3,269,351 
                                     Total                                         $  58,294,053  

Upon a motion by Ms. Linda Hyslop and seconded by Mrs. Shirl Jefferson, the Board 
approved the action item for the FY2018 Budget, with all members present voting aye.  
Prior to consideration of the resolution, Mrs. Jefferson read the attached declaration of 
objectivity and independence indicating that she was able to make impartial decisions 
regarding the division’s budget.  The signed declaration is included as a part of these 
minutes. 
 
 

 

 
CLOSED MEETING 
Upon motion by Mrs. Shirl Jefferson, and seconded by Ms. Linda Hyslop the Board 
adopted the following resolution to enter a Closed Session at 6:05 p.m., with all members 
present aye. 
 
Pursuant to §2.2-3711(A) of the Code of Virginia, I move that the Board convene in a 
closed meeting for the purpose of discussing the following specific matters: 
 

A. The discussion or consideration of the employment, assignment, appointment, 
promotion, performance, demotion, salaries, or resignation of employees at 
Hopewell High School, Carter G. Woodson Middle School, Dupont Elementary 
School, Harry E. James Elementary School, Patrick Copeland Elementary 
School, Woodlawn Learning Center, Food Service Department, Transportation 
Department and the Central Office, which is authorized by §2.2-3711(A)(1) of 
the Code of Virginia.  

 
Mr. Reber recessed the Closed Meeting at 6:17 p.m.  
 
CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED MEETING 
Upon a motion by Ms. Linda Hyslop and seconded by Mrs. Shirl Jefferson, the Board 
adopted the attached Certification of Closed Meeting, with all members present voting 
aye. 
 
Chairman Reber adjourned the meeting at 6:19 p.m. 
 
 
In witness whereof I set my signature this 6th day of April, 2017. 
 
 



 School Board Minutes 
March 16, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 
 
     Chairman: _________________________________ 
              School Board of the City of Hopewell 
 
 
 
Attest: _________________________ Clerk 



 
PROCLAMATIONS 

§ 
RESOLUTIONS  

§ 
PRESENTATIONS 

 



Freedom Support 
Center
“Proudly Serving”  



Overview
Mission: To serve those who risked their lives for the            
protection of our freedom and love of their country.

Vision: To serve a as benchmark facility of highly      
collaborative public-private sponsored services. 

Background: Freedom Center is an initiative of the     
FLITE Foundation (Freedom Legacy Inspired Team Efforts),         
a 501(c)(3) non-profit organization.



Who do we serve?





Services 
 Compensation Filing

 Job Readiness 

 Document Retrieval

 Housing

 Education Benefits

 VA Eligibility & Enrollment

Mental Health Support

 Transportation



Community Support

 Outreach

 Special Activities

 Partnerships

 Donations



Onsite Partners



Quick Stats
 In 2016 FSC served 1,709 non-duplicated individuals

57.2% Petersburg Residents (*zip code reallocation 
included)

15.3% Hopewell Residents

9.2% Colonial Heights Residents

8.8% Prince George Residents

 Average 20 clients per day (new & repeat)

 81% reported success rate for services rendered 



Contact Information

Freedom Support Center
32 W. Washington Street

Petersburg, Virginia 23803

(804) 451-0205 phone
(804) 835-9172 fax

website: www.veteransfsc.com



 

Proclamation 
O F F I C E  O F  M A Y O R  J A C K I E  M .  S H O R N A K  

City of Hopewell, Virginia 

 

Suzanne Beauvoir Jackson, FACHE 
 
 

Whereas, Ms. Jackson joined John Randolph Medical Center, an HCA hospital, July 7, 
2013;and 
 

Whereas, Under her leadership, John Randolph has provided area residents with advanced 
medical technologies and contemporary approaches to their treatments; and 
 

Whereas, Ms. Jackson’s strong commitment to community service and professional development 
has been a huge benefit to John Randolph and the City of Hopewell.  Over her career 
she has worked many organizations including: United Way, Rotary Club, Fairfax 
Partnership for Youth, Delta Sigma Theta Sorority Inc., CrisisLink, the Northern 
Virginia Area Health Education Center, Virginia State University Industry Council 
and AHA’s Institute for Diversity in Healthcare Management Board of Directors. 
Additionally, she has participated with local and statewide leadership and advocacy 
programs such as Leadership Arlington and Lead Virginia 
 

Whereas, Ms. Jackson led the opening of a new wellness pavilion in 2014 which provides 
enhanced care for individuals seeking behavioral health services; an ER renovation 
project to increase and improve overall services in the hospital’s emergency 
department, and a hospital beautification project to provide a new face to the hospital 
through landscaping and parking lot updates; and was a leader  in the development of 
the new free standing Tri-Cities ER to be located in Prince George Co. which will 
compliment the JRMC and provide critical emergency health care service to the entire 
region and was a valued partner in supporting the City of Hopewell in its Riverwalk 
Project. 
 

Whereas, A fellow in the American College of Healthcare Executives she has continued to 
promote excellence in healthcare management through involvement with local service 
organizations such as Delta Sigma Theta Sorority, Crisis Link and Virginia State 
University’s Business Council.  
 

Whereas,  
Ms. Jackson, as CEO of John Randolph, and as an individual, has given much to 
the City of Hopewell, and the City wants to show its appreciation of her efforts. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, I Jackie M. Shornak,, Mayor of the City of Hopewell, Virginia, do hereby proclaim 
that this expression of appreciation and gratitude be made a part of the permanent record of the City; and that a copy 
of this proclamation be presented to Suzanne Beauvoir Jackson. 

 
N WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed 
 the Great Seal of the City of Hopewell in the Commonwealth of Virginia  
 this __th day of April, 2017. 

 
  

             
                          Jackie M. Shornak 

Mayor of the City of Hopewell 

I 



 

Proclamation 
O F F I C E  O F  M A Y O R  J A C K I E  M .  S H O R N A K  

City of Hopewell, Virginia 
 

 
 
 
 

Whereas, regardless of who they are or the circumstances of their birth, every child deserves 
care and to be kept safe from harm; and  

Whereas, during Child Abuse Prevention Month, Virginians are reminded of the courage it 
takes to raise a child and that fundamental human rights means living free from 
violence and abuse; and 

Whereas, child abuse is considered to be one of our nation’s most serious public health 
problems, with scientific studies documenting the link between the abuse and neglect 
of children and a wide range of medical, emotional, psychological, and behavioral 
disorders; and 

Whereas, child abuse can disrupt early brain development, and serious chronic stress can 
impair the development of nervous and immune systems; and 

Whereas, keeping children safe from abuse means playing an active role in their lives, having 
check-ins, and teaching them the warning signs of abuse and how to protect 
themselves; and 

Whereas, empowering our children and providing them with safe places to live, learn, and play 
is vital to keeping them safe from harm; and 

Whereas, Hopewell remains committed to sustaining safe, nurturing, and supportive 
environments for families raising children; and 

Whereas, effective child abuse prevention programs succeed because of partnerships between 
families, social services agencies, schools, faith communities, civic organizations, law 
enforcement agencies, and the business community; and 

Whereas, displaying a pinwheel during the month of April will serve as a positive reminder that 
together we can prevent child abuse and neglect, and in doing so keep children safe; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jackie M. Shornak, the Mayor of the City of Hopewell, proclaim the month of 
April, 2017 as Child Abuse Prevention Month and I call this observance to the attention of all our citizens. 

 
N WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed 
 the Great Seal of the City of Hopewell in the Commonwealth of Virginia  
 this 25th day of April, 2017. 

 
  

             
                          Jackie M. Shornak 

Mayor of the City of Hopewell 

I 



 

Proclamation 
O F F I C E  O F  M A Y O R  J A C K I E  M .  S H O R N A K  

City of Hopewell, Virginia 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Whereas, safeguarding the health, safety, and welfare of citizens is paramount to all 
building safety professionals in Hopewell, Virginia; and 
 

Whereas, protecting Hopewell’s buildings is the responsibility of building safety 
professionals who work to ensure our buildings are affordable and safe to 
occupy; and 
 

Whereas, Hopewell building safety professionals create and influence our built 
environment through the consensus development and implementation of the 
highest quality codes; and 

Whereas, Hopewell’s continuing efforts to embrace emerging opportunities for 
integrating sustainability, energy efficiency, environmental stewardship, and 
enhanced resilience into the construction process give us confidence that 
structures throughout the City are durable, reliable, and ready for the future; 
and 

Whereas, the theme for Building Safety Month, “Code Officials – Partners in 
Community Safety and Economic Growth,” gives all Virginians the 
opportunity to help raise awareness of the importance of building and fire 
safety regulations, and encourages the continued use of new technologies in 
the construction industry that drive economic growth throughout the 
Commonwealth; and 

Whereas, in observance of Building Safety Month, we should consider home and 
community improvement projects that promote safety and sustainability and 
acknowledge the essential services provided by Hopewell’s building safety 
community; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jackie M. Shornak, the Mayor of the City of Hopewell, proclaim 

the month of May, 2017 as Building Safety Month and I call this observance to the attention of all 
our citizens. 
 
 

N WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed 
 the Great Seal of the City of Hopewell in the Commonwealth of Virginia  
 this ___ day of April, 2017. 

 
  
 
 

             
                          Jackie M. Shornak 

Mayor of the City of Hopewell 

I 



 

Proclamation 
O F F I C E  O F  M A Y O R  J A C K I E  M .  S H O R N A K  

City of Hopewell, Virginia 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Administrative Professionals Week 
Whereas, Administrative professionals play an essential role in coordinating the office 

operations of businesses, government, educational institutions, and other 
organizations; and 
 

Whereas, the work of administrative professionals today requires advanced knowledge and 
expertise in communications, computer software, office technology, project 
management, organization, customer service and other vital office management 
responsibilities; and 
 

Whereas, Administrative Professionals Week is observed annually in workplaces around the 
world to recognize the important contributions of administrative support staff and is 
sponsored by the International Association of Administrative Professionals; and 

Whereas, the Administrative Support Personnel for the City of Hopewell are advancing their 
careers and the profession as a whole through a purposeful commitment to and a 
passion for their careers through improving and expanding their skills. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jackie M. Shornak, the Mayor of the City of Hopewell, proclaim 

this as Administrative Professionals Week and Wednesday April 26th as Administrative Professionals 
Day, saluting the valuable contributions of administrative professionals in the workplace. Further, I 
call on all employers to support continued training and development for administrative staff, 
recognizing that a well-trained workforce is essential for success in today’s business world. 
 

N WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed 
 the Great Seal of the City of Hopewell in the Commonwealth of Virginia  
 this 25TH day of April, 2017. 

 
  

             
                          Jackie M. Shornak 

Mayor of the City of Hopewell 

I 



Congressional Cities
Conference Report



____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Y N       Y N  

□ □ Mayor, Jackie M. Shornak Ward #7    □ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2  

□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4   □ □ Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3 

□ □ Councilor Christina Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5  
     □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

       

  

  
 

 

 

 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 
 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 

Culture & Recreation  

Economic Development 

Education 

Housing 

Safe & Healthy Environment  

None (Does not apply) 

 

Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          

Presentation-Boards/Commissions  

Unfinished Business            

Citizen/Councilor Request      

Regular Business 

Reports of Council Committees  
 

 

Action: 

Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 

Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 

Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 

Set a Public Hearing       

Approve on Emergency Measure  

 

    

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Annual report regarding the operation of Hope 

House. 

 

ISSUE:  In FY 2016-17, the City allocated $15,000 in support of Hope House – a faith based, 

community-driven, volunteer service program that addresses the needs of those who are homeless, 

at-risk of homelessness, and/or those financially insecure.  The City’s allocation is used to lease 

commercial space at 712 W. Broadway, allowing for the operation of the Seasonal Shelter 

(November thru March) and the provision of year-round support services provided by the 

community.  The Shelter and support services are consistent with, and crucial to the goal of ending 

homelessness in the City. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Report Only 

 

TIMING: N/A    

 

BACKGROUND:   This past winter was the third season of operation for the Seasonal Shelter. 

The shelter operates under the broader umbrella of Hope House which provides a wide range of 

services to individual who are homeless or at risk of homelessness.  Services include assistance 

pertaining to housing, food, employment, clothing, financial support and legal matters. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   None 

 

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:   None 

STAFF:   Ray Spicer, Dept. of Social Services 

SUMMARY: This past year, Hope House has successfully operated the City’s Seasonal Shelter, 

serving a total of 54 individuals.  Additionally, Hope House has provided numerous 

supportive services related to employment; permanent housing; financial/ 

emergency assistance; and food assistance toward the goal of ending homelessness in 

Hopewell. 

 







Councils
Large Cities Council

First-Tier Suburbs Council
*Military Communities Council

Small Cities Council
University Communities Council

Council on Youth, Education, and Families

Committees 
Community & Economic Development, 

Energy, Environnent & Natural Resources
*Finance, Administration & 

Intergovernmental Relations
Human Development

Information Technology & Communications 
Public Safety & Crime Prevention 

Transportation & Infrastructure Services

Councils
Large Cities Council

First-Tier Suburbs Council
*Military Communities Council

Small Cities Council
University Communities Council

Council on Youth, Education, and Families

Federal Advocacy



Recent Highlights



December 2015 U.S. Senate joined the House
to pass a five-year, $305 billion transportation
bill, representing the first time Congress has
passed a long-term national transportation
funding bill in more than a decade. The "Fixing
America's Surface Transportation (FAST) Act"
(H.R. 22) restores certainty to a national surface
transportation program that has been strung
along by more than 35 stopgap extensions, and
includes provisions that provide local decision-
makers with greater access to federal
transportation dollars.

https://www.congress.gov/bill/114th-congress/house-bill/22?q=%7B%22search%22:%5B%22%5C%22hr22%5C%22%22%5D%7D&resultIndex=1


#FightTheCuts

#CitiesLead2016

#GoLocal

“CITIES ARE THE FOUNDATION FOR 
THE NATION’S SUCCESS. THEY ARE 

WHERE AMERICA COMES TOGETHER 
TO LIVE AND TO WORK, TO DO 

BUSINESS, TO PLAY, AND TO 
CELEBRATE BOTH OUR DIVERSITY AND 
OUR COMMON VALUES AND BELIEFS.”

Federal Priorities



2017 National 
Municipal Policy and Resolutions

by Committee 

Community & Economic Development- 1

Energy, Environnent & Natural Resources- 6

Finance, Admin. & Intergov. Relations- 6

Human Development- 6

Information Technology & Communications – 3

Public Safety & Crime Prevention- 8

Transportation & Infrastructure Services- 3



StartUp In A Day
Mayor’s Challenge to End Veteran Homelessness

Transportation Investment Generating Economic Recovery Grant
NLC Service Line Warranty Program

Let’s Move! Cities, Town and Counties
TechHire

CGI City Video Showcase
U.S. Dept. of Health and NLC; All- Stars Program

U.S. Communities Government Purchasing Alliance

50,000
National & State Recognition
2 Million for Riverwalk
Annul Revenue 
Nation Award/Grants/Tech Asst.
Technical Assistance 
Free
Grants/Tech Asst.
Nat. Gov. Purchasing Coop.

Vice Mayor Gore’s NLC Initiatives 



National League of Cities nonpartisan assessment is that President Donald Trump’s “skinny 
budget” proposes more than $50 billion in domestic spending reductions across the board, 
and would outright eliminate dozens of programs important to cities and towns. a quick 
scan of programs proposed for elimination revels what is at stake for all American cities, large 
and small:

• Community Development Block Grants (CDBG)
• HOME Investment Partnerships Program for Affordable Housing
• Economic Development Administration Grants (EDA)
• Transit New Starts for Public Transportation
• TIGER Grants for Public Transportation Projects
• Minority Business Development Agency
• Community Development Financial Institutions (CDFI) Grants
• Low Income Home Energy Assistance (LIHEAP)
• National Endowment for the Arts (NEA)
• Pre-Disaster Mitigation Grants
• State Criminal Alien Assistance Grants
• Community Services Block Grant (CSBG)
• Weatherization Assistance Program
• The Clean Power Plan



“City Leaders Will Fight the Cuts Because 
Cities Are Worth Fighting For”

Of the total City of Hopewell 
consolidated budgets

(City, Schools, and all agencies) 
which totals $167,358,245

approximately 6.06% 
$10,149,827

is direct Federal Funds Support.



January 2017 Highlight

The Virginia Municipal League (VML) voted to participate
in NLC’s affiliate program. 

The program will allow all member localities under 20,000 in 
population would be considered NLC affiliates with the ability to 

receive federal updates, participate in policy committees, and attend 
NLC programs at member rate

Virginia has 190 Incorporate Towns &  38 Independent Cities

Once in affect, all but 13 Virginia localities will be member localites.

Virginia will be the one of a few states to have full locality membership. 
. 



#FightTheCuts
www.NLC.org



 
PH-1 

 



 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor K. Wayne Walton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Mayor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony J. Zevgolis, Ward #3   □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 

 
  

       
  

 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Hold a public hearing to consider citizen comments to amend 
the Hopewell Zoning Ordinance to allow accessory structures in the B-3 District by a Conditional Use 
Permit issued by City Council.  
 
ISSUE: Accessory structures are not allowed in the B-3 District.  The City is recommending accessory 
structures be allowed in the B-3 District if allowed by City Council with the issuance of a Conditional 
Use Permit.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  City Staff recommends Council consider citizen comments regarding the 
zoning ordinance amendment.  
 
TIMING:   Public Hearing - April 25, 2017  
 
BACKGROUND:  Accessory Structures are not currently allowed in the B-3 District. This amendment 
would allow property/business owners to place accessory structures in the B-3 District if not seen from 
the public right-of-way, if approved by a Conditional Use Permit by City Council.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   None at this time 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:   Staff Report 
      Recommended Amendment 
             
STAFF:         Tevya W. Griffin, Director, Neighborhood Assistance & Planning 
                       
  

                 
                  

 



  

 
 
ZONING ORDINANCE  Page 11: 1 

 
ORDINANCE 2017-XX 

 
 

Article XI 
Highway Commercial District (B-3) 

 

STATEMENT OF INTENT 
This district is intended to provide sufficient space in appropriate locations for a wide variety of 
commercial and miscellaneous service activities, generally serving a wide area and located 
particularly along certain existing major thoroughfares where a general mixture of commercial 
and service activity now exists, but which uses are not characterized by extensive warehousing, 
frequent heavy trucking activity, open storage of materials or the nuisance factors of dust, odor, 
and noise associated with manufacturing. This includes such uses as retail stores, banks, business 
offices, drive-in restaurants and automobile sales and service facilities. 

 

A. USE REGULATIONS 
Structures to be erected and land to be used shall be for the following uses: 

1. Accessory Structures, not seen from the public right-of way, with a Conditional Use 
Permit issued by City Council.  

2. Accounting and tax preparation services. 

3. Apartments, on the second and subsequent floors of commercial/office use, provided that 
each unit contains at least six hundred (600) gross square feet. 

4. Appliance sale and repair. 

5. Assisted living facility. 

6. Automobile and truck sales and service establishments, and rental agencies, provided that 
vehicles lifts and pits, dismantled and wrecked automobiles and all parts and supplies be 
located within a building enclosed on all sides and provided that all service and repair of 
motor vehicles be conducted in a building enclosed on all sides. 

7. Automotive parts stores. 

8. Bakery. 

9. Barber shops and beauty parlors. 

10. Bookstores, except Adult bookstores. 

11. Building supplies and service with storage under cover. 

12. Car washes. 

13. Catering and prepared foods. 

14. Causal and formal wear stores. 

15. Churches. 



  

 
 
ZONING ORDINANCE  Page 11: 2 

16. Cigarette, cigar and tobacco retail distributor. 

17. Clubs and lodges with a Special Exception issued by the Board of Zoning Appeals. 

18. Commercial banks and financial institutions, not to include check cashing or payday loan 
establishments. 

19. Compounding, assembly or treatment of woods and cabinet making with a Special 
Exception issued by the Board of Zoning Appeals. 

20. Contractors’ establishments and display rooms, where business is conducted entirely 
within a completely enclosed building and where there is no storage of supplies or 
equipment outside the building. 

21. Convenience stores, with gasoline. 

22. Convenience stores, without gasoline. 

23. Craft Beer/Tap Room. 

24. Day nurseries and child care centers. 

25. Delicatessen. 

26. Driver’s education establishment. 

27. Fire stations and rescue squads. 

28. Fitness center or gym. 

29. Florist. 

30. Funeral homes. 

31. Furniture store. 

32. Grocery store. 

33. Hardware and feed store. 

34. Hospitals. 

35. Hotels and motels. 

36. Ice cream parlor. 

37. Institutions of higher learning. 

38. Insurance agency. 

39. Laundry and dry cleaning. 

40. Libraries. 

41. Machinery rental, sales, and service provided that service is conducted in a completely 
enclosed building; unless a Conditional Use Permit is issued by City Council.  

42. Medical and dental offices. 

43. Microbrewery/Restaurant. 

44. Municipal and private utilities. 



  

 
 
ZONING ORDINANCE  Page 11: 3 

45. Museums and art galleries. 

46. Newspaper office buildings, including printing and publishing facilities incidental to such 
uses. 

47. Night clubs and dance halls. 

48. Nursing homes. 

49. Off-street parking as required in Article XVIII of this ordinance. 

50. Office and business supply store. 

51. Parking garages and parking lots. 

52. Pawn shop, with a Conditional Use Permit issued by City Council. 

53. Pest control and extermination services. 

54. Pet shops and supplies, excluding boarding kennels. 

55. Pharmacy. 

56. Philanthropic and charitable institutions. 

57. Plant nurseries and greenhouses. 

58. Radio or television broadcasting stations, studios, or offices. 

59. Repair services or businesses provided that all repairs take place within a completely 
enclosed building.  

60. Restaurants. 

61. Real Estate Agency. 

62. Sports facilities, indoors. 

63. Sports facilities, outdoors, with a Conditional Use Permit issued by City Council. 

64. Sporting goods and hunting supply stores. 

65. Schools, special. 

66. Self-Service Storage Facility, with Conditional Use Permit. 

The following conditions shall apply to all self-storage facilities: 

a. All operations, activities and storage shall be conducted within a completely 
enclosed building; 

b. The leasing office must have a brick façade; 

c. Commercial activities being run in and out of storage units shall be prohibited; 

d. Storage of feed, fertilizer, grain, soil conditioners, pesticides, chemicals, 
explosives and other hazardous materials, asphalt, brick, cement, gravel, rock, 
sand and similar construction materials, inoperable vehicles, or bulk storage of 
fuels shall be prohibited; 

e. Self-service storage facilities may not be located on land abutting a residential 
district or use; 



  

 
 
ZONING ORDINANCE  Page 11: 4 

f. Storage of boats, recreational vehicles, and motor vehicles shall be prohibited; 
and 

g. All building façades abutting public right-of-ways shall have a brick façade. 

67. Tailor and seamstress. 

68. Tattoo Parlors and Body Piercing Establishments, with a Conditional Use Permit issued 
by City Council. 

69. Telecommunications towers or antenna for wireless transmission above the frequency of 
20,000 Hertz (hz), with a Conditional Use Permit issued by City Council. 

70. Theaters, motion picture theaters and assembly halls but excluding drive-ins. 

71. Veterinary hospitals. 

72. Video rental stores, not to include adult video establishments. 

73. Wholesale businesses. 

 

B. AREA REGULATIONS 
1. For each main building containing or intended to contain one or more permitted uses, 

there shall be a minimum lot area of five thousand (5,000) square feet. 

2. For each apartment on the second or subsequent floors of a commercial/office use, there 
shall be a minimum lot area of one thousand (1,000) square feet per dwelling unit. This is 
not in addition to the five thousand (5,000) square foot minimum lot area required above. 

 

C. LOT WIDTH REGULATIONS 
The minimum lot width for all permitted uses and uses requiring a conditional use permit 
shall be fifty (50) feet. 

 

D. SETBACK REGULATIONS 
Structures shall be located forty (40) feet from any street or highway or from any street or 
highway right-of-way; except that if there are two abutting lots with structures on each, then 
no building shall be set back more than the average setback of the two. This shall be known 
as the "setback line". 

 

 

 

E. YARD REGULATIONS 
1. Side: Each main structure shall have at least one side yard of at least ten (10) feet; except 

that when such use abuts a residential district, there shall be a side yard of ten (10) feet. 

2. Rear: Each main structure shall have a rear yard of at least twenty-five (25) feet. 



  

 
 
ZONING ORDINANCE  Page 11: 5 

 

F. HEIGHT REGULATIONS 
Buildings may be erected up to forty-five (45) feet from grade except that church spires, 
belfries, cupolas, chimneys, flues, flag poles, television antennae, radio aerials, and 
equipment penthouses are exempt from the provisions of this Section. 

 

G. SPECIAL PROVISION FOR CORNER LOTS 
1. Of the two (2) sides of a corner lot, the front shall be deemed to be the shortest of the two 

(2) sides fronting on streets except that when one street has more than twice the traffic 
volume of the other, the side facing the street with the highest traffic volume shall be 
deemed to be the front. 

2. The side yard facing the side street shall be twenty (20) feet for both main and accessory 
buildings and trash receptacles. 

 

H. REQUIREMENTS FOR PERMITTED USES 
Before a building permit shall be issued or construction commenced on any permitted use in 
this district or a permit issued for a new use, all requirements of Article XVI, Site Plan 
Requirements, shall be met.  



Zoning Ordinance Amendment  Page   1 
 

      Zoning Ordinance Amendment  
      Article X.  Highway Commercial District 
      Section A. Accessory Structure 
      Applicant: City of Hopewell 
       
       
 
 
 
This report is prepared by the City of Hopewell Department of Development Staff to provide 
information to the Hopewell Planning Commission to assist them in making an informed decision 
on this matter. 
 
I.  PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

Planning Commission January 8, 2017 Recommended Approval 

City Council February 14, 2017 Work Session 
City Council April 25, 2017 Public Hearing 

 
 
II. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

The City of Hopewell is requesting a Zoning Ordinance Amendment to Article , 
Highway Commercial District (B-3), Section A, Use Regulations, to allow 
accessory structures to include metal carports as long as they are not visible from 
primary streets and any other conditions the Council of the City of Hopewell 
deems necessary.   
 

III. STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
 On May 1, 2010 the City Council adopted an amendment to all business districts 

in the City, to include B-1, Downtown Central Business District, the B-2, Limited 
Commercial District, the B-3 District, Highway Commercial District and the B-4 
District, Corridor Development District.  By recommendation of the Planning 
Commission and Staff, uses were either removed from these districts or expanded. 

The purpose of deleting accessory uses from the list of allowable uses was to 
improve the professional appearance of business establishments in the City.  It 
was concluded that such uses were not compatible with business establishments 
and that owners should add square footage to their current structure in order to 
expand.   

In accordance with Article I, Definitions of the Zoning Ordinance, an accessory 
use is defined as a use or structure of a nature customarily incidental and 
subordinate to the principal use or structure and, unless otherwise specifically 
provided on the same premises.  Where a building is attached to the principal 
building, it shall be considered part thereof, and not an accessory building.  



Zoning Ordinance Amendment  Page   2 
 

Accessory uses include sheds, carports, detached garages, pools, pool houses, and 
the like.   

Additionally, on January 11, 2011, Article XVIII, Development Standards, 
Section 6, Architectural Treatment, subsection d. prohibited the construction of 
metal buildings within any business district without providing an acceptable 
façade where the structure is visible from any adjoining residential and business 
districts or any other public right-of-way.  The section reads as follows: 

“d. No building exterior (whether front, side or rear) shall consist of 
architectural materials inferior in quality, appearance or detail to any other 
exterior of the same building.  Nothing in this section shall preclude the 
use of different materials on different exteriors that are representative of 
good architectural design but rather, shall preclude the use of inferior 
materials on sides which face adjoining property and thus, might adversely 
impact existing or future development resulting in the depreciation of 
property values.  No portion of a building constructed of cinder block or 
corrugated and/or sheet metal that is not completely covered with an 
acceptable façade shall be visible from any adjoining residential and 
business districts or any public right-of-way. Further, buildings shall be 
designed with harmonious proportions and shall not have monotonous 
facades or large bulky masses. Buildings shall possess architectural variety 
but shall be compatible with existing structures, especially nearby 
structures of historic interest. New or remodeled buildings shall be 
consistent with the overall cohesive character of the area in which they are 
situated as reflected in existing structures. This character shall be achieved 
through the use of design elements, including, but not limited to, 
materials, balconies and/or terraces, articulation of doors and windows, 
sculptural or textural relief of facades, architectural ornamentation, varied 
roof lines or other appurtenances such as lighting fixtures and/or 
landscaping, all as may be more particularly described in any applicable 
adopted plans and guidelines. “ 

 
IV. APPLICANT’S POSITION: 
 

In January 2015 the City received an application to amend the Zoning Ordinance 
to allow accessory structures in the B-2 District.  The City has not processed a 
request since that time.  In December 2016, a property owner filed a building 
permit to construct an accessory structure in the rear of a commercial building.  
Since this request was similar to the one received in 2015, the City is requesting 
the ordinance to be changed to allow for an accessory structure in the B-3 District 
if it cannot be seen from public right of way if a Conditional Use Permit is 
granted from the Council.  

 
 
 
 



Zoning Ordinance Amendment  Page   3 
 

 
V. ZONING ADMINISTRATOR’S ANALYSIS: 
 
Allowing an accessory structure in the B-3 district through a Conditional Use Permit 
process allows the Planning Commission and City Council to review each request 
individually.  It will allow denials or approval with conditions to be made in instances 
where the placement of an accessory structure would be detrimental to the character of 
the neighborhood. 
 
VI. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
  
Staff recommends approval of the request to allow a metal carport in the B-3 District if it 
cannot be seen from the street, by a Conditional Use Permit.  This will require a public 
hearing process that makes the approval or denial transparent. It requires adjacent 
property owner notification and can set criteria for design.  Furthermore it does not leave 
the decision to Staff which in such cases can be viewed as subjective but opens the 
dialogue up to the public.  
 
VII. PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION: 

 
The Planning Commission held their public hearing to consider this matter on January 5, 
2017.  The Commission voted 4 to 0 to approve the amendment.  

 
VIII. PROPOSED RESOLUTION: 
 
 

ORDINANCE 2017-XX 
 
An Ordinance amending and reenacting Article , Highway Commercial 
District Section A. Use Regulations of the Zoning Ordinance of the City 
of Hopewell  

 
Article  

Highway Commercial District (B-3) 
 
 
This ordinance shall become effective upon the date of its adoption by the City Council.  In all 
other respects said Zoning Ordinance shall remain unchanged and be in full force and effect. 
 

Public Hearings: 

   

Planning Commission:  January 5, 2017  4-0    approved 

  Date  Vote    disapproved 

City Council:           1st Reading  April 25, 2017      approved  

  Date  Vote    disapproved  



Zoning Ordinance Amendment  Page   4 
 

2nd Reading        approved  

  Date  Vote    disapproved  
 
 
 
 



Zoning Ordinance Amendment  Page   1 
 

      Zoning Ordinance Amendment  
      Article X.  Highway Commercial District 
      Section A. Accessory Structure 
      Applicant: City of Hopewell 
       
       
 
 
 
This report is prepared by the City of Hopewell Department of Development Staff to provide 
information to the Hopewell Planning Commission to assist them in making an informed decision 
on this matter. 
 
I.  PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

Planning Commission January 8, 2017 Recommended Approval 

City Council February 14, 2017 Work Session 
City Council April 25, 2017 Public Hearing 

 
 
II. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

The City of Hopewell is requesting a Zoning Ordinance Amendment to Article , 
Highway Commercial District (B-3), Section A, Use Regulations, to allow 
accessory structures to include metal carports as long as they are not visible from 
primary streets and any other conditions the Council of the City of Hopewell 
deems necessary.   
 

III. STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
 On May 1, 2010 the City Council adopted an amendment to all business districts 

in the City, to include B-1, Downtown Central Business District, the B-2, Limited 
Commercial District, the B-3 District, Highway Commercial District and the B-4 
District, Corridor Development District.  By recommendation of the Planning 
Commission and Staff, uses were either removed from these districts or expanded. 

The purpose of deleting accessory uses from the list of allowable uses was to 
improve the professional appearance of business establishments in the City.  It 
was concluded that such uses were not compatible with business establishments 
and that owners should add square footage to their current structure in order to 
expand.   

In accordance with Article I, Definitions of the Zoning Ordinance, an accessory 
use is defined as a use or structure of a nature customarily incidental and 
subordinate to the principal use or structure and, unless otherwise specifically 
provided on the same premises.  Where a building is attached to the principal 
building, it shall be considered part thereof, and not an accessory building.  



Zoning Ordinance Amendment  Page   2 
 

Accessory uses include sheds, carports, detached garages, pools, pool houses, and 
the like.   

Additionally, on January 11, 2011, Article XVIII, Development Standards, 
Section 6, Architectural Treatment, subsection d. prohibited the construction of 
metal buildings within any business district without providing an acceptable 
façade where the structure is visible from any adjoining residential and business 
districts or any other public right-of-way.  The section reads as follows: 

“d. No building exterior (whether front, side or rear) shall consist of 
architectural materials inferior in quality, appearance or detail to any other 
exterior of the same building.  Nothing in this section shall preclude the 
use of different materials on different exteriors that are representative of 
good architectural design but rather, shall preclude the use of inferior 
materials on sides which face adjoining property and thus, might adversely 
impact existing or future development resulting in the depreciation of 
property values.  No portion of a building constructed of cinder block or 
corrugated and/or sheet metal that is not completely covered with an 
acceptable façade shall be visible from any adjoining residential and 
business districts or any public right-of-way. Further, buildings shall be 
designed with harmonious proportions and shall not have monotonous 
facades or large bulky masses. Buildings shall possess architectural variety 
but shall be compatible with existing structures, especially nearby 
structures of historic interest. New or remodeled buildings shall be 
consistent with the overall cohesive character of the area in which they are 
situated as reflected in existing structures. This character shall be achieved 
through the use of design elements, including, but not limited to, 
materials, balconies and/or terraces, articulation of doors and windows, 
sculptural or textural relief of facades, architectural ornamentation, varied 
roof lines or other appurtenances such as lighting fixtures and/or 
landscaping, all as may be more particularly described in any applicable 
adopted plans and guidelines. “ 

 
IV. APPLICANT’S POSITION: 
 

In January 2015 the City received an application to amend the Zoning Ordinance 
to allow accessory structures in the B-2 District.  The City has not processed a 
request since that time.  In December 2016, a property owner filed a building 
permit to construct an accessory structure in the rear of a commercial building.  
Since this request was similar to the one received in 2015, the City is requesting 
the ordinance to be changed to allow for an accessory structure in the B-3 District 
if it cannot be seen from public right of way if a Conditional Use Permit is 
granted from the Council.  

 
 
 
 



Zoning Ordinance Amendment  Page   3 
 

 
V. ZONING ADMINISTRATOR’S ANALYSIS: 
 
Allowing an accessory structure in the B-3 district through a Conditional Use Permit 
process allows the Planning Commission and City Council to review each request 
individually.  It will allow denials or approval with conditions to be made in instances 
where the placement of an accessory structure would be detrimental to the character of 
the neighborhood. 
 
VI. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
  
Staff recommends approval of the request to allow a metal carport in the B-3 District if it 
cannot be seen from the street, by a Conditional Use Permit.  This will require a public 
hearing process that makes the approval or denial transparent. It requires adjacent 
property owner notification and can set criteria for design.  Furthermore it does not leave 
the decision to Staff which in such cases can be viewed as subjective but opens the 
dialogue up to the public.  
 
VII. PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION: 

 
The Planning Commission held their public hearing to consider this matter on January 5, 
2017.  The Commission voted 4 to 0 to approve the amendment.  

 
VIII. PROPOSED RESOLUTION: 
 
 

ORDINANCE 2017-XX 
 
An Ordinance amending and reenacting Article , Highway Commercial 
District Section A. Use Regulations of the Zoning Ordinance of the City 
of Hopewell  

 
Article  

Highway Commercial District (B-3) 
 
 
This ordinance shall become effective upon the date of its adoption by the City Council.  In all 
other respects said Zoning Ordinance shall remain unchanged and be in full force and effect. 
 

Public Hearings: 

   

Planning Commission:  January 5, 2017  4-0    approved 

  Date  Vote    disapproved 

City Council:           1st Reading  April 25, 2017      approved  

  Date  Vote    disapproved  



Zoning Ordinance Amendment  Page   4 
 

2nd Reading        approved  

  Date  Vote    disapproved  
 
 
 
 



 
PH-2 

 







1 | P a g e  
 

This document provides an overview of the CLG Program 

The Certified Local Government Program in Virginia 

 

 

Communities strengthen and expand their local preservation programs through Certified Local 

Government (CLG) designation. The CLG program was created by the National Historic 

Preservation Act of 1966 (as amended in 1980). It establishes a partnership between local 

governments, the federal historic preservation program, and each state's State Historic 

Preservation Office (SHPO), which in the case of Virginia is the Department of Historic 

Resources (DHR).  

The program allows DHR, as the SHPO, to recommend for certification local governments that 

have put key elements of a sound local preservation program in place in their communities. 

Designation as a CLG gives local governments a way to participate more formally in the state 

and national historic preservation programs. General requirements for certification are identified 

in the federal program; specific requirements for the Virginia program have been established by 

DHR. 

Goals of the Virginia CLG program are threefold:  

 Promote viable communities through preservation  

 Recognize and reward communities with sound local preservation programs  

 Establish credentials of quality for local preservation programs  

CLG Grants 

CLG designation also allows a jurisdictions to apply for CLG grants through federal Historic 

Preservation Funds (HPF). Ten percent of all HPF monies that come to the 

Commonwealth of Virginia must be distributed to CLGs. DHR does this through a 

competitive grant process, open only to CLGs.  

 

 

 

 

 



2 | P a g e  
 

 

Benefits of CLG Designation 

There are many advantages to earning CLG designation as a community.  

The CLG program helps a community with preservation generally in three ways, as it  

 promotes community-wide preservation; 

 recognizes and supports a community's  local preservation programs; and 

 establishes the credentials of quality for local preservation programs.  

As a CLG, a community: 

 assumes a formal role in the identification, evaluation, and protection of its heritage 

resources; 

 has the right to comment on the eligibility of resources nominated for listing in the 

National Register of Historic Places in its jurisdiction; 

 receives technical assistance from DHR and the National Park Service; 

 learns from each other CLGs by sharing experiences, concerns, solutions to problems; 

 can apply for matching grants for preservation programs from a 10% share of Virginia’s 

annual federal appropriation; 

 gains free full access to DHR's GIS-based Data Sharing System (DSS), a $500 value 

annually; 

 is eligible for stipends to selected preservation conferences and workshops; 

 is automatically considered for the DHR Cost Share Program funding for survey projects 

in which CLG grant funding is unavailable; 

 is granted the right to be a "consulting party" in a project requiring Section 106 review. 

CLG grants can be used in the following ways:  

 for surveys of architectural or archaeological resources;  

  

 for preparation of Preliminary Information Forms or National Register of Historic Places 

nominations for local heritage resources; 

  

 for heritage stewardship planning projects such as drafting historic preservation plans, 

archaeological assessments, preservation components of comprehensive plans, or 

http://www.dhr.virginia.gov/registers/register.htm


3 | P a g e  
 

condition assessment reports; 

  

 for public education programs concerned with a heritage stewardship program; 

  

 for local review board or targeted audience training and education projects such as 

development of materials or programs, including training sessions and hands-on 

workshops;  

  

 for testing archaeological sites to determine their significance or for pure research, 

education, or mitigation (as the latter pertains to Section 106 requirements);  

  

 for rehabilitation of buildings listed in the National Register of Historic Places that are 

publicly owned or are privately owned and selected through a local grant competition; 

 for drafting new or updated design guidelines; 

 for materials research on a rehabilitation project. 

Requirements for CLG Designation 

DHR is currently reviewing the CLG program requirements to identify other local 

government planning efforts that promote heritage stewardship activities and that 

contribute to an effective local preservation program. As a result of this review, some 

of the requirements for the CLG program may be amended. 

Currently the following requirements are necessary for CLG designation.   

 A local government must adopt a historic district ordinance that: 

(a) defines district boundaries,  

(b) establishes a review board,  

(c) identifies actions that must be reviewed and standards for review, and  

(d) in general provides for the protection of local historic resources. 

 The CLG's preservation commission or review board must administer its ordinance and 

work as an advocate for preservation in the locality. 

  

 The CLG must continue to survey its local heritage resources. 

  

 The CLG must promote public participation in its local heritage stewardship program. 

 The CLG must annually report on the performance of its CLG responsibilities.  

An application for designation as a CLG currently requires the following:  

 A request for certification from the local chief elected official with a written assurance 

that the local government fulfills the Virginia CLG requirements.  



4 | P a g e  
 

 A copy of the local preservation ordinance and map(s) showing the areas and sites 

protected by the ordinance. 

 A copy of a resume for each member of the local review board and a copy of the board’s 

bylaws and rules of procedure. 

List of CLGs in Virginia 

The following communities have strengthened and expanded their local preservation programs 

through participation in the Certified Local Government program. In Virginia the program is 

jointly administered by the National Park Service (NPS) and the Virginia Department of Historic 

Resources (the State Historic Preservation Office).  

The communities below are active partners in the Federal Historic Preservation Program and the 

opportunities it provides. These include access to the expert preservation and technical advice of 

DHR as well as the NPS. Partnerships with the National Alliance of Preservation Commissions, 

Preserve America, the National Trust for Historic Preservation, and the National Main Street 

Center are also networks that CLGs have an opportunity to tap. Of course, another benefit is 

access through DHR to Federal funds set aside annually for CLGs (see below for list of 

communities receiving funding in 2013).  

Also, Virginia CLGs receive a free license to access V-CRIS and training in using the state-of-

the-art GIS database of historic resources.  

These CLGs show a community commitment to keeping what is significant from the past for 

future generations. As a certified town, city, or county seeking other opportunities, it becomes 

easy to demonstrate a readiness to take on a preservation project and be successful.  

Abingdon (Town)  Manassas (City) 

Alexandria (City)  Middleburg (Town) 

Arlington County  Petersburg (City) 

Blacksburg (Town) Prince William County 

Cape Charles (Town) Pulaski (Town) 

Charlottesville (City)  Richmond (City) 

Clarke County  Roanoke (City) 

Culpeper (Town)  Smithfield (Town) 

Danville (City) Spotsylvania County 

Fairfax (City)  Stafford County 

Fairfax County  Staunton (City) 

Fredericksburg (City)  Stevens City (Town) 

Hanover County  Suffolk (City) 

http://www.nps.gov/NR/shpolist.htm
http://napc.uga.edu/
http://www.preserveamerica.gov/
http://www.preservationnation.org/
http://www.preservationnation.org/main-street/#.UjMbgT-E7To
http://www.preservationnation.org/main-street/#.UjMbgT-E7To
http://www.dhr.virginia.gov/archives/archiv_vcrisHome.htm


5 | P a g e  
 

Herndon (Town)  Warrenton (Town) 

Leesburg (Town)  Williamsburg (City) 

Loudoun County  Winchester (City) 

Lynchburg (City)    

 

 



 

1 
 

ORDINANCE 2017-XX 

An Ordinance amending and reenacting Article IX-M, Downtown Design Review 

Committee, Section M., Downtown Design Review Committee, of the Zoning Ordinance of 

the City of Hopewell,  

ARTICLE IX 

DOWNTOWN CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT (B-1) 

STATEMENT OF INTENT  

The district is intended to provide for an urban mix of retail, office, service, hotel, residential 

and civic functions for the city's historic downtown business core. The location of the district 

requires that uses be compatible with nearby residential housing and with the area generally.  

The district is intended to be a predominantly pedestrian area with shops and storefronts close to 

the road, pedestrian in scale, and having street trees and limited off-street parking. The history 

of the area will be retained by promoting cultural heritage, preserving historic structures, and 

keeping architectural character sensitive to the environment with new construction. The core of 

the downtown district should exude the vitality of the interaction of people and activities.   

This district is intended for the conduct of business to which the public requires direct and 

frequent access, but which is not characterized either by constant heavy truck traffic, other than 

stocking and delivery of light retail goods, or by any other nuisance factors other than those 

occasioned by incidental light and noise from the congregation of people, passenger vehicles, 

business offices, newspaper offices and restaurants. 

A.  USE REGULATIONS 

Structures to be erected and land to be used shall be only for the following uses: 

1. Accounting Services. 

2. Advertising and Public Relations Agencies. 

3. Antiques. 

4. Apartments on the first floor of mixed-use buildings with a Conditional Use Permit. 

5. Apartments on second and subsequent floors of commercial and office buildings/uses 

provided that each unit contain a minimum of nine hundred (900) gross square feet. 

6. Apartments on second and subsequent floors of commercial and office buildings/uses 

containing average square footage below nine hundred (900) gross square feet, with a 

Conditional Use Permit. 



 

2 
 

7. Appliance Stores. 

8. Architectural and Engineering Services. 

9. Art Galleries, Framing and Supplies. 

10. Bakeries. 

11. Barber and Beauty Shops. 

12. Bed and Breakfast Establishments. 

13. Bookstores, except Adult bookstores. 

14. Camera and Photo Supply Stores. 

15. Casual and Formal Apparel Stores. 

16. Child Care Services. 

17. Churches. 

18. Coffee Shops. 

19. Commercial Banks and Financial Institutions, not to include check cashing 

establishments. 

20. Computer Sales and Service. 

21. Convenience Store. 

22. Credit Unions. 

23. Dance Studios. 

24. Delicatessen. 

25. Dry Cleaners. 

26. Florist. 

27. Gift, Stationary, and Card Shops. 

28. Grocery Store. 

29. Home Decorating Center and Interior Design Services. 

30. Home Health Care Services. 



 

3 
 

31. Hotels. 

32. Individual and Family Consulting Services. 

33. Insurance Agencies. 

34. Jewelry Stores. 

35. Law Offices. 

36. Marinas, Public or Private. 

37. Medical and Dental Offices.  

38. Motion pictures theaters, excluding drive-in theaters 

39. Multi-family dwellings, with Conditional Use Permit. 

40. Municipal and Government Agencies and Offices. 

41. Municipal and Private Utilities. 

42. Museums. 

43. Music Stores. 

43. Offices, including business, professional and administrative. 

44. Off-street parking is not required in this district. 

45. Parking Decks and Garages, Public. 

46. Performing Arts Center. 

47. Pet Shops. 

48. Pharmacy. 

49. Philanthropic and charitable institutions. 

50. Photographic Studios. 

51. Post Office 

52. Print Shops. 

53. Public Libraries. 

54. Public Open Spaces and Uses owned and operated by a governmental agency. 



 

4 
 

55. Real Estate Agencies. 

56. Recreation and Fitness Centers. 

57. Research, development and laboratory facilities related to medical, biotechnology, life 

sciences and other product applications. 

58. Restaurants 

59. Security brokers and dealers. 

60. Sporting goods. 

61. Tailor Shops. 

62. Tanning Salons. 

63. Tax preparation services. 

64. Title Abstract and Insurance Offices. 

65. Townhouses, with Conditional Use Permit.. 

66. Toys, Games, and Crafts. 

67. Upholstery shops. 

68. Video Rental Stores, not to include adult video establishments. 

 

B.  AREA REGULATIONS: 

1. Multi-family uses - For permitted multi-family and second story apartment unit uses, 

other than assisted housing for the elderly and physically handicapped, there shall be a 

minimum lot area of one thousand (1,000) square feet per dwelling unit. 

2. Group housing for the elderly and handicapped - For group housing for the elderly and 

handicapped, there shall be a minimum lot area of one thousand (1,000) square feet per 

dwelling unit. 

3. Business uses - None. 

 

C.  LOT WIDTH REGULATIONS: 

      None. 

 



 

5 
 

D.  SETBACK REGULATIONS: 

      None. 

E.  YARD REGULATIONS: 

1. Side:  None, except when a use is abutting a residential district, then there shall be a 

minimum side yard of five (5) feet. 

2. Rear:  None, except when a use is abutting a residential district, there shall be a 

minimum rear yard of twenty (20) feet. 

F.  HEIGHT REGULATIONS: 

Buildings may be erected up to one hundred twenty five (125) feet from grade, except that 

church spires, belfries, cupolas, chimneys, flues, flag poles, television antenna, radio aerials, 

and equipment penthouses are exempt from the provisions of this section. 

G.  REQUIREMENTS FOR PERMITTED USES: 

Before a building permit shall be issued or construction commenced on any permitted use in 

the district or a permit issued for a new use, all requirements of Article XVI, Site Plan 

Requirements, shall be met.   

H.  ARCHITECTURAL TREATMENT – REHABILITATION: 

a. The rehabilitation of any existing structure within the National Register Historic Downtown 

District shall comply with the Secretary of Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation. 

b. The rehabilitation of any existing structure within the district that is not located within the 

National Register Historic Downtown District shall comply with Section I below. 

 

I. ARCHITECTURAL TREATMENT – NEW CONSTRUCTION/DEVELOPMENT 

GUIDELINES: 

The following guidelines shall be considered by the Review Committee in approving or 

denying any application for a Certificate of Appropriateness or a building permit in addition 

to the criteria set forth in Article IX, O hereafter and the guidelines set forth in the 

Downtown Master Plan adopted by City Council on January 14, 2003. 

1. New development shall be compatible with the pedestrian scale and historic character of 

the Downtown. New or altered buildings should be generally consistent in height, scale, 

massing (shape) and materials with existing structures in the Downtown. The intent of 

this is to insure functional and visual compatibility, not to specifically encourage 



 

6 
 

imitation of past architectural styles. Nothing herein shall preclude the use of imitation 

or artificial materials or elements, so long as such materials and elements are similar in 

appearance, style, detail and design to the materials found within the downtown and 

consistent with the guidelines and criteria contained herein and in the Downtown Master 

Plan.  

2. No building exterior (whether front, side or rear) shall consist of architectural materials 

inferior in quality, appearance or detail to any other exterior of the same building. 

Nothing in this section shall preclude the use of different materials on different exteriors 

if representative of good architectural design but shall preclude the use of inferior 

materials on sides that face adjoining property.  No portion of a building constructed of 

cinder block, vinyl siding, or corrugated and/or sheet metal shall be permitted; provided, 

however, that cinder block that is covered by an acceptable façade so that the block is 

not visible, shall be permitted.  

3. Buildings shall be designed to impart harmonious proportions and to avoid monotonous 

facades or large bulky masses. Buildings shall possess architectural variety, but shall be 

compatible with existing structures, especially nearby structures of high historic interest. 

New or remodeled buildings shall enhance an overall cohesive downtown character as 

reflected in existing structures. This character shall be achieved through the use of 

design elements, including, but not limited to, materials, articulation of doors and 

windows, sculptural or textural relief of facades, architectural ornamentation, varied roof 

lines or other appurtenances such as lighting fixtures and/or planting as described in 

these guidelines and the Downtown Master Plan.  

4. Architectural treatment of all buildings shall be compatible with buildings located within 

the same block or directly across any road, as determined by the Review Committee.  At 

locations where the existing buildings do not conform, the Review Committee may 

approve a new architectural treatment or theme. Compatibility may be achieved through 

the use of similar building massing, materials, scale, colors or other architectural 

features.   

J.  SIGNAGE: 

1. Sign Placement. 

a. Signs shall be placed so that they do not obstruct architectural elements and details 

that define the design of the building, and the signage of adjacent businesses. 

b. Flat wall signs shall be located either above the storefront, within the frieze of the 

cornice, on covered transoms, or on the pier that frames display windows or 

generally on flat, unadorned surfaces of the façade or in other areas clearly suitable 

as sign locations. 



 

7 
 

c. Projecting signs shall be located at least ten (10) feet above the sidewalk, project no 

more than three (3) feet from the façade of the building, and shall not be placed 

above the cornice line of the first floor level unless there is a clearance of less than 

ten (10) feet below such cornice line to the sidewalk. 

d. Window signs, both interior and exterior, shall be located approximately five and 

one-half (5 ½) feet above the sidewalk at the center point of the window and the 

window sign for good pedestrian visibility, except that such signs may be located 

eighteen (18) inches from the top or bottom of the display window glass. 

e. Window signs may be placed on the glazing of doors and on upper floor windows 

for separate building tenants. 

f. Awning and canopy signs shall be placed on the valance area only.  The minimum 

space between the edge of the letter and the top and the bottom of the valance shall 

be one and one-half (1 ½) inches.  The average height of lettering and symbols shall 

be no more than nine (9) inches. 

g. Freestanding signs shall not be permitted in this district. 

h.    Roof signs shall not be permitted in this district. 

2. Sign Size. 

a. All combined building signage shall not exceed fifty (50) square feet. 

b. Flat wall signs shall not exceed eighteen (18) inches in height and shall not extend 

more than six (6) inches from the building façade. 

c. Projecting signs shall be a maximum of six (6) square feet per sign face. 

d. The average height of letters and symbols shall be no more than twelve (12) inches 

on wall signs, nine (9) inches on awning and canopy signs, and six (6) inches on 

window signs. 

e. Window signs shall not obscure more than twenty percent (20%) of the window 

glass. 

3. Quantity of Permanent Signs. 

The number of signs permitted for any building shall be limited as follows to encourage 

compatibility with the building and discourage visual clutter.  

a. Signs shall be limited to two (2) total per building and each shall be of a different 

type.  No building shall have more than one (1) wall sign on any street frontage.   



 

8 
 

b. Small directory signs may be located near entries or inside a common lobby area. 

4. Sign Design and Shape. 

a. All signs shall be readable and convey an image for the business and historic 

downtown area that is compatible with, and appropriate under, the Downtown 

Master Plan. 

b. Signs shall conform to the shape of the area where the sign is to be located, except 

when a sign is to take on the shape of a product or a service, such as a coffee mug 

for a coffee shop or a shoe for a shoe store.  Such shapes shall not obscure the 

architectural elements of the building. 

5.  Materials. 

a. Signs shall be made only of traditional sign materials such as wood, glass, gold leaf, 

raised individual metal or painted wood letters, or painted letters on wood, metal, or 

glass. 

b. Form letters shall not be permitted. 

c. Wall signs shall not be painted directly on the surface of masonry walls if the wall 

has not been previously painted. 

d. Window signs shall be painted or have flat decal letters and shall not be three-

dimensional (3-D). 

e.  Non-professionally painted signs shall not be permitted. 

6.  Color. 

Colors that complement the materials and color scheme of the building, including the 

accent and trim colors, shall be used.  Three (3) colors are recommended, although 

additional colors may be used where complementary to the color scheme of the building.  

Use of colors in excess of three shall be subject to the approval of the Review 

Committee. 

7.  Illumination. 

Signs shall be indirectly lit with a shielded incandescent light source.  Internally lit 

plastic molded signs shall not be permitted in the district. 

8.  Buildings with Multiple Tenants. 



 

9 
 

A master sign plan shall be submitted for any building having more than one tenant.  

Upper-floor tenants shall be identified at each primary entrance by a flat, wall-mounted 

directory sign. 

9.  Other Signs. 

Wall murals shall be compatible with the district character and subject to approval of the 

Review Committee. 

K.  AWNINGS AND CANOPIES: 

1. Types. 

a. Standard Slope Fabric Awnings may be used on most historic buildings and may be 

either fixed or retractable. 

b.  Boxed or Curved Fabric Awnings may be used on non-historical buildings. 

2. Design and Placement. 

a. Awnings shall be placed within the storefront, porch, door or window openings so as 

to not obscure architectural elements of the building or damage the building façade. 

b. Awning designs shall not conflict or interfere with existing signs, distinctive 

architectural features of the building, street trees or other streetscape features. 

c. Awnings shall be shaped to fit the opening in which they are installed. 

d. The bottom of any awning shall be a minimum of seven (7) feet above the sidewalk. 

e. Plastic or Aluminum Awnings shall not be permitted in the district. 

f. The color scheme of the awning shall coordinate with the overall colors of the 

building.  Solid colors, wide and narrow stripes may be used if compatible with 

building colors. 

L.  CERTIFICATION OF APPROPRIATENESS, GENERALLY: 

1. No building or structure within the district shall be erected, reconstructed, altered, 

improved or restored unless and until an application for a Certificate of Appropriateness 

shall have been approved by the Review Committee.  

2. No building, structure, or area which has been designated as a historical building, 

structure, or area by the Virginia Historic Landmarks Commissioner, or by the Local, 

State or Federal government shall be demolished or removed, in whole or in part, unless 



 

10 
 

and until an application for a Certificate of Appropriateness shall have been approved by 

the Review Committee. 

3. Evidence of such required approval shall be a Certificate of Appropriateness issued by 

the Review Committee. 

4. Application for a Certificate of Appropriateness required by the Article shall be made to 

the Director of Development or his designee. 

M.  DOWNTOWN DESIGN REVIEW COMMITTEE: 

1. A review committee is hereby established and shall be known as the Downtown Design 

Review Committee, hereafter referred to as the “Review Committee.”  The membership 

of the Review Committee shall consist of no more or less than five (5) members who 

shall be appointed by City Council to serve staggered terms. Each member of the of the 

Review Committee must have a demonstrated interest, competence, or knowledge in 

historic preservation.  At least one (1) member shall be an architect or an architectural 

historian, meeting the Secretary of the Interior’s professional qualifications standards 

referred to in 36 CFR 61, one (1) member shall be a downtown property owner, another 

member shall be a downtown business owner, and the remaining member or members 

shall demonstrated interest in, the historic character of the City, and knowledge or 

expertise deemed useful to the work of the Review Committee. These members may 

include, but not limited to, a licensed contractor, a real estate broker, or architect.  City 

Council, at its own discretion, may appoint members that do not reside in the City of 

Hopewell if they deem it appropriate.  The members shall serve a term of four (4) years. 

The City Planner shall serve as an advisory member of the Review Committee and shall 

have no vote.  No member of the Review Committee shall serve more than two 

consecutive four (4) year terms.  A member may be re-appointed to additional terms 

after being out of office for at least one four (4) year term. 

2. The Review Committee shall elect from its own membership a chairman and a vice 

chairman who shall serve annual terms as such and may succeed themselves. 

3. The chairman shall conduct the meetings of the Review Committee.  All members of the 

Review Committee, except for advisory members, shall be entitled to vote, and the 

decisions of the Review Committee shall be determined by a majority vote.  A quorum 

shall be a majority of the membership.  A quorum shall present for official business to 

be conducted at any meeting and for any action to be taken.  The Review Committee 

shall meet monthly after notification by the Director of Development of an application 

for a Certificate of Appropriateness or permit requiring action by the Review 

Committee.  The Review Committee shall take action on any matter properly before it 

no later than sixty (60) days after its first meeting to discuss such matter, unless the time 

is extended with the written consent of the applicant.  The Review Committee shall not 



 

11 
 

reconsider any decision made by it, or entertain any application or request that it deems 

to be substantially similar to an application or request that has previously been denied, 

for a period of one (1) year from the date of denial, except in cases where an applicant 

resubmits his application amended as provided in this Article within ninety (90) days 

after the date of denial of the initial application.   

4. In the case of disapproval or denial of the erection, reconstruction, alteration, or 

restoration of a building or structure, the Review Committee shall briefly state its 

reasons for such disapproval in writing, and it may make recommendations to the 

applicant with respect to suggested changes, the appropriateness of design, arrangement, 

texture, material, color, location and the like of a building or structure involved.  In the 

case of disapproval accompanied by such recommendations, the applicant may amend 

and resubmit his application within ninety (90) days of such disapproval or denial if 

such application has been amended to comply with all of the recommendations of the 

Review Committee. 

5. In the case of disapproval or denial of an application for the demolition of a building in 

the district, the Review Committee shall state specifically its reasons for such 

disapproval or denial in writing. 

6. The Review Committee, when requested for a building permit in the district, shall 

inform the applicant of any changes and alterations necessary to bring the proposed 

building or structure in harmony with the general design of the building or structures 

located in the surrounding areas as a condition of issuing such permit. 

7. In matters governing the procedure for meetings not covered by this Article, the Review 

Committee may establish its own rules and procedures; provided they are not contrary to 

the content and intent of this Article. 

N.  NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING: 

No application for a Certificate of Appropriateness to demolish a building or structure that 

exists in the district shall be considered by the Review Committee until a public hearing has 

been held thereon, following notice as required under Section 15.2-2204, Code of Virginia 

(1950), as amended. 

O.  CRITERIA FOR GRANTING A CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS: 

1. Before a Certificate of Appropriateness is issued for the erection, reconstruction, 

alteration or restoration of a building or structure in the district, the Review Committee 

shall consider: 

a. The historical or architectural value and significance of the building or structure and 

its relationship to or congruity with the historic value of the land, place and area in 



 

12 
 

the district upon which it is proposed to be located, constructed, reconstructed, 

altered, or restored. 

b. The appropriateness of the exterior architectural features of such building or 

structure to such land, place or area and its relationship to or congruity with the 

exterior architectural features of other land, places, areas, buildings or structures in 

the district and environs. 

c. The adherence to the Urban Design Guidelines set forth in the Downtown Master 

Plan that addresses building rhythm, building height, materials, and building 

character. 

2. Before a Certificate of Appropriateness is issued for the demolition of a building or 

structure which exists in the district, the Review Committee shall consider: 

a. Is the building or structure of such architectural or historic interest that its removal or 

disturbance would be to the detriment of the public interest? 

b. Is the building or structure of such interest or significance that it could be made into 

a national, state or local historic landmark? 

c. Is the building or structure of such old and unusual or uncommon design, texture 

and/or material that it could not be reproduced, or could be reproduced only with 

great difficulty and/or expense? 

d. Would retention of the building or structure help preserve the historic character of 

the district? 

e. Would retention of the building or structure help preserve a historic interest in a 

place or an area of the city? 

f. Would retention of the building or structure promote the general welfare by 

maintaining and increasing real estate values; generating business; creating new 

positions; attracting tourists, students, writers, historians, artists and artisans; attracting 

new residents; encouraging study and interest in American history; stimulating interest 

and study in architecture and design; educating citizens in American culture and 

heritage; and making the city a more attractive and desirable place in which to live? 

3.  The Review Committee shall not consider detailed designs, interior arrangements, or 

features of a building or structure which are not subject to public view from a public 

street, public way, or other public place, except to the extent necessary to do so for the 

purpose of preventing the location, construction, reconstruction, alteration or repair of 

a building or structure that will be incongruous with the preservation and protection of 



 

13 
 

the historic aspects, settings and environment of the district and other buildings, 

structures, land, places of areas therein. 

P.  ISSUANCE OF CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS: 

Upon approval by the Review Committee of any erection, reconstruction, alteration, restoration 

or demolition, a Certificate of Appropriateness, signed by the committee chairman and bearing 

the date of issuance, but subject to the provisions of this Article shall be made available to the 

applicant. 

Q.  EXPIRATION OF CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS: 

Any Certificate of Appropriateness issued pursuant to this Article shall expire twelve (12) 

months from the date of issuance if the work authorized by said certificate has not commenced, 

or if any such work is suspended or abandoned for a period of twelve (12) months after being 

commenced.  Any period or periods of time during which the right to use any such certificate is 

stayed pursuant to this Article or by a court of competent jurisdiction, shall be excluded from 

the computation of the twelve (12) month period. 

R.  APPEALS FROM DOWNTOWN DESIGN REVIEW COMMITTEE: 

Any applicant aggrieved by a final decision of the Review Committee shall have the right to 

appeal such decision to the Hopewell City Council, provided that such appeal is filed within a 

period of thirty (30) days after the Review Committee has made its decision.  The filing of the 

petition shall stay the Review Committee’s decision pending the outcome of the appeal to the 

City Council.  Any applicant aggrieved from any final decision of the City Council shall have 

the right to appeal to the circuit court for review by filing a complaint, setting forth the alleged 

illegality of the action of the governing body, provided such complaint is filed within thirty (30) 

days after the final decision is rendered by the governing body.  The filing of the said complaint 

shall stay the decision of the governing body pending the outcome of the appeal to the court 

except that the filing of such complaint shall not stay the decision of the governing body if such 

decision denies the right to raze or demolish a historic landmark, building or structure.  The 

court may reverse or modify the decision of the governing body, in whole or in part, if it finds 

upon review that the decision of the governing body is contrary to law or that its decision is 

arbitrary and constitutes an abuse of discretion.  The filing of an appeal hereunder shall not 

operate as a de facto approval of any application disapproved or denied by the Review 

Committee. 

S. VIOLATIONS: 

Violators of the Downtown Central Business District section of the Zoning Ordinance are 

subject to Article XX. Violations and Penalties. 

T. EXCLUSION: 



 

14 
 

 

1. Nothing in this Article shall be construed to prevent the ordinary maintenance or repair 

of any exterior elements of any building or structure described in this Article; nor shall 

anything in this Article be construed to prevent the construction, reconstruction, 

alteration, or demolition of any such element which the authorized municipal offers shall 

certify as required by public safety. 

2. For the purpose of this ordinance; ordinary maintenance and repair is defined as any 

work which preserves and does not alter the present or current appearance of the exterior 

elements of the building or structure as long as there is no change in design and/or 

materials. 

3. For the purpose of this section, examples of work not requiring approval of the 

Downtown Design Review Committee are:  repainting an existing window, door, porch, 

porch rail, etc.; replacing same type/color of shingles on a building. 

4. For the purpose of this section, examples of work requiring approval of the Downtown 

Design Review Committee are:  changing the color of a house or structure; any new 

addition to a house or structure; any new house or structure; installing new windows or 

architectural trim; installing siding material not identical in color or texture to what is 

presently on the house or structure. 

 

U.  PROTECTIVE MAINTENANCE: 

 

1. All buildings and structures within the Downtown Central Business District shall be 

preserved against decay and deterioration and maintained free from structural defects to 

the extent that such decay, deterioration or defects may, in the opinion of the review 

board, result in the irreparable deterioration of any exterior appurtenance or architectural 

features or produce a detrimental effect upon the character of the district as a whole or 

upon the life and character of the structure itself.  The existence of any of the following 

conditions shall be sufficient to deem a structure an “endangered structure”: 

a. The deterioration or ineffective waterproofing of exterior walls or other vertical 

supports, including broken windows and doors; 

b. The deterioration of roofs or horizontal members; 

c. The deterioration of exterior chimneys; 

d. The deterioration or crumbling of exterior plaster or mortar; 

e. The deterioration of any feature so as to create or permit the creation of any 

hazardous or unsafe condition or conditions; 

f. Defective lack of weather protection for exterior wall coverings, including lack 

of paint, or weathering due to lack of paint or other protective covering. 

2. Upon a determination by the review committee (with the technical advice of the 

Building Code Official) that a structure constitutes an endangered structure in 

accordance with section, the review board shall notify the zoning administrator of such 



 

15 
 

determination, and the zoning administrator shall give notice of the determination and 

the requirements of this section to the property owner as set forth herein.  Within thirty 

(30) days of receipt of this notice, the owner shall commence the necessary stabilization 

repairs and the owner shall complete the repairs within one hundred-twenty (120) days 

of such notice.   The zoning administrator shall notify the owner by Certified Mail, 

Return Receipt Requested, of the endangered structure determination, and of the thirty 

(30) and one hundred-twenty (120) day time limitation set forth herein.  Upon written 

notice to the zoning administrator within ten (10) days of receipt of the notice, an owner 

shall have a right to a hearing before the review board.  Upon receipt of the owner’s 

notice, the zoning administrator shall promptly advise the owner of the time and location 

of the hearing and the right to present evidence and be represented by counsel.  The 

hearing shall be informal and the decision of the review committee shall be subject to 

the appeal in accordance with Section R of this Article.  

3. The one hundred-twenty (120) day time limit for completion of the repairs as set forth in 

the preceding paragraph may be extended for thirty (30) day intervals on the discretion 

of the review committee for good cause shown. 

4. Enforcement of this section shall be in conformance with Article XXII (A) of this 

ordinance. 

5. Violations of this section shall be punishable as set forth in Article XX (B) of this 

ordinance. 

6. Alternatively, if the owner fails to act, the review board may order the zoning 

administrator after due notice to the owner, to enter the property and make or cause to be 

made such repairs as are necessary to preserve the integrity and safety of the structure.  

The reasonable costs thereof shall be placed as a lien against the property. 

 



 

1 
 

ORDINANCE 2017-XX 

An Ordinance amending and reenacting Article IX-M, Downtown Design Review 

Committee, Section M., Downtown Design Review Committee, of the Zoning Ordinance of 

the City of Hopewell,  

ARTICLE IX 

DOWNTOWN CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT (B-1) 

STATEMENT OF INTENT  

The district is intended to provide for an urban mix of retail, office, service, hotel, residential 

and civic functions for the city's historic downtown business core. The location of the district 

requires that uses be compatible with nearby residential housing and with the area generally.  

The district is intended to be a predominantly pedestrian area with shops and storefronts close to 

the road, pedestrian in scale, and having street trees and limited off-street parking. The history 

of the area will be retained by promoting cultural heritage, with the preservation of preserving 

historic structures, and keeping architectural character sensitive to the environment with new 

construction. the replication of historic styles in additions and expansions. The core of the 

downtown district should exude the vitality of the interaction of people and activities.   

This district is intended for the conduct of business to which the public requires direct and 

frequent access, but which is not characterized either by constant heavy truck traffic, other than 

stocking and delivery of light retail goods, or by any other nuisance factors other than those 

occasioned by incidental light and noise from the congregation of people, passenger vehicles, 

business offices, newspaper offices and restaurants. 

A.  USE REGULATIONS 

Structures to be erected and land to be used shall be only for the following uses: 

1. Accounting Services. 

2. Advertising and Public Relations Agencies. 

3. Antiques. 

4. Apartments on the first floor of mixed-use buildings with a Conditional Use Permit. 

5. Apartments on second and subsequent floors of commercial and office buildings/uses 

provided that each unit contain a minimum of nine hundred (900) gross square feet. 

6. Apartments on second and subsequent floors of commercial and office buildings/uses 

containing average square footage below nine hundred (900) gross square feet, with a 

Conditional Use Permit. 



 

2 
 

7. Appliance Stores. 

8. Architectural and Engineering Services. 

9. Art Galleries, Framing and Supplies. 

10. Bakeries. 

11. Barber and Beauty Shops. 

12. Bed and Breakfast Establishments. 

13. Bookstores, except Adult bookstores. 

14. Camera and Photo Supply Stores. 

15. Casual and Formal Apparel Stores. 

16. Child Care Services. 

17. Churches. 

18. Coffee Shops. 

19. Commercial Banks and Financial Institutions, not to include check cashing 

establishments. 

20. Computer Sales and Service. 

21. Convenience Store. 

22. Credit Unions. 

23. Dance Studios. 

24. Delicatessen. 

25. Dry Cleaners. 

26. Florist. 

27. Gift, Stationary, and Card Shops. 

28. Grocery Store. 

29. Home Decorating Center and Interior Design Services. 

30. Home Health Care Services. 



 

3 
 

31. Hotels. 

32. Individual and Family Consulting Services. 

33. Insurance Agencies. 

34. Jewelry Stores. 

35. Law Offices. 

36. Marinas, Public or Private. 

37. Medical and Dental Offices.  

38. Motion pictures theaters, excluding drive-in theaters 

39. Multi-family dwellings, with Conditional Use Permit. 

40. Municipal and Government Agencies and Offices. 

41. Municipal and Private Utilities. 

42. Museums. 

43. Music Stores. 

43. Offices, including business, professional and administrative. 

44. Off-street parking is not required in this district. 

45. Parking Decks and Garages, Public. 

46. Performing Arts Center. 

47. Pet Shops. 

48. Pharmacy. 

49. Philanthropic and charitable institutions. 

50. Photographic Studios. 

51. Post Office 

52. Print Shops. 

53. Public Libraries. 

54. Public Open Spaces and Uses owned and operated by a governmental agency. 



 

4 
 

55. Real Estate Agencies. 

56. Recreation and Fitness Centers. 

57. Research, development and laboratory facilities related to medical, biotechnology, life 

sciences and other product applications. 

58. Restaurants 

59. Security brokers and dealers. 

60. Sporting goods. 

61. Tailor Shops. 

62. Tanning Salons. 

63. Tax preparation services. 

64. Title Abstract and Insurance Offices. 

65. Townhouses, with Conditional Use Permit.. 

66. Toys, Games, and Crafts. 

67. Upholstery shops. 

68. Video Rental Stores, not to include adult video establishments. 

 

B.  AREA REGULATIONS: 

1. Multi-family uses - For permitted multi-family and second story apartment unit uses, 

other than assisted housing for the elderly and physically handicapped, there shall be a 

minimum lot area of one thousand (1,000) square feet per dwelling unit. 

2. Group housing for the elderly and handicapped - For group housing for the elderly and 

handicapped, there shall be a minimum lot area of one thousand (1,000) square feet per 

dwelling unit. 

3. Business uses - None. 

 

C.  LOT WIDTH REGULATIONS: 

      None. 

 



 

5 
 

D.  SETBACK REGULATIONS: 

      None. 

E.  YARD REGULATIONS: 

1. Side:  None, except when a use is abutting a residential district, then there shall be a 

minimum side yard of five (5) feet. 

2. Rear:  None, except when a use is abutting a residential district, there shall be a 

minimum rear yard of twenty (20) feet. 

F.  HEIGHT REGULATIONS: 

Buildings may be erected up to one hundred twenty five (125) feet from grade, except that 

church spires, belfries, cupolas, chimneys, flues, flag poles, television antenna, radio aerials, 

and equipment penthouses are exempt from the provisions of this section. 

G.  REQUIREMENTS FOR PERMITTED USES: 

Before a building permit shall be issued or construction commenced on any permitted use in 

the district or a permit issued for a new use, all requirements of Article XVI, Site Plan 

Requirements, shall be met.   

H.  ARCHITECTURAL TREATMENT – REHABILITATION: 

a. The rehabilitation of any existing structure within the National Register Historic Downtown 

District shall comply with the Secretary of Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation., except to 

the extent specific deviations from such standards are expressly approved by the Downtown 

Design Review Committee (the “Review Committee”) established under Article IX, M 

hereafter. 

b. The rehabilitation of any existing structure within the district that is not located within the 

National Register Historic Downtown District shall comply with Section I below. 

 

I. ARCHITECTURAL TREATMENT – NEW CONSTRUCTION/DEVELOPMENT 

GUIDELINES: 

The following guidelines shall be considered by the Review Committee in approving or 

denying any application for a Certificate of Appropriateness or a building permit in addition 

to the criteria set forth in Article IX, O hereafter and the guidelines set forth in the 

Downtown Master Plan adopted by City Council on January 14, 2003. 



 

6 
 

1. New development shall be compatible with the pedestrian scale and historic character of 

the Downtown. New or altered buildings should be generally consistent in height, scale, 

massing (shape) and materials with existing structures in the Downtown. The intent of 

this is to insure functional and visual compatibility, not to specifically encourage 

imitation of past architectural styles. Nothing herein shall preclude the use of imitation 

or artificial materials or elements, so long as such materials and elements are similar in 

appearance, style, detail and design to the materials found within the downtown and 

consistent with the guidelines and criteria contained herein and in the Downtown Master 

Plan.  

2. No building exterior (whether front, side or rear) shall consist of architectural materials 

inferior in quality, appearance or detail to any other exterior of the same building. 

Nothing in this section shall preclude the use of different materials on different exteriors 

if representative of good architectural design but shall preclude the use of inferior 

materials on sides that face adjoining property.  No portion of a building constructed of 

cinder block, vinyl siding, or corrugated and/or sheet metal shall be permitted; provided, 

however, that cinder block that is covered by an acceptable façade so that the block is 

not visible, shall be permitted.  

3. Buildings shall be designed to impart harmonious proportions and to avoid monotonous 

facades or large bulky masses. Buildings shall possess architectural variety, but shall be 

compatible with existing structures, especially nearby structures of high historic interest. 

New or remodeled buildings shall enhance an overall cohesive downtown character as 

reflected in existing structures. This character shall be achieved through the use of 

design elements, including, but not limited to, materials, articulation of doors and 

windows, sculptural or textural relief of facades, architectural ornamentation, varied roof 

lines or other appurtenances such as lighting fixtures and/or planting as described in 

these guidelines and the Downtown Master Plan.  

4. Architectural treatment of all buildings shall be compatible with buildings located within 

the same block or directly across any road, as determined by the Review Committee.  At 

locations where the existing buildings do not conform, the Review Committee may 

approve a new architectural treatment or theme. Compatibility may be achieved through 

the use of similar building massing, materials, scale, colors or other architectural 

features.   

J.  SIGNAGE: 

1. Sign Placement. 

a. Signs shall be placed so that they do not obstruct architectural elements and details 

that define the design of the building, and the signage of adjacent businesses. 



 

7 
 

b. Flat wall signs shall be located either above the storefront, within the frieze of the 

cornice, on covered transoms, or on the pier that frames display windows or 

generally on flat, unadorned surfaces of the façade or in other areas clearly suitable 

as sign locations. 

c. Projecting signs shall be located at least ten (10) feet above the sidewalk, project no 

more than three (3) feet from the façade of the building, and shall not be placed 

above the cornice line of the first floor level unless there is a clearance of less than 

ten (10) feet below such cornice line to the sidewalk. 

d. Window signs, both interior and exterior, shall be located approximately five and 

one-half (5 ½) feet above the sidewalk at the center point of the window and the 

window sign for good pedestrian visibility, except that such signs may be located 

eighteen (18) inches from the top or bottom of the display window glass. 

e. Window signs may be placed on the glazing of doors and on upper floor windows 

for separate building tenants. 

f. Awning and canopy signs shall be placed on the valance area only.  The minimum 

space between the edge of the letter and the top and the bottom of the valance shall 

be one and one-half (1 ½) inches.  The average height of lettering and symbols shall 

be no more than nine (9) inches. 

g. Freestanding signs shall not be permitted in this district. 

h.    Roof signs shall not be permitted in this district. 

2. Sign Size. 

a. All combined building signage shall not exceed fifty (50) square feet. 

b. Flat wall signs shall not exceed eighteen (18) inches in height and shall not extend 

more than six (6) inches from the building façade. 

c. Projecting signs shall be a maximum of six (6) square feet per sign face. 

d. The average height of letters and symbols shall be no more than twelve (12) inches 

on wall signs, nine (9) inches on awning and canopy signs, and six (6) inches on 

window signs. 

e. Window signs shall not obscure more than twenty percent (20%) of the window 

glass. 

3. Quantity of Permanent Signs. 



 

8 
 

The number of signs permitted for any building shall be limited as follows to encourage 

compatibility with the building and discourage visual clutter.  

a. Signs shall be limited to two (2) total per building and each shall be of a different 

type.  No building shall have more than one (1) wall sign on any street frontage.   

b. Small directory signs may be located near entries or inside a common lobby area. 

4. Sign Design and Shape. 

a. All signs shall be readable and convey an image for the business and historic 

downtown area that is compatible with, and appropriate under, the Downtown 

Master Plan. 

b. Signs shall conform to the shape of the area where the sign is to be located, except 

when a sign is to take on the shape of a product or a service, such as a coffee mug 

for a coffee shop or a shoe for a shoe store.  Such shapes shall not obscure the 

architectural elements of the building. 

5.  Materials. 

a. Signs shall be made only of traditional sign materials such as wood, glass, gold leaf, 

raised individual metal or painted wood letters, or painted letters on wood, metal, or 

glass. 

b. Form letters shall not be permitted. 

c. Wall signs shall not be painted directly on the surface of masonry walls if the wall 

has not been previously painted. 

d. Window signs shall be painted or have flat decal letters and shall not be three-

dimensional (3-D). 

e.  Non-professionally painted signs shall not be permitted. 

6.  Color. 

Colors that complement the materials and color scheme of the building, including the 

accent and trim colors, shall be used.  Three (3) colors are recommended, although 

additional colors may be used where complementary to the color scheme of the building.  

Use of colors in excess of three shall be subject to the approval of the Review 

Committee. 

 

 



 

9 
 

7.  Illumination. 

Signs shall be indirectly lit with a shielded incandescent light source.  Internally lit 

plastic molded signs shall not be permitted in the district. 

8.  Buildings with Multiple Tenants. 

A master sign plan shall be submitted for any building having more than one tenant.  

Upper-floor tenants shall be identified at each primary entrance by a flat, wall-mounted 

directory sign. 

9.  Other Signs. 

Wall murals shall be compatible with the district character and subject to approval of the 

Review Committee. 

K.  AWNINGS AND CANOPIES: 

1. Types. 

a. Standard Slope Fabric Awnings may be used on most historic buildings and may be 

either fixed or retractable. 

b.  Boxed or Curved Fabric Awnings may be used on non-historical buildings. 

2. Design and Placement. 

a. Awnings shall be placed within the storefront, porch, door or window openings so as 

to not obscure architectural elements of the building or damage the building façade. 

b. Awning designs shall not conflict or interfere with existing signs, distinctive 

architectural features of the building, street trees or other streetscape features. 

c. Awnings shall be shaped to fit the opening in which they are installed. 

d. The bottom of any awning shall be a minimum of seven (7) feet above the sidewalk. 

e. Plastic or Aluminum Awnings shall not be permitted in the district. 

f. The color scheme of the awning shall coordinate with the overall colors of the 

building.  Solid colors, wide and narrow stripes may be used if compatible with 

building colors. 

 

 



 

10 
 

 

L.  CERTIFICATION OF APPROPRIATENESS, GENERALLY: 

1. No building or structure within the district shall be erected, reconstructed, altered, 

improved or restored unless and until an application for a Certificate of Appropriateness 

shall have been approved by the Review Committee.  

2. No building, structure, or area which has been designated as a historical building, 

structure, or area by the Virginia Historic Landmarks Commissioner, or by the Local, 

State or Federal government shall be demolished or removed, in whole or in part, unless 

and until an application for a Certificate of Appropriateness shall have been approved by 

the Review Committee. 

3. Evidence of such required approval shall be a Certificate of Appropriateness issued by 

the Review Committee. 

4. Application for a Certificate of Appropriateness required by the Article shall be made to 

the Director of Development or his designee. 

M.  DOWNTOWN DESIGN REVIEW COMMITTEE: 

1. A review committee is hereby established and shall be known as the Downtown Design 

Review Committee, hereafter referred to as the “Review Committee.”  The membership 

of the Review Committee shall consist of no more or less than three (3) nor more than 

five (5) members who shall be appointed by City Council to serve staggered terms. Each 

member of the of the Review Committee must have a demonstrated interest, 

competence, or knowledge in historic preservation.  At least one (1) member shall be an 

architect or an architectural historian, meeting the Secretary of the Interior’s professional 

qualifications standards referred to in 36 CFR 61, one (1) member shall be a downtown 

property owner, another member shall be a downtown business owner, and the 

remaining member or members shall have knowledge of, and demonstrated interest in, 

the historic character of the City, and knowledge or expertise deemed useful to the work 

of the Review Committee. These members may include, but not limited to, a licensed 

contractor, a real estate broker, or architect.  City Council, at its own discretion, may 

appoint members that do not reside in the City of Hopewell if they deem it appropriate.  

The members shall serve a term of four (4) years. The City Planner shall serve as an 

advisory member of the Review Committee and shall have no vote.  No member of the 

Review Committee shall serve more than two consecutive four (4) year terms.  A 

member may be re-appointed to additional terms after being out of office for at least one 

four (4) year term. 



 

11 
 

2. The Review Committee shall elect from its own membership a chairman and a vice 

chairman who shall serve annual terms as such and may succeed themselves. 

3. The chairman shall conduct the meetings of the Review Committee.  All members of the 

Review Committee, except for advisory members, shall be entitled to vote, and the 

decisions of the Review Committee shall be determined by a majority vote.  A quorum 

shall be a majority of the membership.  A quorum shall present for official business to 

be conducted at any meeting and for any action to be taken.  The Review Committee 

shall meet monthly after notification by the Director of Development of an application 

for a Certificate of Appropriateness or permit requiring action by the Review 

Committee.  The Review Committee shall take action on any matter properly before it 

no later than sixty (60) days after its first meeting to discuss such matter, unless the time 

is extended with the written consent of the applicant.  The Review Committee shall not 

reconsider any decision made by it, or entertain any application or request that it deems 

to be substantially similar to an application or request that has previously been denied, 

for a period of one (1) year from the date of denial, except in cases where an applicant 

resubmits his application amended as provided in this Article within ninety (90) days 

after the date of denial of the initial application.   

4. In the case of disapproval or denial of the erection, reconstruction, alteration, or 

restoration of a building or structure, the Review Committee shall briefly state its 

reasons for such disapproval in writing, and it may make recommendations to the 

applicant with respect to suggested changes, the appropriateness of design, arrangement, 

texture, material, color, location and the like of a building or structure involved.  In the 

case of disapproval accompanied by such recommendations, the applicant may amend 

and resubmit his application within ninety (90) days of such disapproval or denial if 

such application has been amended to comply with all of the recommendations of the 

Review Committee. 

5. In the case of disapproval or denial of an application for the demolition of a building in 

the district, the Review Committee shall state specifically its reasons for such 

disapproval or denial in writing. 

6. The Review Committee, when requested for a building permit in the district, shall 

inform the applicant of any changes and alterations necessary to bring the proposed 

building or structure in harmony with the general design of the building or structures 

located in the surrounding areas as a condition of issuing such permit. 

7. In matters governing the procedure for meetings not covered by this Article, the Review 

Committee may establish its own rules and procedures; provided they are not contrary to 

the content and intent of this Article. 

 



 

12 
 

 

 

N.  NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING: 

No application for a Certificate of Appropriateness to demolish a building or structure that 

exists in the district shall be considered by the Review Committee until a public hearing has 

been held thereon, following notice as required under Section 15.2-2204, Code of Virginia 

(1950), as amended. 

O.  CRITERIA FOR GRANTING A CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS: 

1. Before a Certificate of Appropriateness is issued for the erection, reconstruction, 

alteration or restoration of a building or structure in the district, the Review Committee 

shall consider: 

a. The historical or architectural value and significance of the building or structure and 

its relationship to or congruity with the historic value of the land, place and area in 

the district upon which it is proposed to be located, constructed, reconstructed, 

altered, or restored. 

b. The appropriateness of the exterior architectural features of such building or 

structure to such land, place or area and its relationship to or congruity with the 

exterior architectural features of other land, places, areas, buildings or structures in 

the district and environs. 

c. The adherence to the Urban Design Guidelines set forth in the Downtown Master 

Plan that addresses building rhythm, building height, materials, and building 

character. 

2. Before a Certificate of Appropriateness is issued for the demolition of a building or 

structure which exists in the district, the Review Committee shall consider: 

a. Is the building or structure of such architectural or historic interest that its removal or 

disturbance would be to the detriment of the public interest? 

b. Is the building or structure of such interest or significance that it could be made into 

a national, state or local historic landmark? 

c. Is the building or structure of such old and unusual or uncommon design, texture 

and/or material that it could not be reproduced, or could be reproduced only with 

great difficulty and/or expense? 



 

13 
 

d. Would retention of the building or structure help preserve the historic character of 

the district? 

e. Would retention of the building or structure help preserve a historic interest in a 

place or an area of the city? 

f. Would retention of the building or structure promote the general welfare by 

maintaining and increasing real estate values; generating business; creating new 

positions; attracting tourists, students, writers, historians, artists and artisans; attracting 

new residents; encouraging study and interest in American history; stimulating interest 

and study in architecture and design; educating citizens in American culture and 

heritage; and making the city a more attractive and desirable place in which to live? 

3.  The Review Committee shall not consider detailed designs, interior arrangements, or 

features of a building or structure which are not subject to public view from a public 

street, public way, or other public place, except to the extent necessary to do so for the 

purpose of preventing the location, construction, reconstruction, alteration or repair of 

a building or structure that will be incongruous with the preservation and protection of 

the historic aspects, settings and environment of the district and other buildings, 

structures, land, places of areas therein. 

P.  ISSUANCE OF CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS: 

Upon approval by the Review Committee of any erection, reconstruction, alteration, restoration 

or demolition, a Certificate of Appropriateness, signed by the committee chairman and bearing 

the date of issuance, but subject to the provisions of this Article shall be made available to the 

applicant. 

Q.  EXPIRATION OF CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS: 

Any Certificate of Appropriateness issued pursuant to this Article shall expire twelve (12) 

months from the date of issuance if the work authorized by said certificate has not commenced, 

or if any such work is suspended or abandoned for a period of twelve (12) months after being 

commenced.  Any period or periods of time during which the right to use any such certificate is 

stayed pursuant to this Article or by a court of competent jurisdiction, shall be excluded from 

the computation of the twelve (12) month period. 

R.  APPEALS FROM DOWNTOWN DESIGN REVIEW COMMITTEE: 

Any applicant aggrieved by a final decision of the Review Committee shall have the right to 

appeal such decision to the Hopewell City Council, provided that such appeal is filed within a 

period of thirty (30) days after the Review Committee has made its decision.  The filing of the 

petition shall stay the Review Committee’s decision pending the outcome of the appeal to the 

City Council.  Any applicant aggrieved from any final decision of the City Council shall have 



 

14 
 

the right to appeal to the circuit court for review by filing a complaint, setting forth the alleged 

illegality of the action of the governing body, provided such complaint is filed within thirty (30) 

days after the final decision is rendered by the governing body.  The filing of the said complaint 

shall stay the decision of the governing body pending the outcome of the appeal to the court 

except that the filing of such complaint shall not stay the decision of the governing body if such 

decision denies the right to raze or demolish a historic landmark, building or structure.  The 

court may reverse or modify the decision of the governing body, in whole or in part, if it finds 

upon review that the decision of the governing body is contrary to law or that its decision is 

arbitrary and constitutes an abuse of discretion.  The filing of an appeal hereunder shall not 

operate as a de facto approval of any application disapproved or denied by the Review 

Committee. 

S. VIOLATIONS: 

Violators of the Downtown Central Business District section of the Zoning Ordinance are 

subject to Article XX. Violations and Penalties. 

T. EXCLUSION: 

 

1. Nothing in this Article shall be construed to prevent the ordinary maintenance or repair 

of any exterior elements of any building or structure described in this Article; nor shall 

anything in this Article be construed to prevent the construction, reconstruction, 

alteration, or demolition of any such element which the authorized municipal offers shall 

certify as required by public safety. 

2. For the purpose of this ordinance; ordinary maintenance and repair is defined as any 

work which preserves and does not alter the present or current appearance of the exterior 

elements of the building or structure as long as there is no change in design and/or 

materials. 

3. For the purpose of this section, examples of work not requiring approval of the 

Downtown Design Review Committee are:  repainting an existing window, door, porch, 

porch rail, etc.; replacing same type/color of shingles on a building. 

4. For the purpose of this section, examples of work requiring approval of the Downtown 

Design Review Committee are:  changing the color of a house or structure; any new 

addition to a house or structure; any new house or structure; installing new windows or 

architectural trim; installing siding material not identical in color or texture to what is 

presently on the house or structure. 

 

U.  PROTECTIVE MAINTENANCE: 

 

1. All buildings and structures within the Downtown Central Business District shall be 

preserved against decay and deterioration and maintained free from structural defects to 



 

15 
 

the extent that such decay, deterioration or defects may, in the opinion of the review 

board, result in the irreparable deterioration of any exterior appurtenance or architectural 

features or produce a detrimental effect upon the character of the district as a whole or 

upon the life and character of the structure itself.  The existence of any of the following 

conditions shall be sufficient to deem a structure an “endangered structure”: 

a. The deterioration or ineffective waterproofing of exterior walls or other vertical 

supports, including broken windows and doors; 

b. The deterioration of roofs or horizontal members; 

c. The deterioration of exterior chimneys; 

d. The deterioration or crumbling of exterior plaster or mortar; 

e. The deterioration of any feature so as to create or permit the creation of any 

hazardous or unsafe condition or conditions; 

f. Defective lack of weather protection for exterior wall coverings, including lack 

of paint, or weathering due to lack of paint or other protective covering. 

2. Upon a determination by the review committee (with the technical advice of the 

Building Code Official) that a structure constitutes an endangered structure in 

accordance with section, the review board shall notify the zoning administrator of such 

determination, and the zoning administrator shall give notice of the determination and 

the requirements of this section to the property owner as set forth herein.  Within thirty 

(30) days of receipt of this notice, the owner shall commence the necessary stabilization 

repairs and the owner shall complete the repairs within one hundred-twenty (120) days 

of such notice.   The zoning administrator shall notify the owner by Certified Mail, 

Return Receipt Requested, of the endangered structure determination, and of the thirty 

(30) and one hundred-twenty (120) day time limitation set forth herein.  Upon written 

notice to the zoning administrator within ten (10) days of receipt of the notice, an owner 

shall have a right to a hearing before the review board.  Upon receipt of the owner’s 

notice, the zoning administrator shall promptly advise the owner of the time and location 

of the hearing and the right to present evidence and be represented by counsel.  The 

hearing shall be informal and the decision of the review committee shall be subject to 

the appeal in accordance with Section R of this Article.  

3. The one hundred-twenty (120) day time limit for completion of the repairs as set forth in 

the preceding paragraph may be extended for thirty (30) day intervals on the discretion 

of the review committee for good cause shown. 

4. Enforcement of this section shall be in conformance with Article XXII (A) of this 

ordinance. 

5. Violations of this section shall be punishable as set forth in Article XX (B) of this 

ordinance. 

6. Alternatively, if the owner fails to act, the review board may order the zoning 

administrator after due notice to the owner, to enter the property and make or cause to be 

made such repairs as are necessary to preserve the integrity and safety of the structure.  

The reasonable costs thereof shall be placed as a lien against the property. 

 



 
PH-3 

 







1 | P a g e  
 

This document provides an overview of the CLG Program 

The Certified Local Government Program in Virginia 

 

 

Communities strengthen and expand their local preservation programs through Certified Local 

Government (CLG) designation. The CLG program was created by the National Historic 

Preservation Act of 1966 (as amended in 1980). It establishes a partnership between local 

governments, the federal historic preservation program, and each state's State Historic 

Preservation Office (SHPO), which in the case of Virginia is the Department of Historic 

Resources (DHR).  

The program allows DHR, as the SHPO, to recommend for certification local governments that 

have put key elements of a sound local preservation program in place in their communities. 

Designation as a CLG gives local governments a way to participate more formally in the state 

and national historic preservation programs. General requirements for certification are identified 

in the federal program; specific requirements for the Virginia program have been established by 

DHR. 

Goals of the Virginia CLG program are threefold:  

 Promote viable communities through preservation  

 Recognize and reward communities with sound local preservation programs  

 Establish credentials of quality for local preservation programs  

CLG Grants 

CLG designation also allows a jurisdictions to apply for CLG grants through federal Historic 

Preservation Funds (HPF). Ten percent of all HPF monies that come to the 

Commonwealth of Virginia must be distributed to CLGs. DHR does this through a 

competitive grant process, open only to CLGs.  

 

 

 

 

 



2 | P a g e  
 

 

Benefits of CLG Designation 

There are many advantages to earning CLG designation as a community.  

The CLG program helps a community with preservation generally in three ways, as it  

 promotes community-wide preservation; 

 recognizes and supports a community's  local preservation programs; and 

 establishes the credentials of quality for local preservation programs.  

As a CLG, a community: 

 assumes a formal role in the identification, evaluation, and protection of its heritage 

resources; 

 has the right to comment on the eligibility of resources nominated for listing in the 

National Register of Historic Places in its jurisdiction; 

 receives technical assistance from DHR and the National Park Service; 

 learns from each other CLGs by sharing experiences, concerns, solutions to problems; 

 can apply for matching grants for preservation programs from a 10% share of Virginia’s 

annual federal appropriation; 

 gains free full access to DHR's GIS-based Data Sharing System (DSS), a $500 value 

annually; 

 is eligible for stipends to selected preservation conferences and workshops; 

 is automatically considered for the DHR Cost Share Program funding for survey projects 

in which CLG grant funding is unavailable; 

 is granted the right to be a "consulting party" in a project requiring Section 106 review. 

CLG grants can be used in the following ways:  

 for surveys of architectural or archaeological resources;  

  

 for preparation of Preliminary Information Forms or National Register of Historic Places 

nominations for local heritage resources; 

  

 for heritage stewardship planning projects such as drafting historic preservation plans, 

archaeological assessments, preservation components of comprehensive plans, or 

http://www.dhr.virginia.gov/registers/register.htm


3 | P a g e  
 

condition assessment reports; 

  

 for public education programs concerned with a heritage stewardship program; 

  

 for local review board or targeted audience training and education projects such as 

development of materials or programs, including training sessions and hands-on 

workshops;  

  

 for testing archaeological sites to determine their significance or for pure research, 

education, or mitigation (as the latter pertains to Section 106 requirements);  

  

 for rehabilitation of buildings listed in the National Register of Historic Places that are 

publicly owned or are privately owned and selected through a local grant competition; 

 for drafting new or updated design guidelines; 

 for materials research on a rehabilitation project. 

Requirements for CLG Designation 

DHR is currently reviewing the CLG program requirements to identify other local 

government planning efforts that promote heritage stewardship activities and that 

contribute to an effective local preservation program. As a result of this review, some 

of the requirements for the CLG program may be amended. 

Currently the following requirements are necessary for CLG designation.   

 A local government must adopt a historic district ordinance that: 

(a) defines district boundaries,  

(b) establishes a review board,  

(c) identifies actions that must be reviewed and standards for review, and  

(d) in general provides for the protection of local historic resources. 

 The CLG's preservation commission or review board must administer its ordinance and 

work as an advocate for preservation in the locality. 

  

 The CLG must continue to survey its local heritage resources. 

  

 The CLG must promote public participation in its local heritage stewardship program. 

 The CLG must annually report on the performance of its CLG responsibilities.  

An application for designation as a CLG currently requires the following:  

 A request for certification from the local chief elected official with a written assurance 

that the local government fulfills the Virginia CLG requirements.  



4 | P a g e  
 

 A copy of the local preservation ordinance and map(s) showing the areas and sites 

protected by the ordinance. 

 A copy of a resume for each member of the local review board and a copy of the board’s 

bylaws and rules of procedure. 

List of CLGs in Virginia 

The following communities have strengthened and expanded their local preservation programs 

through participation in the Certified Local Government program. In Virginia the program is 

jointly administered by the National Park Service (NPS) and the Virginia Department of Historic 

Resources (the State Historic Preservation Office).  

The communities below are active partners in the Federal Historic Preservation Program and the 

opportunities it provides. These include access to the expert preservation and technical advice of 

DHR as well as the NPS. Partnerships with the National Alliance of Preservation Commissions, 

Preserve America, the National Trust for Historic Preservation, and the National Main Street 

Center are also networks that CLGs have an opportunity to tap. Of course, another benefit is 

access through DHR to Federal funds set aside annually for CLGs (see below for list of 

communities receiving funding in 2013).  

Also, Virginia CLGs receive a free license to access V-CRIS and training in using the state-of-

the-art GIS database of historic resources.  

These CLGs show a community commitment to keeping what is significant from the past for 

future generations. As a certified town, city, or county seeking other opportunities, it becomes 

easy to demonstrate a readiness to take on a preservation project and be successful.  

Abingdon (Town)  Manassas (City) 

Alexandria (City)  Middleburg (Town) 

Arlington County  Petersburg (City) 

Blacksburg (Town) Prince William County 

Cape Charles (Town) Pulaski (Town) 

Charlottesville (City)  Richmond (City) 

Clarke County  Roanoke (City) 

Culpeper (Town)  Smithfield (Town) 

Danville (City) Spotsylvania County 

Fairfax (City)  Stafford County 

Fairfax County  Staunton (City) 

Fredericksburg (City)  Stevens City (Town) 

Hanover County  Suffolk (City) 

http://www.nps.gov/NR/shpolist.htm
http://napc.uga.edu/
http://www.preserveamerica.gov/
http://www.preservationnation.org/
http://www.preservationnation.org/main-street/#.UjMbgT-E7To
http://www.preservationnation.org/main-street/#.UjMbgT-E7To
http://www.dhr.virginia.gov/archives/archiv_vcrisHome.htm


5 | P a g e  
 

Herndon (Town)  Warrenton (Town) 

Leesburg (Town)  Williamsburg (City) 

Loudoun County  Winchester (City) 

Lynchburg (City)    

 

 



REGULAR 
BUSINESS 

REPORTS OF 
THE CITY 
MANAGER 

 

 



 
R-1 

 
 



BUDGET AMENDMENT RESOLUTION 
FISCAL YEAR 2017 

 
WHEREAS, at the April 25, 2017 Hopewell City Council meeting, an 

amendment to the FY 2017 budget was introduced to appropriate $7,500 in 
additional funds for City Council for travel, and 

 
WHEREAS, sufficient funds exist in the unassigned fund balance account, 

 
BE IT, HEREBY, RESOLVED by the Hopewell City Council that: 
 
$7,500 be appropriated from the General Fund to City Council travel, as follows: 
 
General Fund-011: 
  Resources: 

Fund Balance ......................................................................  $7,500  
  

Appropriations: 
 

  
City Council Travel ............................................................  $7,500 

 



 
R-2 

 
 



BUDGET AMENDMENT RESOLUTION 
FISCAL YEAR 2017 

 
WHEREAS, at the April 25, 2017 Hopewell City Council meeting, an 

amendment to the FY 2017 budget was introduced to appropriate an additional 
$15,000 for City Council miscellaneous expenses, and 

 
WHEREAS, sufficient funds exist in the unassigned fund balance account, 

 
BE IT, HEREBY, RESOLVED by the Hopewell City Council that: 
 
 $15,000 be appropriated from the General Fund to City Council 
miscellaneous expense fund, as follows: 
 
General Fund-011: 
  Resources: 

Fund Balance ......................................................................  $15,000  
  

Appropriations: 
 

  
City Council Miscellaneous Expenses ...............................  $15,000 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

R-3 
 

 

 

 



 

Resolution  
 
 

City of Hopewell 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING FISCAL AGENT FOR CODERVA 

 
 

Whereas, the School Boards of the Counties of Chesterfield, Cumberland, Dinwiddie, 
Goochland, Hanover, Henrico, New Kent, Powhatan, Prince George and Sussex, and 
the Cities of Colonial Heights, Hopewell, Petersburg and Richmond (the “School 
Boards”), pursuant to Virginia Code §22.1-26 and regulations of the Virginia Board 
of Education, operate and control a joint school known as CodeRVA as set forth in a 
written agreement to establish and operate the CodeRVA Regional High School 
signed by the school boards; and 
 

Whereas, the school boards seek to ensure the responsible operation and management of 
CodeRVA; and 
 

Whereas,  Virginia Code § 22.1-118 and Section V of the CodeRVA Agreement require the 
school boards to appoint a fiscal agent; and 
 

Whereas, Henrico County is a participating locality and is willing to serve as the fiscal agent for 
CodeRVA. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Hopewell City Council of that, upon approval by 

the Henrico Board of Supervisors, the Director of the Department of Finance for Henrico County shall serve as 
fiscal agent for CodeRVA. 

 
 

N WITNESS WHEREOF, we the City Council for the City of Hopewell have hereunto 
set our hand and caused to be affixed  the Great Seal of the City of Hopewell in the 
Commonwealth of Virginia this 25th day of April, 2017. 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
                
Jackie Shornak, Mayor      Jasmine Gore, Vice Mayor 
 
 
                
Christina Luman-Bailey, Councilor    Arlene Holloway, Councilor 
 
 
                
Anthony J. Zevgolis, Councilor     Janice Denton, Councilor 
 
 
                
Brenda S. Pelham Councilor     Ronnieye Arrington, Interim City Clerk 
 

I 



 

 

 

 

R-4 
 

 



____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Mayor, Jackie M. Shornak Ward #7    □ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2  
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4   □ □ Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3 
□ □ Councilor Christina Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5  

     □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
       

  
  

 

 

 
 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
    
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Presentation 
 
ISSUE: Review Requested Capital Projects & City Manager’s Recommendation for CIP  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approval of City Manager’s Recommendation of Capital Project 
Funding for CIP 
 
TIMING: FY 2018 CIP Capital Projects 
 
BACKGROUND: Capital Project Requests were Submitted City Departments and 
Reviewed/Revised by Staff with the City Manager for his Recommendation for CIP 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Capital Budget totals $9,212,723. 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:  CIP Reports (Summary & Detailed Line-Item Reports)  
 
STAFF: Lance Wolff, Interim Director of Finance 
               Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager 
 
SUMMARY: Review & Approve Capital Projects/Purchases Funding for CIP 
  
 

 

 



CITY OF HOPEWELL
CAPITAL PROJECT 

FISCAL YEAR 2018 PROJECTION
DRAFT

H:\City Council\Agendas\2017\4-25-17\Copy of FY18 Capital Project vs (005) Page 1 of 3 Pivot Summary

Row Labels Division Description JUSTIFICATION Sum of FY16 ORIG BUD Sum of FY17 ORIG BUD Sum of FY18 PROJECTION Difference
CIRCUIT COURT CLERK CIRCUIT COURT CLERK (blank) 1,300.00                             -                                       -                                            

CIRCUIT COURT CLERK Total 1,300.00                             -                                       -                                            -                                

CITY MANAGER MANAGER (blank) 70,000.00                           77,500.00                           -                                            
CITY MANAGER Total 70,000.00                           77,500.00                           -                                            (77,500.00)                   

COMMONWELATH ATTORNEY COMM. ATY (blank) -                                       48,556.00                           -                                            
COMMONWELATH ATTORNEY Total -                                       48,556.00                           -                                            (48,556.00)                   

FINANCE ACCOUNTING PRINCIPAL PAYMENT - DEBT 2,387,534.00                     3,043,451.00                     3,105,452.00                          
INTEREST PAYMENT- INTEREST 1,581,466.00                     1,623,423.00                     1,556,956.00                          

FINANCE Total 3,969,000.00                     4,666,874.00                     4,662,408.00                          (4,466.00)                     

FIRE FIRE (blank) 12,500.00                           12,500.00                           -                                            
Requesting rollover of the funds from last year to maintain station fire 2 160,000.00                         160,000.00                         160,000.00                              

GRANTS (blank) 30,000.00                           30,000.00                           -                                            
2 Emily water rescue life safety devices that were demonstrated on March 31st. 22,000.00                           22,000.00                           29,000.00                                

FIRE Total 224,500.00                         224,500.00                         189,000.00                              (35,500.00)                   

HUMAN RESOURCES HR (blank) 40,000.00                           40,000.00                           -                                            
HUMAN RESOURCES Total 40,000.00                           40,000.00                           -                                            (40,000.00)                   

INFORMATION TECHNOGOLY INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ADDITIONAL DEPARTMENTS -                                       50,000.00                           75,000.00                                
ADDITIONAL STORAGE TO INCLUDE H20 -                                       109,000.00                         120,000.00                              
FIBER CONNECTIONS FOR SOCIAL SERVICES, RECREATION AND PUBLIC WORKS -                                       165,000.00                         165,000.00                              
Munis Upgrades and Training 50,000.00                           15,000.00                           15,000.00                                

INFORMATION TECHNOGOLY Total 50,000.00                           339,000.00                         375,000.00                              36,000.00                    

NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES CODE $40,000 was approved last year but was omitted 25,000.00                           25,000.00                           40,000.00                                
fund spot blight and derelict buildings 50,000.00                           50,000.00                           75,000.00                                

GIS (blank) 40,000.00                           -                                       -                                            
PLANNING (blank) -                                       50,000.00                           50,000.00                                

NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES Total 115,000.00                         125,000.00                         165,000.00                              40,000.00                    

POLICE COMMUNICATIONS (blank) -                                       -                                       -                                            
PATROL 4 Marked Sedan, 2 Unmarked Sedans, 1 Animal Control Truck 140,000.00                         187,500.00                         233,000.00                              

POLICE Total 140,000.00                         187,500.00                         233,000.00                              45,500.00                    

PUBLIC WORKS B & G CITY BUILDINGS -                                       75,000.00                           100,000.00                              

original roof since built has several leaks, Courthouse has not been painted since built. 
Upgrade HVAC at Social Services. Build new storage building in old garage footprint. -                                       -                                       235,000.00                              
(blank) -                                       25,000.00                           455,000.00                              



CITY OF HOPEWELL
CAPITAL PROJECT 

FISCAL YEAR 2018 PROJECTION
DRAFT

H:\City Council\Agendas\2017\4-25-17\Copy of FY18 Capital Project vs (005) Page 2 of 3 Pivot Summary

Row Labels Division Description JUSTIFICATION Sum of FY16 ORIG BUD Sum of FY17 ORIG BUD Sum of FY18 PROJECTION Difference
PUBLIC WORKS B & G PUBLIC WORKS (blank) 130,000.00                         -                                       -                                            

VDOT 20,000.00                           160,000.00                         20,000.00                                
At $800,000 Identified Projects 1-3 would be fully funded for FY 18.  Revenue Sharing 
Program (RSP) reimbursement funds will then be appropriated to the associated project 
expenditure accounts to fund Projects 4 and 5.  Projects 6-10 would need to be funded by 
other sources or delayed.  Projects 6-10 would move up in ranking order as other ranked 
projects 1-5 are completed. -                                       400,000.00                         1,100,000.00                          

Neighborhood deficiencies, aging infrastructure and substandard facility ratings have 
created a constant need for pavement reconstruction and rehabilitation and the City’s 
ongoing responsibility to do those improvements.  The City is also responsible to  
reconstruct pavement sections so identified in the bi-annual VDOT Richmond District street 
inspection report.  City Engineer is required to sign and acknowledge the identified 
deficiencies in such report.  City Engineer is asking for additional $200,000 to build on 
recent success of pavement management program.  If granted, any and all additional funds 
will be dedicated exclusively to reconstruction of local streets. 350,000.00                         550,000.00                         750,000.00                              
to work more efficiently only 1 vehicle for crew -                                       -                                       167,000.00                              
(blank) 1,534,000.00                     30,000.00                           30,000.00                                

PUBLIC WORKS Total 2,034,000.00                     1,240,000.00                     2,857,000.00                          1,617,000.00               

RECREATION PARKS

THE REQUESTED CAPITAL FUNDING WILL BE USED FOR PARK IMPROVEMENTS ACROSS THE 
CITY TO INCLUDE THE REPLACEMENT OF PLAY EQUIPMENT, FENCING, LANDSCAPING, 
LIGHTING, SIDEWALKS AND PARKING.  PROJECTS WILL BE COMPLETED IN ORDER OF 
PRIORITY. -                                       -                                       200,000.00                              
(blank) 109,000.00                         -                                       -                                            

POOL (blank) -                                       38,000.00                           -                                            

RECREATION CENTER

THE REQUESTED CAPITAL FUNDING WILL BE USED TO REPLACE FITNESS EQUIPMENT, 
OFFICE EQUIPMENT, TABLES, CHAIRS, AND OTHER EQUIPMENT WITHIN THE HOPEWELL 
COMMUNITY CENTER. -                                       -                                       40,000.00                                

THIS CAPITAL FUNDING IS REQUESTED TO FINISH PHASE 2 OF THE HOPEWELL 
COMMUNITY CENTER ROOF REPLACEMENT PROJECT.  THESE FUNDS WILL BE COMBINED 
WITH $70,000 IN ROLLOVER CAPITAL FUNDING TO COMPLETE THE $125,000 PROJECT. -                                       -                                       55,000.00                                

SENIORS (blank) -                                       -                                       -                                            
RECREATION Total 109,000.00                         38,000.00                           295,000.00                              257,000.00                  

SHERIFF SHERIFF 295 -                                       38,000.00                           20,000.00                                
TWO NEW COURT VEHICLES - REPLACE AGING VEHICLES 100,500.00                         124,630.00                         62,315.00                                

SHERIFF Total 100,500.00                         162,630.00                         82,315.00                                (80,315.00)                   

TREASURER TREASURER Additional Funds requested to remodel front cashier area 13,400.00                           10,000.00                           10,000.00                                
Heavy duty shredderPrinter/scanner/copier for cashier area 10,200.00                           5,500.00                             5,500.00                                  



CITY OF HOPEWELL
CAPITAL PROJECT 

FISCAL YEAR 2018 PROJECTION
DRAFT

H:\City Council\Agendas\2017\4-25-17\Copy of FY18 Capital Project vs (005) Page 3 of 3 Pivot Summary

Row Labels Division Description JUSTIFICATION Sum of FY16 ORIG BUD Sum of FY17 ORIG BUD Sum of FY18 PROJECTION Difference

TREASURER TREASURER
Shelving for front and back officesDesk replacement for front officeDesk chair replacement 
for back officeBook cases 600.00                                 4,500.00                             4,500.00                                  

TREASURER Total 24,200.00                           20,000.00                           20,000.00                                -                                

HRWTF HRWTF OVERHEAD Copntingency for replacement equipment if needed.  240,000.00                         240,000.00                         300,000.00                              
Small non-capital equipment that may be needed or replaced during the year. 25,000.00                           30,000.00                           25,000.00                                
We are completing the construction project in early FY18 36,391,100.00                   36,397,190.55                   750,000.00                              

HRWTF Total 36,656,100.00                   36,667,190.55                   1,075,000.00                          (35,592,190.55)           

Grand Total 43,533,600.00                   43,836,750.55                   9,953,723.00                          (33,883,027.55)           

Fund 071 - General Fund 6,877,500.00                     7,169,560.00                     8,878,723.00                          1,709,163.00               
Fund 032 - HRWTF 36,656,100.00                   36,667,190.55                   1,075,000.00                          (35,592,190.55)           

43,533,600.00                   43,836,750.55                   9,953,723.00                          (33,883,027.55)           

Summary



CITY OF HOPEWELL
CAPITAL PROJECT 

FISCAL YEAR 2018 PROJECTION
DRAFT

H:\City Council\Agendas\2017\4-25-17\Copy of FY18 Capital Project vs 4 Without Justification (005)Page 1 of 1 Modified

Row Labels Division Description
FY16 ORIGINAL 

BUDGET
FY17 ORIGINAL 

BUDGET
FY18 Dept. 
Submission

City Manager 
Proposed 

Reductions
City Manager 

Recommendation
Fund 003 
Cemetry*

Fund 032 
Enterprize

Fund 071  
General Fund

CEMENTRY CEMENTRY 130,000.00         -                    130,000.00               130,000.00   -                     
CIRCUIT COURT CLERK CIRCUIT COURT CLERK 1,300.00              -                        -                       -                             -                     
CITY MANAGER MANAGER 70,000.00           77,500.00           -                       -                             -                     
COMMONWELATH ATTORNEY COMM. ATY -                        48,556.00           -                       -                             4,662,408.00   
FINANCE ACCOUNTING 3,969,000.00      4,666,874.00      4,662,408.00     4,662,408.00           160,000.00       
FIRE FIRE 172,500.00         172,500.00         160,000.00         160,000.00               29,000.00         
FIRE GRANTS 52,000.00           52,000.00           29,000.00           29,000.00                 -                     
HUMAN RESOURCES HR 40,000.00           40,000.00           -                       -                             
INFORMATION TECHNOGOLY INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 50,000.00           339,000.00         375,000.00         (25,000.00)      350,000.00               350,000.00       
DEVELOPMENT CODE 75,000.00           75,000.00           115,000.00         115,000.00               115,000.00       
DEVELOPMENT GIS 40,000.00           -                        -                       -                             
DEVELOPMENT PLANNING -                        50,000.00           50,000.00           50,000.00                 50,000.00         
POLICE COMMUNICATIONS -                        -                        -                       -                             
POLICE PATROL 140,000.00         187,500.00         233,000.00         (70,000.00)      163,000.00               163,000.00       
PUBLIC WORKS B & G CITY BUILDINGS -                        100,000.00         790,000.00         (515,000.00)    275,000.00               275,000.00       
PUBLIC WORKS B & G PUBLIC WORKS 130,000.00         -                        -                       -                             
PUBLIC WORKS VDOT 1,904,000.00      1,140,000.00      2,067,000.00     2,067,000.00           2,067,000.00   
RECREATION PARKS 109,000.00         -                        200,000.00         (100,000.00)    100,000.00               100,000.00       
RECREATION POOL -                        38,000.00           -                       -                             
RECREATION RECREATION CENTER -                        -                        95,000.00           95,000.00                 95,000.00         
RECREATION SENIORS -                        -                        -                       -                             
SHERIFF SHERIFF 295 100,500.00         162,630.00         82,315.00           (31,000.00)      51,315.00                 51,315.00         
TREASURER TREASURER 24,200.00           20,000.00           20,000.00           20,000.00                 20,000.00         
HRWTF HRWTF OVERHEAD 36,656,100.00    36,667,190.55    1,075,000.00     1,075,000.00           1,075,000.00   1,075,000.00   
Grand Total 43,533,600.00   43,836,750.55   10,083,723.00   (741,000.00)    9,342,723.00           130,000.00  1,075,000.00   9,212,723.00   

*Fund 003 is funded with fund balance



 

 

 

 

R-5 
 

 



____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Mayor, Jackie M. Shornak Ward #7    □ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2  
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4   □ □ Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3 
□ □ Councilor Christina Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5  

     □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
       

  
  

 

 

 
 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
    
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: FY 2018 Budget Balancing Options Discussion 
 
ISSUE:  Review Real Estate Tax Rate Options for Balancing FY 2018 GF Operating Budget 
 
RECOMMENDATION: City Manager Recommends Option (2) Below 
 
TIMING: Approval of FY 2018 Budget required in May 2017  
 
BACKGROUND: Departmental Budget Requests were Reviewed/ Revised based on Need 
& Priority of All Requests Taken Individually & Collectively    
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 3 Options Available for Balancing FY  
(1) $.04 per $100 Assessed Value Real Estate Tax Rate Increase is $520,000 Add’l Revenue 
(2) $.02 per $100 Assessed Value Real Estate Tax Rate Increase is $260,000 Add’l Revenue 
(3) No Real Estate Tax Rate Increase Results in No Add’l Revenue 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: FY 2018 GF Operating & Capital Budget Reports   
 
STAFF: Lance Wolff, Interim Director of Finance 
               Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager 
 
SUMMARY: Decision on Tax Rate Increases Drives Decision on Budget Balancing Option 
  
 

 

 



CITY OF HOPEWELL
FY 2018 BUDGET OPTIONS

H:\City Council\Agendas\2017\4-25-17\Copy of Budget Options For City Council (005) Modified- 2

ITEM  FY17 Budget  FY18 Projection 
 Increase over 
FY17 Budget 

 Currently included 
in Dept Projection 

 Not in the 
Projection 

 4 Cents    +        
Meals Tax  
Increase 

 2 Cents     +       
Meals Tax  
Increase 

 0 Cent    +        
Meals Tax  
Increase 

Out of Balance Amount Before Changes 375,000.00      375,000.00         375,000.00         375,000.00         
Schools Additional Funding Request 515,179.00      515,179.00         515,179.00         515,179.00         
Class and Compensation Study Phase 1 162,650.00      162,650.00         162,650.00         162,650.00         
Retiree Health Care Modifications 100,000.00                 (100,000.00)       (100,000.00)       (100,000.00)       
Health Care Expenses 148,700.00      148,700.00         148,700.00         148,700.00         
Public Safety retirement Multiplier 150,000.00      150,000.00         150,000.00         150,000.00         
Employee COLA 192,900.00      192,900.00         192,900.00         192,900.00         
Office On Youth Programs 120,000.00                275,015.00               155,015.00           120,000.00                 (30,000.00)         (60,000.00)         
Voter Registraation New Voting Machines 192,735.57                342,735.57               150,000.00           150,000.00                 
Commonwealth Attorney Salary Adjustments 567,944.94                704,603.94               136,659.00           136,659.00                 (136,659.00)       (136,659.00)       (136,659.00)       
Clerk of Circuit Court Salary Adjustments 426,061.21                457,994.41               31,933.20             31,933.00                   (31,933.00)         (31,933.00)         (31,933.00)         
Finance 1 Position 700,679.40                788,766.50               88,087.10             90,000.00                   
Human Resources  Admin Support (Part Time) 412,296.57                439,267.57               26,971.00             25,000.00                   (25,000.00)         
Real Estate Assessor 2 Positions 277,973.00                530,585.00               252,612.00           123,515.00                 (55,000.00)         (55,000.00)         (55,000.00)         
Fire Department 6-EMT/Firefighters -                         25,000.00                   
Fire Department Assistant Chief -                         88,000.00                   (88,000.00)         
DPW Concrete Foreman -                         45,000.00                   (45,000.00)         (45,000.00)         (45,000.00)         
DPW Bldg Maint Tech -                         35,000.00                   
Police Department 2_Downtown Officers 7,402,388.71             7,768,085.65            365,696.94           110,000.00                 (110,000.00)       
CM/OOY Admin Support -                         38,500.00                   (38,500.00)         (38,500.00)         (38,500.00)         
Development Rental Inspector 47,000.00         47,000.00           47,000.00           47,000.00           
CM Grant Writer 48,000.00         
DPW Engineering Analyst 75,000.00         
CM's Reductions to Dept Capital (741,000.00)       (741,000.00)       (741,000.00)       
CM's Reductions To Department Budgets (100,000.00)       (105,000.00)       (110,000.00)       
Borrow of $10,500,000 -                       -                       -                       
Beacon Theater 250,000.00      250,000.00         250,000.00         250,000.00         
Adjustment to The City Attorney Budget 45,000.00         45,000.00           45,000.00           45,000.00           
Unclaimed Human Remains Fund 15,000.00         15,000.00           15,000.00           15,000.00           
City Park Entrance Improvement Phase III and IV 550,000.00      550,000.00         350,000.00         350,000.00         
Constitutional Officer Supplement For Staff 75,000.00         75,000.00           75,000.00           75,000.00           
Mallonee Renovation *** 500,000.00      
Contract For Grant Funding Pursuit 30,000.00         30,000.00           30,000.00           30,000.00           
Tax Liability Transfer 40,000.00         40,000.00           40,000.00           40,000.00           
Riverwalk Completion 100,000.00      100,000.00         100,000.00         100,000.00         
Hopewell Downtown Partnership Funding 75,000.00         75,000.00           75,000.00           75,000.00           

Sub Total 1,118,607.00              3,394,429.00   1,523,337.00     1,288,337.00     1,030,337.00     
Add General Fund Expenses 51,736,703.00   51,736,703.00   51,736,703.00   

Total Projected General Fund Expenses 53,260,040.00   53,025,040.00   52,767,040.00   
Less General Fund Revenues 52,567,277.00   52,567,277.00   52,567,277.00   

Unfunded Balance before Proposed Tax Rate -                               -                    (692,763.00)       (457,763.00)       (199,763.00)       
Proposed Tax Revenue 720,000.00         460,000.00         200,000.00         

FY 2018 Budget Options



CITY OF HOPEWELL
FY 2018 BUDGET OPTIONS

H:\City Council\Agendas\2017\4-25-17\Copy of Budget Options For City Council (005) Modified- 2

ITEM  FY17 Budget  FY18 Projection 
 Increase over 
FY17 Budget 

 Currently included 
in Dept Projection 

 Not in the 
Projection 

 4 Cents    +        
Meals Tax  
Increase 

 2 Cents     +       
Meals Tax  
Increase 

 0 Cent    +        
Meals Tax  
Increase 

FY 2018 Budget Options

Unfunded Balance - Excess (Deficit) -                              -                             -                         -                               -                    27,237.00           2,237.00             237.00                



 

 

 

 

R-6 
 

 



____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Mayor, Jackie M. Shornak Ward #7    □ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2  
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4   □ □ Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3 
□ □ Councilor Christina Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5  

     □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
       

  
  

 

 

 
 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
    
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Approval of Tax Rate Resolution 
 
ISSUE: City Manager Recommends $.04 per $100 of Assessed Value Real Estate Tax Rate 
Increase from $1.13 per $100 Assessed Value to $1.17 per $100 Assessed Value, .5% Meals 
Tax Rate Increase from 5.5% Meals Tax Rate to 6% Meals Tax Rate, and No Increases for 
All Other Tax Rates 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Tax Rate Resolution 
 
TIMING: Rates for FY 2018  
 
BACKGROUND: Increase in Real Estate Tax Rate & Meals Tax Rate are Needed to Fund 
Needs & Balance FY 2018 Budget 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Additional Real Estate Tax Revenue of $130,000 for each $.01 Increase 
per $100 of Assessed Value ($520,000) and Additional $200,000 Meals Tax Revenue from 
.5% Increase in Meals Tax Rate   
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: List of Tax Rates & Tax Rate Changes 
 
STAFF: Lance Wolff, Interim Director of Finance 
               Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager 
 
SUMMARY: Approve Tax Rates for FY 2018 
  
 

 

 



CITY OF HOPEWELL
CITY MANAGER’S

FY 2017-2018 
Budget Overview



Proposed City Budget Calendar for FY 2018
• February 23, 2017: Joint City Council/School Board Budget Meeting

• March 28, 2017: Notice of Public Hearing on Tax Rate (4-11-17) on Consent Agenda

• March 30, 2017: City Council Finance Committee Meeting
Advertise Public Hearing (4-11-2017) on Tax Rate in Newspapers

• April 4, 2017: Budget Work Session on Revenue Projections and Fees.

Preliminary Discussion on City Manager’s Budget Objectives

• April 11, 2017:  Public Hearing on FY 2018 Tax Rates and Approval on 1st Reading

• Budget Work Session on Capital Improvement Plan

• Notice of Public Hearing (4-25-2017) on FY 2018 School Division Budget

• April 13, 2017:    Advertise Public Hearing (4-25-2017) on FY 2018 School Division Budget

• City Council Finance Committee Meeting 

• April 18, 2017: Budget Work Session on City Manager’s Adjusted Budget

• Notice of Public Hearing (5-2-2017) on City Budget on Consent Agenda

• April 20, 2017:  Advertise Public Hearing on City Budget (5-2-2017) in Newspapers

4/22/2017 2



April 25, 2017:  First Reading and Approval of Tax Rate
Adoption of Tax Rate Resolution
Public Hearing on FY 2018 School Division Budget
Adoption of FY 2018 School Division Budget on First Reading
Budget Work Session on City Manager’s Adjusted Budget
Budget Work Session on Adjusted Capital Improvement Plan

April 27, 2017: City Council Finance Committee Meeting
May 2, 2017:    Second Reading and Approval of Tax Rate

Public Hearing and Approval on 1st Reading of the 2018 City Budget
Second Reading and Approval of FY 2018 School Division Budget

May 3, 2017:  Begin Preparation of Tax Bills
May 4, 2017:  City Council Finance Committee Meeting
May 15, 2017: Tax Bill Mailing Date
May 16, 2017:   Approval on Second Reading of the 2018 City Budget

Proposed City Budget Calendar for FY 2018

4/22/2017
3



Goal



REVENUE PICTURE
Hopewell has a solid and stable financial position

4/22/2017 5



Bank Balances
City of Hopewell

Cash & Investment Balances

Five-Year Comparison

FY12 through FY16 plus 3/31/17

3/31/2017* 6/30/16 6/30/15 6/30/14 6/30/13 6/30/12

Cash $  24,167,219 $  27,576,222 $  26,854,478 $  28,641,523 $  26,295,775 $  25,743,773 

Investments 20,535,615 20,446,760 20,369,740 20,384,599 26,871,507 26,918,989 

Total $  44,702,834 $  48,022,982 $  47,224,219 $  49,026,122 $  53,167,282 $  52,662,763 

*The 3/31/17 cash balance is estimated using total cash balances from bank statements

($26.5 million) less the average calculated for outstanding checks (approx. $2.3 million).

4/22/2017 6



General Fund - Total Fund Balance (FY 2014 Audited / FY 2015 thru FY 2017 Unaudited)

Fund 003 Fund 011 Fund 076 Total Adjusted Rainy Day
Non-Spend & 

Other Unassigned

Adj Trial Balance Adj Trial Balance Adj Trial Balance Trial Balance Emergency Funds Assigned Funds Funds

June 30, 2014 CAFR Balance (1,056,454.58) (9,442,839.10) (878,865.60) (11,378,159.28) (4,605,700.00) (3,477,696.00) (3,294,763.28)

Change in Fund Balance 10,818.99 (189,018.95) 210,790.96 32,591.00 (212,878.00) (851,966.05) 1,097,435.05 

June 30, 2015 Balance (1,045,635.59) (9,631,858.05) (668,074.64) (11,345,568.28) (4,818,578.00) (4,329,662.05) (2,197,328.23)

Change in Fund Balance (6,391.84) 1,951,016.47 (52,544.46) 1,892,080.17 - (58,936.30) 1,951,016.47 

June 30, 2016 Balance (1,052,027.43) (7,680,841.58) (720,619.10) (9,453,488.11) (4,818,578.00) (4,388,598.35) (246,311.76)

Change in Fund Balance* 27,841.67 (6,021,303.46) 441,036.31 (5,552,425.48) - (5,552,425.48) -

March 31, 2017 Balance (1,024,185.76) (13,702,145.04) (279,582.79) (15,005,913.59) (4,818,578.00) (9,941,023.83) (246,311.76)

*Only 9 months of activity are reflected for FY 2017.  Final fiscal year-end financial results are not expected yield the same change in fund balance amount.

4/22/2017 7



GOOD NEWS
• Industrial Expansion

• Three Industries still receiving Enterprise Zone M&T 
Rebates that will expire over the next one to three 
years resulting in increases in M&T Taxes

• One possible New Industrial Announcement in 2017 or 
2018

• One additional Major Expansion ($100,000,000) 
• Long Term Debt

• This is the last year before long term debt begins a 
gradual but steady decrease over in the future. 58% of 
our long term debt will be retired in the next 10 years.



M&T TAX Rebate Expiration
(Results in additional M&T taxes upon expiration)

• 2018: $10,460.48

• 2019: $80,540.97

• 2020: $80,540.97

• TOTALS $171,542.42

4/22/2017 9



New or Expanded Industry Potential Revenue

Projected Revenue On Industrial Expansion

Project 1 Estimated $100,000,000 Investment

Annual Revenue Annual Revenue 

Investment Buildings Investment M&T Real Estate Tax M&T Tax Years 1-3 M&T Tax Years 4 and on Total Years 1-3 Totals Years 4 and on

$15,000,000 $85,000,000 $169,500 $453,688 $648,125 $623,188 $817,625

Project 2 Estimated $30,000,000 Investment

Annual Revenue Annual Revenue 

Investment Buildings Investment M&T Real Estate Tax M&T Tax Years 1-3 M&T Tax Years 4 and on Total Years 1-3 Totals Years 4 and on

$10,000,000 $20,000,000 $113,000 $106,750 $152,500 $219,750 $265,500

4/22/2017 10



Assessed Value State Statutory City Policy Long-Term Net Available Potential New

(AV) of 
Real Estate** Debt Limit (10%)

Debt Limit 
(5%)

Debt
Outstanding Debt Capacity Debt Issuances*

FY 2018 1,304,916,400 130,491,640 65,245,820 56,920,800 8,325,020 8,325,020 

FY 2023 1,331,145,220 133,114,522 66,557,261 39,746,913 26,810,348 18,485,328 

FY 2028 1,371,480,251 137,148,025 68,574,013 21,611,522 46,962,491 20,152,143 

FY 2033 1,399,047,004 139,904,700 69,952,350 8,665,000 61,287,350 14,324,860 

FY 2038 1,441,439,527 144,143,953 72,071,976 940,000 71,131,976 9,844,626 

71,131,976

* FY 2018 amount is for only one year of debt issuance, all other amounts are for five years of debt issuance.

* * Assumed 1% increase in AV of real estate property every two years (bi-annual assessments).

Increase in Debt Capacity Over 20 Years in 5-Year Period Increments

4/22/2017 11



Increase in
Local School
Appropriation

FUNDING USES (Expenditures):
State Mandated VRS Pension Rate Increase 435,356          
State Mandated 2% COLA Salary Increase 666,195          

Increase in State Mandated Spending 1,101,551       
Summer School Program Expansion 187,547          
Custodian Salary & Benefits Adjustment 193,546          
Healthcare Benefits Cost Increase 173,061          
Transfer of Bus Garage Operation to City (185,531)        
Additional Program Cuts (155,319)        
Spend-down of Fund Balance in Operating Fund 38,560            

Net Increase in Local Program Spending 251,864          
Net Increase in Expenditures 1,353,415       

FUNDING SOURCES (Revenues):
Total State Revenue Growth 1,021,859       
Total Federal Revenue Reduction (63,623)          
Total Other Local (Tuition) Revenue Reduction (120,000)        

Net Increase in Revenues 838,236          

Increase in Local Schools Appropriation (SOURCE) 515,179       

FY 2018 Increase in Local Schools Appropriation

4/22/2017 12



Schools Request

• Schools Additional Funding Request $515,179

• Real Estate Tax Increase to $1.17

Estimate of additional Funds $520,000

Net Additional Funds $4,821
4/22/2017 13



4/22/2017 14

FY 2018 Revenue Projections

Source FY 2018 Projection FY 2017 Projection FY 2016 Actuals FY 2015 Actuals FY 2014 Actuals

I-295 Fees $1,300,000.00 $1,350,000.00 $1,003,618.43 $1,369,920.85 $1,408,841.00

Real Estate Taxes $14,300,000.00 $14,100,000.00 $14,344,393.86 $14,307,593.47 $13,398,307.00
Public Service Taxes $4,175,000.00 $4,176,011.30 $4,175,876.30 $4,028,524.45 $3,800,122.00
Personal Property Taxes $4,500,000.00 $4,200,000.00 $4,472,636.72 $4,309,972.56 $4,046,963.00
Vehicle License Fees $375,000.00 $360,000.00 $353,481.52 $337,964.16 $345,786.00
M&T Taxes $7,600,000.00 $8,037,641.00 $7,382,253.59 $5,636,474.22 $5,440,954.00
BPOL (Fund 11) $1,950,000.00 $1,875,000.00 $1,854,092.32 $1,757,196.19 $1,806,889.00
Meals Tax (Fund 71) $2,100,000.00 $1,875,000.00 $1,836,342.66 $1,808,955.79 $1,607,094.64
Lodging Taxes (Fund 71) $850,000.00 $800,000.00 $770,817.46 674.646.71 $222,839.61
Penalties $375,000.00 $350,000.00 $372,609.76 $227,732.55 $207,299.00
Interest On Late Payments $200,000.00 $175,000.00 $213,114.76 $185,877.39 $33,846.00

SUB-TOTALS $37,725,000.00 $37,298,652.30 $36,779,237.38 $33,970,211.63 $32,318,941.25
Sales Taxes $2,100,000.00 $2,000,000.00 $2,000,000.00 $1,960,808.00 $1,989,128.00
Utility Taxes $1,650,000.00 $1,590,000.00 $1,590,000.00 $1,706,476.00 $1,687,740.00
Franchise Fees $2,100.00 $2,100.00 $2,100.00 $2,100.00 $4,200.00
Bank Taxes $120,000.00 $120,000.00 $120,000.00 $120,000.00 $106,048.00
Recordation/Deeds Taxes $120,000.00 $120,000.00 $120,000.00 $120,000.00 $148,591.00
E911 Wireless $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

SUB-TOTAL $3,992,100.00 $3,832,100.00 $3,832,100.00 $3,909,384.00 $3,935,707.00
State Funding $6,575,177.00 $6,562,177.00 $6,441,100.00 $6,617,181.00 $6,486,637.00
Federal Funding $150,000.00 $154,500.00 $268,400.00 $172,882.00 $356,255.00
Other Govt Funding $2,275,000.00 $2,286,200.00 $1,651,000.00 $1,545,064.00 $1,561,049.00
Permits and Fees $550,000.00 $244,500.00 $233,800.00 $296,726.00 $229,546.00
Use of Money and Property $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $53,235.00 $58,352.00 $48,062.00
In-Lieu of Taxes $1,250,000.00 $1,261,000.00 $1,261,000.00 $1,296,255.00 $1,257,500.00
Other Revenue $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Sub-Total $10,850,177.00 $10,558,377.00 $9,908,535.00 $9,986,460.00 $9,939,049.00

TOTALS $52,567,277.00 $51,689,129.30 $50,519,872.38 $47,866,055.63 $46,193,697.25



Revenue Summary

• FY2018 Revenues look strong  with a projected 1.7% increase
• Existing Trial Balances for the 2015 CAFR show a very stable financial 

position for the City
• Real Estate tax proposed increase would be for the additional schools 

funding request ($515,179) and would only provide $4821 additional 
to the General Fund. 

• Meals Tax Increase would provide an additional $200,000 to the GF
• Debt declines by 58% over the next 10 years
• M&T Taxes Increase from Rebate Expiration and hopefully new 

expansions and/or new industry over the next couple of years

4/22/2017 15



FY 2018 Known Needs
Capital Needs 

•$2,500,000 Borrow to complete FY 2017 Capital 
Projects

•$1,200,000 Economic Development Purchase
•$6,500,000 Fire Station Project

4/22/2017 16



$0.90

$0.95

$1.00

$1.05

$1.10

$1.15

$1.20

$1.25

$1.30

*Average rate of $1.16 per $100 of Assessed Value over the last 40 Years*

Real Estate Tax Rates per $100 of Assessed Value

4/22/2017 17



Regional City Tax Rates

Locality Real Estate Tax Personal Property Tax Sales Tax Meals Tax

Hopewell $1.13 $3.50 5.3% 5.5%

Colonial 
Heights

$1.20 $3.50 5.3% 6.0%

Petersburg $1.35 $4.90 5.3% 7.0%

Richmond $1.20 $3.70 5.3% 6.0%

4/22/2017 18



Regional County Tax Rates
Locality Real Estate Tax Personal Property Tax Sales Tax Meals Tax

Chesterfield $0.96 $3.60 5.3% 0.0%

Henrico $0.87 $3.50 5.3% 4.0%

Prince George $0.86 $4.25 5.3% 4.0%

Dinwiddie $0.79 $4.90 5.3% 4.0%

Charles City $0.76 $3.75 5.3% 0.0%

4/22/2017 19



Real Estate Tax Increase
• The revenue generated by the proposed Real Estate Tax increase 

($520,000) is equivalent to the additional funds requested by The 
School Board ($515,179)

• A $0.04 per $100 of value increase to Real Estate Tax Rate would 
increase revenues by approximately $520,000 ($130,000 per penny)

• The average home value in Hopewell is approximately $123,000. The 
proposed tax rate would equate to $49.20 per year of additional 
taxes. 

• This increase is equivalent to LESS THAN one dollar menu item from 
McDonald’s per week

• The proposed Real Estate Tax rate would still be less than any other 
City in our region.

4/22/2017 20



Meals Tax Increase

• A 0.5% (1/2%) increase to 6% instead the current 5.5% rate in the meals tax 
would generate an anticipated $200,000 in additional revenue to the City

• This would equate to ½ of a penny on each dollar spent on meals.
• The average family of four eating at a local restaurant, spending $50 on 

food would incur $2.75 in meals tax currently, or $3.00 under the increased 
rate. It is only a $0.25 (one US Quarter) increase on a $50 meal.

• If a family eats out twice each week, all year long, and spends $50 each 
time, their extra meals tax would only be $26 per year.

• If a family eats out every night, 365 days/year, and spends $50 each time, 
their extra meals tax would only be $91.25. They could skip two nights out 
and only eat 363 times and they would more than cover the extra cost.

4/22/2017 21



QUESTIONS?



 

 

REPORTS  
OF THE 

CITY 
ATTORNEY 

 

 



 

 

REPORTS  
OF THE 

CITY CLERK 
 

 



 
REPORTS OF THE 

CITY COUNCIL 
• COMMITTEES 

• INDIVIDUAL REQUEST 
• ANY OTHER COUNCILOR 



 
ADJOURN 

 
 


	Agenda
	Consent Agenda
	Minutes
	Financial Report
	Personnel Change Report
	Public Hearings
	Info for Council Review
	Proclamations, Resolutions & Presentations
	Public Hearing 1
	Public Hearing 2
	Public Hearing 3
	R-1
	R-2
	R-3
	R-4
	R-5
	R-6
	Report of City Atty
	Report of Clerk
	Reports of City Council
	Adjourn

